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“associate(s)”

E INI

“Board”
=53

“‘Bye-laws”
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“China Oceanwide
Group”
(':F' /Z 7r<

“China Oceanwide
Holdings Group”
[F B2 8 1 iR & 3 )

“China Oceanwide
Holdings” or
“Company”

P2 S AR N/NCIE

“Director(s)”

[E=]

“Group”
[ E ]

“HKS”
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“Hong Kong”
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“IDR”
[ENE &

“Indonesia”
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has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LRI T % & 69 A8 DB &

the board of Directors

Eg

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company

ARTEMERAMRA AR

China Oceanwide Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings
MZEEERAR AREBIMKLNBR AR - 2 BERHZENR
=N

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and the controlling shareholder of Oceanwide

Holdings
REZEEREEARAR  RRPEEFMARINBERARF  TzBER
B 458 B R 3R

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 715), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose Shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Pz ERAR AR (R R : 715)
P& 0 7O B S BT E AR B TR

RPRARETMEZNBR QA
the director(s) of the Company
RRABESE

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREWERF

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B EBHRT K

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B EEFRITERRER

Indonesian Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia

R - HEMEAER

the Republic of Indonesia

ENJZ Fe 78 as A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

BXFTRE A EWAR B
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Model Code”
[1Z 2Rl

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

¥ FARBIM ST PAEN ETETAEFETESFRHHIRESTA
“Oceanwide Holdings” means Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 000046), a joint stock
[ g ERR ] company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company
¥ CHERBRMHABRAR (FEHFNRE 000046) - BRAFREFMKZHRDE
REERR  ERODVARINESFRZ SR L - BARQ A B EEZERKRR
“PRC” means the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report,
[ B shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan
¥ PEARAMNE  AFRNE  FREFE FERFASNTHRERSE
“RMB” means Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR ¥ AR®E HBEEEEEE
“SFO” means the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
[ K s & ¥ BHrLRAEGRD (FEEDE71F)
“Share(s)” means ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
[R5 ¥ AR EIR AR AR EE B #50.107T B9 & R Ak
“Shareholder(s)” means holder(s) of the Shares
%R ] ¥ LERESEEDN
“Stock Exchange” means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[k 22 P ¥ EEMERSMARRA
“U.s.” means United States of America
[SE B ] ¥ ENZERE
“US$” means U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.
Ey ¥ EnEBZEEE%
“%” means per cent.
[% | ¥ AL

BRBEEHIN RAFHRA  ETHEE A

Unless otherwise specified, in this annual report, conversions
of US$ into HK$, RMB into HK$ and IDR into HK$ in this
annual report are based on the exchange rate of US$1.00 =
HK$7.8329, RMB1.00 = HK$1.1413 and IDR1.00 =
HK$0.000541 respectively for illustration purpose only. No
representation is made that any amounts in US$, RMB, IDR
or HK$ can be or could have been converted at the relevant
dates at the above rate or any other rates at all.

*for identification purpose only (£ (% 5

R B R HIJE J& 4 78 1 T3 75 B #1.00% T
i B 7.83297T + A B B1.007T 5B B61.14137T
R HI/E J& 1.007T 7 7 #50.00054 17T H fE R IR & -
ERFEHH BTRREMET  ARE -
EHIJE J& 3 & B 3 18 7] LA 26 JE 7] LA R B 65 H B 1%
- At PE 3 B 12 fF fa] B il FE 3K 5 #E o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (“China Oceanwide
Holdings” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), being the platform of the overseas investment
businesses of its controlling shareholder, Oceanwide
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide Holdings”, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 000046)), has devoted itself to its strategic corporate
transformation since 2014, constantly expanded the portfolio
and management of overseas United States dollar (“U.S.
dollar” or “US$”) denominated assets, and successfully
developed
principally engaged in the development of high quality real

itself into an international conglomerate
estate investment projects in the United States of America
(the “United States” or “U.S.”), investments in commercial
properties in prime locations of Shanghai, development of
energy projects in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”)
and finance investment and others in Hong Kong. As an
investment holding company with a foothold in U.S. dollar
denominated assets and investments, the Group maintained
a continuous growth in assets by leveraging the diversified
investing and financing management channels,
internationalised capital and excellent professionals in Hong
Kong. However, the Group encountered a surge in
financing costs during the year ended 31 December 2018
(the “Year”) due to the deterioration in the investment and
financing markets and numerous obstacles in inbound and
outbound capital flow amid economic fluctuations across the
globe as a result of the U.S.-China trade war (the “Trade
War”). To manage its liquidity, the Group grasped the
opportunity to dispose of some bond and equity
investments during the Year, thereby reducing its revenue.
As for the real estate development segment, while the
construction of all main structures as well as the fagade
panel

complete, the land in New York suffered an impairment of

installation work of the Los Angeles project is

HK$77.6 million due to a fall in market price. Looking

forward, the Group will focus on preserving business
growth, exploring new revenue stream and maintaining
healthy liquidity position by selling some assets at the right
time in order to persistently maximise shareholders’ value.

Capitalising on the ample resources, extensive experience

FIZIERER AR ([FIZERIKIAQR] &
BEMBARIAEER]) EREIERRRZ GIE
BRmAERAR (DZBIER] - RO EIIE
FHR B LT (BRD AR - 000046)) HEINEE
¥BFE H04FR—ER IR EHEE
B TEHBERBEINETEENRERESE B
AERINERK —EEEEEEEREE =
ZEBRREEFNBRERBE((XE])MELREH
ERZEHREER  LEZLOHWBENERREY
¥BE HERASHEXME((HNEDHEERE
NRABEEREENMHRE R LM ER - £
B-RHMERERETEERKREEBNIKRE
ERIAR AEEBREBSBEMISNZ TR
MEEE BEBRCEARAUREFEEAS &
ERBERFESRE - AW 8 =2018F12A31H8
FEFETFRADHEEZE(ESEDFEE2XK
KBRS BEANKRERBEEBRE E&
EABREREN SAEENBRERA LA -
RERRBE AEBFABRLETDES
MBEAREE  SWARD - EHEREIRRA
W SEHBE TRREKTEEBERTE
HEBEMIIMNEER IR BAREBOMNIRE S
MIHEETREEREEE7,7608T - BEX
ReAEEBROTEHHESERERRAHRK
HRR VERABEEDDEE  UERBE
BOESREBME BRARRBENESTKY
BE - EASEHERBRENBAER 25

thiz iR HR LS 2018FE F£ 1R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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and leading vision of its controlling shareholder, the Group
will continue to take advantage of the strategic strength and
resources of Hong Kong’s platform.

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2018, the continuously growing U.S. economy and the
promulgation of the U.S. tax reform that directly cut tax
rates contributed to the increase in income from the
Group’s real estate development projects in the U.S..
Nevertheless, the Trade War during the Year has shaken
the global stock market and, in turn, the performance of the

Group’s strategic finance investment segment.

Against the backdrop of the non-stop appreciation of U.S.
dollar and tightening overseas financing market, the
International Monetary Fund lowered its global economic
growth forecast for 2019. It believed that while the Trade
War will drag down world economic momentum, the
depreciation of the national currencies of emerging markets
will also hamper global economic growth. It is expected that
the impact of the Trade War on the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) will gradually surface in 2019. In
addition, due to the internal economic factors of the PRC,
coupled with the uncertainty of the global macro economy
and the slowdown in credit cycle and investment growth, it
is expected that the Chinese economy will continue to be
under pressure and GDP growth will slow down further.

In the face of a sluggish economic growth in the PRC, the
office market in Shanghai witnessed a continuous drop in
rental demand, increased vacancy rates and lower rental
rate. According to an analysis of the premium office market
in Shanghai, the current average vacancy rate in Huangpu
District, Shanghai, where two of the Group’s investment
properties are located, is approximately 14%. In view of the
upcoming new supplies in the central business district of
Puxi, Shanghai, coupled with the negative impact of the
exodus of many e-commerce companies on the demand,
most of the owners have been forced to adjust their rent-
free periods and raise their agency commissions in order to
cope with the challenge.

KENMBARINAR B#EREFEFYLAN
BB NEREES -

%8G B IRIE

2018%F  EEKEEIHFEML - FARMA TN
TTERERBART XA R R AL B X B E i &
HEANBRRET AT FREFES 2K
BhKE FETAREBREEMBRERR
R -

EEXETRHEER RIBERFRENKESR
T RERK BEREBESHAM T T2019
FHERKEEERAY RAEZEHEHE
BREEBERENE FEMSEREEREDLSK
MR REEER -BREZHEEPEARK
B ([ BB ERE2019FF ¥R - it
S RBIAREEREZ I EE2REBEKEDN
THEEE UWRRIAEERAHRREERRE
FREFE BATELESHEXE BR
TEREER/BE - PHE-

mEPELERRRE LERFETISNA
EFLFENE SR=EXLANMAEAST
HeRBELEFESFEMEINMBERT
AEEMEREYMEMEN LBFHEL B A
P ZEBE XL R14% - I ARTEE LB
HERLOEFRAOFEHEENEE M 0L
MFEERET AR BB AR RANEE
TEEFE ZRAMOIXIFAEBARLHE
Hgme N meSE A EEkE-
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During the Year, the central government of the PRC

announced a new “structural deleveraging” initiative, which
posed an enormous challenge to both domestic and
overseas financing. The central government has tightened
its control, which has imposed pressure on overseas
expansion by Chinese corporations with overseas presence.
Regulations over cross-border bond issuance have also
hardened in general as the PRC tightens its control over
financial risks and strengthens its deleveraging efforts due
to the ripple effect of the risk of defaults in the bond
market. The market was also alarmed by the rise in credit
risks resulting from multiple default cases amongst US$
bonds issued by Chinese corporations. In view of the
uncertainties about U.S. macro-economic policies and
interest hikes, balance sheet reduction of the U.S. Federal
Reserve and possible reversal of monetary policy, the
management has maintained its prudent principle and given
the highest priority to risk control, focusing mainly on the
sufficiency of capital to support its business development.
Through the flexible use of various financing channels, the
Group has strengthened the availability of overseas liquidity
and enhanced the efficiency of cash utilisation. With the
management’s sustained effort, the Group successfully
raised net financing proceeds of HK$3,500.0 million from
bank and other loans and HK$587.5 million from issuance
of convertible notes, respectively, during the Year. The
controlling shareholder also provided the Group with
unceasing financial support to maintain sufficient liquid
funds. As at 31 December 2018,
loans from the controlling shareholder totaling
approximately HK$5,194.8 million (31 December 2017:

HK$3,120.5 million).

the Group has drawn

FRCFEPRBAREE T [EBEEERIN

MER RAINBEEBREAREZR YRR
ZHEBIEREHNTELCRME  BAREE

WEHBIMNERTVKTEN  MEEMROE
HEPRENAREGRE S FREMTMAE
e mERMEEETR BREEEEER
BEBEKE %F%ﬂ %Fﬁm hE
ETBEEBLREORD mEEREERMN

R e Eﬁ%lt%ﬁﬂwﬁ&ﬂﬂ%ﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁﬁm M

XEBRERNERER ERRRPENAR
MEME EEERTRERA  ERRES

MEEMN  EHEFNNEESREETEUIE
XBERNRE AEBRBEFHESHER
BRBE ERBINESTBUEES T Wi
MRESFERUER - EEEEBNTEENT F
Whﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁMﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂémE@ﬁ

¥35.000fE 70 BBFELABRBREEHREERN
TH 75 ¥65.87518 7T o A 5 [ [F) I 42 /B 15 B 1 AR A%
R BZE  URBFAEERDESTH -
R2018F 128310 * AEBENIEBRBEIRZEBE

RABREA) B HES1.94818 7T (20175124318 : &
#31.205/87T) °

20184F F 3R
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group has transformed from a company engaging

solely in property investment into a conglomerate

integrating property investment, real estate development,
As at 31

December 2018, total assets of the Group, inclusive of five

energy and strategic finance investment.
real estate projects in the U.S. and the energy project in
Indonesia currently on hand, amounted to HK$24,245.6
million, representing an increase of 13% as compared to
HK$21,458.1 million for last year. In particular, the scale of
investment properties increased by 30% to HK$4,413.1
million as compared to 2017, while the scale of properties
under development increased by 22% to HK$14,798.9
million as compared to 2017. Mainly located in prime
locations in major cities in the U.S., such properties will be
developed into diversified residential, hotel and commercial
properties partly for sale and partly for holding in the future
and are expected to bring ample profits and returns to the

Group.

Consolidated loss attributable to the shareholders of the
Group for the Year amounted to HK$48.8 million (2017:
profit of HK$70.4 million) while loss per share amounted to
HKO0.30 cent (2017: earnings per share of HKO0.44 cent).
Excluding other net losses after taxation of HK$93.5 million’
(2017: net gains of HK$29.2 million), recurring consolidated
profit attributable to the shareholders amounted to HK$44.7
million (2017: HK$41.3 million).

1 Other net losses (after tax and non-controlling interests) for 2018 of
HK$93.5 million represented provision for asset impairment of
HK$77.6 million, foreign exchange losses of HK$12.8 million, fair
value losses (after tax) on revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$2.9 million, provision for expected credit
losses of HK$1.2 million, write-off of deferred income tax assets of
HK$5.3 million and net gains on disposal of financial assets of
HK$6.3 million.

Other net gains (after tax and non-controlling interests) for 2017 of
HK$29.2 million represented net gains on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$47.6 million, fair value gains on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of

HK$2.5 million and foreign exchange losses of HK$20.9 million.

P EEE 3

REBCHRE—MYEREERNSEMER
B BHERAE ERENKBBEENBKEE
R—ENEGEEEE T RBAAEN T EERREM
ERZEERNEEREENER  AEER
2018512 A3 AW 48 & 3 B %242 45618 7T -
Lb = F 0B 214.581B 0 I T13% ° HE A
JEMERIBIERE B BA131E T - 82017
FHRI0% AERYERREREBE
147.98918 7 * $R2017F 12 K22% ° L #it A3
MEFTZMRERERWTHESHE - HR
RARRWHERZTENEE BERERY
¥ HEHARLT BHeLAEETRE
E &y & F B % o

AEBEBFARREEGIGE EIEREE4,8808
JC (20174 : FE B 70408 L) BREEAR
Y& 10.301L (20174 : B AR & F A 150.4410) - #
PR BR TR 1% H b ¥ B 185 159,3508 ' (20174 -
FERG A KE2,9208 L) KEMRREMLGE
PO =B 84,4708 7T (20174 % 84,1308
TT) °

! 20184 H fth ) &5 48 (BR B Mo FFHE A M 2512 ) 78 #59,350
BLTRABEREREBETI 0BT ELEBEE
1280870 ERBRAABEFARENFBEEER
REEERRTIR) BH200E T BHEMELE
B 81208 7T - MHIEIE PR IS T & B %5308 7T I
HE 8 & EF RIS B 6308 T -

20174 H At 7 F15 (B B R SRR A R 25 1) 7B #62,920
BrLRHEHEEMBEEFFEER47608 T -
ERBARBEFABANFBEEAABENGEE
#2508 7T I [E L 5 1R 8 #2,0008 7T -
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Revenue for the Year amounted to HK$138.6 million (2017:
HK$142.2 million) and losses before interest expense and
tax (“LBIT”) for the Year was HK$53.7 million (2017:
earnings of HK$86.6 million). Excluding other net losses of
HK$86.0 million? (2017: net gains of HK$29.2 million),
recurring earnings before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”)
for the Year was HK$32.3 million (2017: HK$57.4 million).
The decrease in recurring EBIT was mainly due to a drop in
revenue and a rise in operating costs expensed during the
Year.

DIVIDEND

In order to retain sufficient capital for the Group’s future
business development and operation, the Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year
(2017: Nil).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the Year, the property

continued to contribute stable rental income and profits with

investment segment

the two office and commercial properties in Shanghai.
However, the continual influx of new supplies in the central
business district of Puxi coupled with the negative impact of
the exodus of many e-commerce companies on the
demand, the average occupancy rate of these two office
and commercial properties in Shanghai was approximately
89% as at 31 December 2018.

2 Other net losses (before tax and non-controlling interests) for 2018 of
HK$86.0 million represented provision for asset impairment of
HK$77.6 million, foreign exchange losses of HK$12.8 million, fair
value losses (before tax) on revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$0.6 million, provision for expected
credit losses of HK$1.2 million and net gains on disposal of financial
assets of HK$6.3 million.

Other net gains (before tax and non-controlling interests) for 2017 of
HK$29.2 million represented net gains on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$47.6 million, fair value gains on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$2.5 million and foreign exchange losses of HK$20.9 million.

F R A BB #1.38618 T (20174 : B #1.422
Brr) MFEABRNBKEF S E RBBEANER
([F) B KB Al g5 18 ]) Bl & 7 #5,3708 7T (2017
F - BFIEH8,6608 7T) o Mk H AL SF B BB
8,600 JT2 (20174 : JF F|15 7 #2,9208 T) -
FREEERNBHE ZH RBREAEF ([F
BEBAAT]) B E3,2308 7T (20174 : &
W5 7408 TT) - K E MR E RBAT AR D £
ZHRFAUWAR D R EERKAE B INAT
@( °

345

REBRAENESTARBERRERLREEL
A EFE T TEFBREAFENRBAES (2017
FE) -

EHHE

MERERBBBEMR LEOMERAE
BAMERFANEBETREETNES WEMNF
B BB R E RO TG M E S T
O M EFSREEEARNBEEEAR
HMmEELEBEFZE - R2018612H31H -
FEMERCERTAMENTHLEBEEXRA
89% o

2 20184 H fth )5 &5 48 (BR B b FF $2 ik 25 7T 78 %6.8,600
BIREERBEREEKTTCOBT EXLEBEEBE
1280870 EMBRAABEFARENFBEEER
REBEEE (G ERe0B T HAHEMEAEMH
1208 T R BB BB EF ARS8 H6308 T o

20174 H At 75 F15 (BR B M FF 2 AR B 25 7T) 78 #62,920
BLRHERHEENBEEFFEER47608 T
ERBARBEFABANTBEEAABENEE
#2508 7T I [E K B 1878 62,0908 7T ©
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

In view of the recovery of the U.S. economy and the
continuing appreciation of U.S. dollar, the Group maintained
its focus on the development of its U.S. real estate
projects. All of the projects are located in prime locations of
major cities in the U.S. and are positioned as mid- to high-
end luxurious property complexes and new regional
landmarks. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had five

real estate development projects as follows:

Los Angeles Project

In October 2015, the Group successfully acquired the real
estate development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. from a
subsidiary of its parent company, Oceanwide Holdings. This
project is located in the core of Los Angeles near landmark
buildings such as Staples Center (home to the Lakers and
the Clippers),
Center and The Ritz Carlton. With considerable flow of

Microsoft Theater, Los Angeles Convention

people and customers, it is an excellent site for the
development of commercial complex. The project covers a
total land area of approximately 18,662 square meters
(“sgqm”) with a gross floor area of approximately 138,249
sgm. It is planned to be developed into a large scale mixed
use urban commercial complex with three upscale
condominiums, a luxury five-star hotel under the “Park
Hyatt” brand, which is the topnotch hotel brand under the
Hyatt group, a shopping mall with a gross floor area of
approximately 15,476 sgm, and the largest LED signage
panel on the west coast of the U.S. The construction of the
project commenced in the second half of 2014. By 2018,
the construction of all main structures, as well as the
fagade panel installation work of all main structures are
complete. Over 85% of the mechanical and electrical work
has been completed. Over 60% of interior drywalls in
buildings 2 and 3 has been installed. The project as a
in 2020. Having
received the letters of intent to lease from various large and

whole is expected to be completed

medium enterprises, signing of lease contracts of the
commercial portion has been started. As at 31 December
2018, total funds invested in the project were approximately
US$1,046.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8,200.3
million).
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New York Project

In March 2016, the acquisition of the sites in New York was
completed. This project involves two parcels of land
situated in the core area of the Seaport District, Lower
Manhattan, the U.S., and are adjacent to the East River
and close to the famous Brooklyn Bridge on its east,
looking toward New York Harbor and the Statue of Liberty
on its south, facing the World Trade Center on its west and
overlooking the skyline of the whole Manhattan Island on its
north. With a land area of approximately 1,367 sgm and a
development area of 75,975 sqm, the site is well-positioned
for hotel and residential development. Certification has been
obtained from the City Planning Commission of the City of
New York in respect of the project, which is planned to be
developed into a mixed use building comprising a high-end
hotel and residential units. The conceptual design of the
project has been completed and is currently in the
schematic design stage. As at 31 December 2018, total
funds invested in the project were approximately US$404.4

million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,167.6 million).

Hawaii Projects

Ko Olina No. 2 Land

In December 2015, the Group acquired certain parcels of
land in Ko Olina District on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the U.S.,
one of the world’s most popular tourist destinations. These
land parcels are one of the scarce sites available for hotel
development on Oahu Island and have rich natural
resources and a beautiful coastline with a land area of
approximately 70,000 sgm and an estimated gross floor
area of approximately 92,292 sgm. It is planned to be
developed into two luxury branded hotels and residential
condominiums. The project is currently in the conceptual
design stage. As at 31 December 2018, total funds invested
in the project were approximately US$209.0 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$1,637.1 million).
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Ko Olina No. 1 Land

In September 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
three parcels of land in Ko Olina District on Oahu Island in
Hawaii, the U.S. with an area of approximately 106,311
sqm. The Group reached an agreement with the holding
company of the “Atlantis” brand in December 2016 to
develop the land parcels into an international luxury resort
under the “Atlantis” brand, which shall consist of a hotel
component comprising approximately 800 guestrooms, an
spas, gyms,
facilities and outdoor pools and bars, etc. as well as a
branded
approximately 524 luxury residences marked in association

aquarium, restaurants, bars, conference

residence component which shall contain
with the “Atlantis” brand. The project is currently in the
schematic design stage. As at 31 December 2018, total
funds invested in the project were approximately US$295.1
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,311.5 million).

Kapolei

In October 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
certain parcels of land in Kapolei on Oahu Island in Hawaii,
the U.S. with an area of approximately 2.07 million sgm.
These parcels of land are adjacent to the above-mentioned
land parcels in Ko Olina District on Oahu Island and can
create synergies and enhance brand values. The land is
planned to be used for the construction of commercial and
residential properties as well as community facilities. Phase
| of infrastructure construction of this project is complete.
As at 31 December 2018, total funds invested in the project
were approximately US$120.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$940.7 million).
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In 2015, the Group acquired an energy project to develop
two coal-fired steam power plants (each with a net capacity
in the Medan
Indonesia (the “Medan Project”). The project company for

of 150 megawatts) industrial zone of
the Medan Project, PT. Mabar Elektrindo, has entered into
a power purchase agreement with a local state-owned
power grid company,

(Persero). The foundation work of the Medan Project has

PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara

been completed and the project is now in the structural
construction stage. As at 31 December 2018, total funds
invested in the Medan Project were approximately
US$362.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,835.5
million).

In July 2018, the Company disposed of its entire equity
interest in a former wholly-owned subsidiary which held an
equity investment in an unlisted company prior to the
disposal, to a connected person of the Company for a
consideration of US$12.8 million. Based on the disposal
consideration, the Group recorded a fair value gain of
HK$19.5 million for the Year arising from the revaluation of
the equity investment in the unlisted company. The net
effect of such gain and the revaluation of other fund
investments was a fair value loss of HK$0.6 million for the
Year. During the Year, the Group also disposed of some
bonds and recorded realised net gains of HK$6.3 million
(2017: HK$19.7 million). As at 31 December 2018, the fair
value of the Group’s equity, fund and debt investments was
HK$379.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$989.4 million),
representing 1.6% of the total assets of the Group.
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OUTLOOK

While scaling up all its business segments, the Group
focuses on building up a portfolio of both long- and short-
term U.S. dollar denominated investments. All projects are
being executed and carried out on track. Looking forward,
in view of the upcoming business expansion and increasing
capital
concentrate on maintaining sufficient capital reserve through

expenditure, the management will continue to

multiple fund raising means such as shareholder's or
external loans, debt financing and equity financing. The
management will also monitor all capital and operational
risks arising from the Group’s business growth, and
complete the development of the projects as soon as
possible in order to generate investment returns.

The property investment segment will cope with challenges
in the market by adjusting rent-free periods and raising
agency commissions, and strive to contribute stable rental
income and profit to the Group by boosting the occupancy
rates of both of its properties in Shanghai.

As for the real estate development segment, the

management will tighten its control over the existing
projects in terms of capital expenditures and costs while
advancing them and ensuring their timely delivery so as to
bring returns to and realise profits for the Group on

schedule.

The energy segment will also endeavor to facilitate the
construction of the Medan Project, enforce stringent quality,
safety and cost control, procure the safe and efficient
commission of the project on schedule, and thus add a
stable source of revenue to the Group.
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Furthermore, the Group will continue to identify investment
and business expansion opportunities in a prudent and
diligent manner. To make the most of its funds and expand
its business, it will continue to seek viable projects and
quality assets in order to improve its profitability, enhance
shareholders’

returns, enlarge the scale of its asset

portfolio, and thus lay a solid foundation for future
development. With the experience of and support from the
Company’s controlling shareholder, the management
undertakes to further expand the property investment, real
estate development, energy and finance investment
segments with the aim of enhancing the long-term returns

for the Company’s shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our staff for their hard work and
dedication and to thank all of the Company’s shareholders,
business partners and customers for their continuous and
staunch support.

HAN Xiaosheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has developed into a conglomerate with
synergetic development in four major business segments,
namely “Property Investment”’, “Real Estate Development”,
“Energy” and “Finance Investment and Others”, forming a
sound business development strategy. The management
actively procured financing through various financing
channels according to its capital requirements. All segments
have taken shape with bright development outlook. For the
finance investment segment, the management has
restructured its portfolio and disposed of certain assets
when opportunity arises so as to realise profits. For the real
estate development segment, funds have been channelled
After settling the

litigation regarding the land, the energy project is now in

to the projects in an orderly manner.

the structural construction stage. As to property investment,
the Group took various initiatives to increase the rental
income. While preserving business development and
expanding revenue stream, the Group will continue to follow
prudent financial management principals and maintain
sound liquidity in order to maximise shareholders’ value in

a sustainable manner.

In 2018,
commercial

revenue generated from the two office and

properties in Shanghai under the property
investment segment amounted to HK$96.1 million (2017:
HK$92.2 million). EBIT was HK$81.0 million, representing
from HK$75.2 million for the

corresponding period of 2017. The increase in both revenue

an increase of 8%

and EBIT was mainly attributable to the appreciation of
Renminbi (“RMB”). As at 31 December 2018, the average
occupancies of these two properties were approximately
89%. The performance of the property investment segment
is expected to be under the unabating pressure of
upcoming supplies rolling out one by one in the central
business district of Puxi, Shanghai, while demand is falling
as many e-commerce companies are leaving the district.
The management will cope with challenges in the market
and strive for higher occupancy rates by adjusting rent-free
periods and raising agency commissions.
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With
management, the real estate development segment has

the unique and strategic foresights of the

acquired several quality projects in the U.S. and is now in
possession of over 2.26 million sgm of land in prime
the U.S. for
development. The U.S. tax reforms and multiple financial

locations of various major cities in

stimuli implemented by the federal government are
expected to provide further impetus to economic growth in

BEEEERBIMNE LGNSR Y BhE
FERRNREINEHAZTHELENER  HE
FEHRETEWMMEABIBE268 F 5K i
EEAERR 2R - £ X BB Mg H BT T
B B BRIR IS SE T - TEHA P E — P HEEE
BEBEER  MEXTHERY  AEEMNE
BIEREEEDZBE182.3998 T ' E5H#EK
A20.755(8 & T (M E R B 1625728 T) * T

the U.S. With the continuously strong U.S. dollar, the total X A&&HEBWERER -
asset value of the Group’s projects in the U.S. has reached
HK$18,239.9 million with a total investment of US$2,075.5
million (equivalent to HK$16,257.2 million). A brief

description of each project is set out in the following table:

Fund invested as
at 31 December

2018
R20185F
Project name Site area 12A31H Current project status Project development
HEAB THEE ERAEE HARKER HERE
(sqm) (US$’ million)
(F75 %) (BBZR)
Los Angeles Project 18,662 1,046.9 The construction of all main structures, as  Upscale condominiums, a luxury
BEHIER well as the fagade panel installation five-star hotel under the “Park Hyatt”
work of all main structures are complete. brand, a large-scale shopping mall
Over 85% of the mechanical and and the largest LED signage panel
electrical work has been completed. on the west coast of the U.S.
Over 60% of interior drywalls in SRAE  AAREE I REGENE
buildings 2 and 3 has been installed. ERSERE  REENHSREE
TRAETIREBIRIR TR ERME  EFRKANLEDESRE
ERIR BEIRBAETAER
85% 2  3RBEAREHDC TN EB
60% °
New York Project 1,367 404.4  Conceptual design completed and is A mixed use building comprising a high-
I currently in the schematic design stage. end hotel and residential units
ExBBART ERRARRAER . BEamBENETHREAREAR
Hawaii Ko Olina No. 2 Land 70,000 209.0 Currently in the conceptual design stage. ~ Two luxury branded hotels and
Project FERBOREHER - residential condominiums
ERERIME = ER MEEZEREEERAS
Hawaii Ko Olina No. 1 Land 106,311 295.1  Currently in the schematic design stage. An international luxury resort under the

Project NANEL IS

EREMAHMP % 0IEE

“Atlantis” brand with luxury
residences and a hotel

BRI Atlantis (2B %) MAE
WEARFEEEM BAFED
BIE

e
BR
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Fund invested as
at 31 December

2018
20185
Project name Site area 12A318 Current project status
HEER THEE ERAES BEERKER
(sqm) (US$’ million)
(F7 %) (BBZT)
Hawaii Kapolei Project 2,066,286 120.1

ERRFTHERER

complete.

B - HERRBIE-

The real estate development segment did not record any
revenue in 2018, as compared to that of HK$1.6 million for
2017, which was mainly attributable to the rental income
from properties acquired for the Hawaii Ko Olina No. 1
prior to the commencement of its
development. During 2018, LBIT of the real estate
development segment was HK$105.2 million (2017: HK$20.6
interest hikes and

Land Project

million). Due to the continuous
unsatisfactory performance of the real estate sales market
in New York, the Company made an impairment provision
of HK$77.6 million for the New York Project. Excluding the
impairment provision, LBIT was HK$27.6 million (2017:
HK$20.6 million), which was mainly due to the increase in
marketing expenses and absence of rental income from the
land of the Hawaii Ko Olina No. 1 Land Project in 2018.
Rental income was recorded from the land of that project

last year.

In 2015, the Group acquired an energy project to develop
two coal-fired steam power plants (each with a net capacity
in the Medan industrial zone of
Indonesia (the “Medan Project”’). The project company for

of 150 megawatts)

the Medan Project has entered into a power purchase
agreement with a local state-owned power grid company,
PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero). The foundation
work of the Medan Project has been completed and the
project is now in the structural construction stage. Upon
commencement of operation, the Medan Project is expected
to contribute a stable revenue stream to the Group. As at
31 December 2018, total funds invested in the Medan

Phase 1 of infrastructure construction is

Project development

HERR

Commercial properties, residential
properties and community facilities
BE ATRHERR
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Project were approximately US$362.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,835.5 million).

As the Medan Project is still in the construction stage, LBIT
of the energy segment for the Year was HK$20.0 million
(2017: HK$9.7 million). Excluding the provision for expected
credit losses on the amount due from the non-controlling
shareholder of HK$1.2 million, recurring LBIT would be
HK$18.8 million (2017: HK$9.7 million). The increase in
LBIT was primarily attributable to the increase in expensed
operating costs during the Year.

In 2018, revenue from the finance investment and others
segment was HK$42.5 million, representing a decrease of
12% as compared to HK$48.4 million in 2017. LBIT was
HK$9.5 million, as compared to EBIT of HK$41.7 million for
the corresponding period of 2017. Excluding other net
losses for 2018 and other net gains for 20173, recurring
LBIT was HK$2.3 million, as compared to the recurring
EBIT of HK$12.6 million for the corresponding period of
2017. The increase in LBIT was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue and increase in operating costs during the Year.

3 Other net losses (before tax and non-controlling interests) for 2018 of
HK$7.2 million represented foreign exchange losses of HK$12.8
million, fair value losses (before tax) on revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$0.6 million and net
gains on disposal of financial assets of HK$6.3 million.

Other net gains (before tax and non-controlling interests) for 2017 of
HK$29.2 million represented net gains on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$47.6 million, fair value gains on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$2.5 million and foreign exchange losses of HK$20.9 million.
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During the Year, the Group grasped the opportunity to
dispose of some bonds and recorded total realised net
gains of HK$6.3 million (2017: HK$19.7 million). In July
2018, the Company disposed of its entire equity interest in
a former wholly-owned subsidiary which held an equity
investment in an unlisted company prior to the disposal, to
a connected person of the Company for a consideration of
US$12.8 million. Based on the disposal consideration, the
Group recorded a fair value gain of HK$19.5 million for the
Year arising from the revaluation of the equity investment in
the unlisted company. The net effect of such gain and the
revaluation of other fund investments was a fair value loss
of HK$0.6 million for the Year. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair value of the Group’s listed and unlisted equity
securities and bond investments was HK$379.0 million (31
December 2017: HK$989.4 million). The decrease was
mainly due to the disposal of some listed bonds and
securities when opportunities arose, as well as the
recognition of impairment provision of HK$189.1 million
made for the fair value decrease of equity investment in
other comprehensive expenses.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY OF
THE GROUP

The Group has been actively identifying quality investment
opportunities in the real estate, finance and energy sectors
and continuously expanding its business and enhancing its
market position outside the PRC so as to bring stable
overall returns and value growth for the shareholders of the
Company and to strengthen the competitive advantages of
the Group as a whole. Each of the investment decisions is
made for the benefit of the shareholders of the Company in
the long run by considering the market conditions in
different locations and the risk of and return on each

project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The primary treasury and funding policies of the Group
focus on liquidity management to achieve an optimum level
of liquidity, while funding subsidiary operations in a cost-
efficient manner. Management closely monitors the liquidity
position of the Group to ensure the liquidity structure,
comprising assets, liabilities and commitments, of the Group
can meet its funding requirements. The Group’s finance
department will source funding by borrowings and issuance
of debts,
necessary. Operating as a centralised service, the finance

convertible notes and new shares when

department manages the Group’s funding needs and
monitors financial risks, such as those relating to interest
and foreign exchange rates, as well as counterparty.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did
not enter into any interest or currency swaps or other
financial derivative transactions.

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for cash and bank deposits, loans
receivable, listed debt securities included in financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, bank
loans, amount due to an intermediate holding company,
amount due to a fellow subsidiary and other loans. The
interest rates for the loans receivable, listed debt securities,
amount due to an intermediate holding company, amount

due to a fellow subsidiary and other loans are fixed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s revenue and operating costs are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), United States dollars (“US$”)
and RMB. The Group
movements, primarily in terms of investments in the United

is exposed to other currency

States and Indonesia, bank deposits, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank and other loans
denominated in USS$.

The Group’s main market price risk exposures relate to its
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which mainly comprise listed debt securities and listed
equity securities. The Group’s management manages this
risk by closely monitoring the price movement and changes
in market conditions that may have an impact on the value
of these financial assets.

Surplus of the Group’s capital are to be managed in a
prudent manner, usually in the form of bank deposits with
financial institutions with good credit ratings. The senior
management of the Group regularly monitors price
movements of financial institutions and its counterparties
and credit ratings and sets limits for the total amount of
credit for each of its counterparties, in order to manage and

control default and credit risks.

The Group’s investments in listed debt securities included in
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are listed in Singapore with credit rating of A2/A- as
rated by Moody’s and Standard & Poor's as at 31
December 2018. As at 31 December 2018,
receivables of the Group were mainly loans receivables

the loans

made to the non-controlling shareholder of the jointly
developed Medan Project.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total unsecured and
unrestricted cash, liquid funds and listed investments
amounted to HK$678.0 million (2017: HK$1,221.4 million),
9.2%, 88.6% and 2.2% of which were denominated in the
US$, HK$ and RMB respectively and the remainder were
denominated in in various other currencies.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and other
loans (including convertible notes) of HK$6,147.5 million
(2017: HK$5,328.4 million), of which HK$3,025.7 million
(2017: HK$3,981.4 million) were floating-rate borrowings
HK$1,488.2 million (2017:
HK$280.0 million) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable
within one year, and HK$1,633.6 million (2017: HK$1,067.0
million) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable in two to five

repayable within one vyear,

years. The Group also had an amount due to an
intermediate holding company of HK$5,194.8 million, which
was fixed-rate borrowing repayable in two to five years
(2017: HK$3,120.5 million fixed-rate borrowing repayable on
demand). The Group’s gearing ratio (being calculated as
total bank and other loans divided by total equity) as at 31

December 2018 was 56.9% (2017: 47.7%).

The Group will seek to secure additional financing for its
continuous development and construction. The management
team expects to obtain bank loans to finance the
construction costs of the projects and the operations of the
Group. In the event that any or all of the above loans
cannot be secured, the Group will be able to obtain
additional working capital through alternative fund raising
activities, such as equity financing and/or loans from the
Company’s intermediate holding companies and/or any
other parties, with the financial support of the Company’s

controlling shareholder.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash used in
operating activities and investing activities amounted to
HK$2,145.1 million (2017: HK$1,724.2 million) and
HK$296.4 million (2017: HK$1,228.2 million), respectively.
The increase in net cash used in operating activities was
mainly due to the further development of various real estate
in the U.S. in 2018. Net cash
generated from financing activities during the Year
amounted to HK$2,413.4 million (2017: HK$3,024.5 million),
mainly included proceeds from bank and other loans as well

development projects

as borrowings from an intermediate holding company.

The details of the pledged assets and contingent liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
34, to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Apart from those disclosed in Note 34, the Group had not
created any other guarantee or other contingent liabilities
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
the PRC, the U.S. and
Indonesia, while the Company itself is listed on the Stock

Company’s subsidiaries in

Exchange. The Group accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the U.S. and
Indonesia and the respective places of incorporation of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 114 (2017:
Total
(including the Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
December 2018, amounted to HK$113.4 million (2017:
HK$97.6 million).

131) employees. employee remuneration costs

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages of its
employees are competitive and that individual performance
is rewarded according to the remuneration management
policy of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
employees are reviewed annually.

PAST PERFORMANCE AND FORWARD
LOOKING STATEMENTS

The performance and the results of operations of the Group
contained in this annual report are historical in nature, and
past performance is no guarantee for the future results of
the Group. This annual report may contain forward-looking
statements and opinions, which are based on current plans,
estimates and projections, and therefore involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from
expectations discussed in such forward-looking statements
and opinions. The Group, the Directors, employees and
agents of the Group assume (a) no obligation to correct or
update the forward-looking statements or opinions contained
in this annual report; and (b) no liability in the event that
any of the forward-looking statements or opinions do not
materialize or turn out to be incorrect.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, aged 62, has been an executive
Director since November 2014 and a chairman and a chief
executive officer of the Company since December 2014. Mr.
HAN is also a chairman of the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
under the Board as well as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a senior accountant in
the PRC and is currently a chairman of the supervisory
committee of Oceanwide Holdings. He is also an executive
director and a chairman of China Tonghai International
Financial Limited (“China Tonghai International Financial”,
formerly known as China Oceanwide International Financial
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 952)). Mr. HAN previously served as an
executive director and a chief executive officer of
Oceanwide Holdings (from May 2015 to March 2019). He
obtained a Master's degree in economics from Renmin
University of China in July 1996 and a Doctor’'s degree in
management science from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology in June 2018.

Mr. LIU Bing, aged 61, has been an executive Director
since November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a vice
chairman of Minsheng Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Minsheng
Holdings”), whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 000416). He is also a non-
executive director of China Tonghai International Financial.
Mr. LIU obtained his Master's degree in business
administration from Sacred Heart University in the U.S. in
August 19809.

Mr. LIU Hongwei, aged 52, has been an executive Director
since November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a non-
executive director of CuDECO Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (Stock Code:
CDU). He is also an executive director of China Tonghai
International Financial. Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Dalian Ocean University in July
1989 and a Master’'s degree in management from Massey
University in New Zealand in April 2006.
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Mr. ZHANG Xifang, aged 46, has been an executive
Director since August 2017. Mr. ZHANG is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a
director of Oceanwide Holdings and an executive director of
China Tonghai International Financial. He served as a head
of the operation division of the finance and asset
management department and a deputy director of the
finance and asset management department of State Grid
Corporation of China, a deputy general manager of State
Grid Asset Management Co., Ltd.*, a deputy general
manager of State Grid Yingda International Holdings Group
Co., Ltd.*, a general manager of Yingda Taihe Property
Insurance Co., Ltd.* and a chairman of Yingda Insurance
Asset Management Co., Ltd.*. Mr. ZHANG studied the
undergraduate programme of accounting at Central
University of Finance and Economics from September 1991
to June 1995 and obtained a Bachelor's degree of
economics. He also studied the programme of business
administration at Tsinghua University School of Economics
and Management from March 2006 to January 2009 and
received a Master’s degree in business administration.

Mr. LIU Guosheng, aged 50, has been an executive
Director since November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. He
accountant in the PRC. Mr. LIU is currently a chief financial
officer of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. LIU obtained a
Bachelor’'s degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi
University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Electronic Industry) in July 1991 and a Master’'s degree in
economics from Wuhan University in December 2008.

is a senior

Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, aged 48, has been a non-executive
Director since November 2014. Mr. ZHAO is also a member
of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) under the
Board. He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is
currently a deputy chairman of the supervisory committee of
Oceanwide Holdings,
committee of Minsheng Holdings and a non-executive
director of China Tonghai International Financial. Mr. ZHAO
previously served as an executive director of Oceanwide
Holdings. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in economics

the chairman of the supervisory

from Renmin University of China in January 1997 and a
Master’s degree in engineering from Beihang University in
January 2013.
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Mr. ZHANG Fubiao, aged 54, has been a non-executive
Director since March 2018. He previously served as a chief
financial officer of Minsheng Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd.*, a
chief financial officer, a deputy general manager and a chief
financial officer of Oceanwide Energy Investment Baotou
Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide Energy Investment Baotou”), a
deputy vice president and a risk management director of
Oceanwide Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide Energy
Holdings”), chief financial officer of Oceanwide Real Estate
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*, and a risk management
director of Oceanwide Power Holdings Co., Ltd.*
(“Oceanwide Power Holdings”). Mr. ZHANG is currently a
director of Oceanwide Power Holdings and a deputy
general manager of Oceanwide Energy Investment Baotou.
He is also a risk management director of Oceanwide
Energy Holdings as well as a deputy general manager and
a risk management director of Oceanwide Energy
Investment Baotou. He is an accountant holding a Master’s
degree in accounting from the Finance Academy of the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China in
July 1999.

Mr. LIU Jipeng, aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. He is also a
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. LIU is a senior economist and
certified public accountant in the PRC. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd., whose shares are dually listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1988) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600016), and China Tonghai
International Financial; an independent director of Zhongjin
Gold Corp., Ltd.*, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600489), and Chongqging
Changan Automobile Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000625). He
also previously served as an independent non-executive
director of Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 169)) (from 2013 to 2019)) and Dalian Wanda
Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (whose shares were
previously fisted on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
3699) and delisted in September 2016) (from 2012 to
2016)). Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in economics
from Capital University of Economics and Business
(formerly known as Beijing School of Economics) in July
1983 and a Master’'s degree in economics from Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in July
1986.
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Mr. CAIl Hongping, aged 64, has been an independent
non-executive Director since November 2014. He is also
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. CAI is
currently an independent non-executive director of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (whose shares are
dually listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 670) and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600115)) and
COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd.* (whose shares
are dually listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
2866) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
601866)). He previously served as an executive chairman of
corporate finance, Asia Pacific in Deutsche Bank. Mr. CAI
obtained an associate degree in journalism from Fudan
University in June 1988.

Mr. YAN Fashan, aged 67, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. Mr. YAN is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He is currently a professor in the
school
independent director of Penggi Technology Development
Co., Ltd.* (whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600614)). He obtained a Master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University in 1981 and a
Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from Fudan
University in June 1998.

of economics at Fudan University and an

Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy, aged 47, has been an independent
non-executive Director since November 2014. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. LO is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the CPA
Australia and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. LO is currently an
independent non-executive director of several companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, including
Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (Stock Code:
1335), Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
125), China Zhongwang Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1333), Xinming China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2699),
China Tonghai International Financial, Wan Kei Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1718) and G-Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1051). He also serves as a
managing director of Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited, a
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member of the Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
the executive vice-president and an executive council
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association. Mr. LO obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in business administration from University of Hong Kong in
November 1993 and a Master's degree in professional
accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2000.

Mr. WU Chen, aged 48, has been a deputy chief executive
officer of the Company since December 2014. Mr. WU is an
engineer in the PRC. He is currently the supervisor of
Oceanwide Holdings and previously served as the vice
president of Oceanwide Holdings. He obtained a Master’s
degree in business administration from Roosevelt University
in the U.S..

Mr. SHI Yuehong, aged 55, has been a risk control director
of the Company since December 2014. Mr. SHI is a senior
engineer. He holds a degree in construction engineering
from Tongji University.

Ms. WAN Wing Sze May, aged 42, has been a chief
financial officer of the Company since March 2015. Ms.
WAN joined the Company in January 2004. Ms. Wan holds
a Bachelor of business administration degree in accounting
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She has more than 19 years
of experience in auditing, accounting, financial management
and business control and has extensive experience in
corporate restructuring.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders its
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are property
investments in the PRC, real estate development in the U.S.
and the development in the energy sector in Indonesia as
well as finance investment and others. Particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the revenue and results by principal activities
and geographical locations of the operations of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 107 of this annual report.

No final dividend is recommended by the Board for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 23 May 2019, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 20 May 2019 to
Thursday, 23 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 8 to 19
and pages 20 to 30 of this annual report respectively.
Description of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
are disclosed in this annual report.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and
events that have taken place during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis from pages 20 to 30 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Particulars on the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity from pages
115 to 116 of this annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable
December 2018 calculated under the Companies Act of
Bermuda amounted to HK$109,045,000.

reserves of the Company as at 31

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the movements of properties, plant and

equipment, investment properties and properties under
development during the year are set out in Notes 17, 18
and 24 to

respectively.

the consolidated financial statements,

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group are set out
from pages 298 to 300 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

HAN Xiaosheng
LIU Bing

LIU Hongwei
ZHANG Xifang
LIU Guosheng

ZHAO Yingwei
ZHANG Fubiao

LIU Jipeng

CAIl Hongping
YAN Fashan
LO Wa Kei Roy

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Messrs.
HAN Xiaosheng, LIU Bing, LIU Hongwei and LIU Guosheng
shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out from pages 31 to

35 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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UPDATE ON DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations
from the Directors, the changes in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules subsequent to the date of the
Company’s 2018 interim report are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Change

R #% £ 38 B 3813.51B(1) 1% & #

BARARNGABEARSESEERE  BAA
A2018F R B 5 B HA 18 - BB E MR A E
1351B(IVEEWBEMNEFTE R 2 EBH T T

Esns

BEFR

HAN Xiaosheng
FREEAE

LIU Bing
21K

LIU Hongwei
2R R

ZHANG Xifang

wEIT

ZHAO Yingwei
AR

LIU Jipeng
242 15

Ceased to be chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings on 21
February 2019 and redesignated from executive director to chairman
of the supervisory committee of Oceanwide Holdings on 11 March
2019.

2019F2A21 B &1 B2 B R EH - W R2019F3 8118 2 B 1E
BRHITEENERESTSERE -

Ceased to be chairman of supervisory committee of Oceanwide
Holdings on 11 March 2019.
R2019F3AMBRIEHERZBIERESFSESR -

Ceased to be supervisor of Oceanwide Holdings on 11 March 2019.
R20195F3AMB R LHERZBERES -

Ceased to be executive vice president of Oceanwide Holdings on 11
March 2019.
20193 A1 B & IE HE R BIFRANITRIEE -

Re-designated from executive director to deputy chairman of the
supervisory committee of Oceanwide Holdings on 11 March 2019.

R2019F3AMBEBAZ BERATETRTAESTZIEZR -

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (whose shares are fisted on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 169)) on 21 March 2019.

20193 A2NBE B EBFB/EEHRBR DA (KR H R L (B
RS 169)) B IFRITEE -

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”) an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers that all of them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the businesses of
the Group, to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year and without
of compensation (other

payment than statutory

compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Directors had interests in the
following businesses (apart from the businesses of the
Company or its subsidiaries) conducted through the

companies named below, their subsidiaries, associated
companies or other investment forms which are considered
to compete or be likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the principal businesses of the Group
conducted during the year required to be disclosed as

follows pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

BEEnA

Name of Company
AEIECE:!

Position(s) of Director

EERN

ESNGHzER

FR|FRNTAEEILETMNHARRRL
HASEEBAREETNETHAERER
(THERSAHE) ZEREGHNFE -

ESZRBEEH

BRNBRRAFASLBRECNESHEER
AR EEAAAIR-—FALMNEECEAER
BRI MR L2 REEH -

ESNBEREBZER

FR-THEFETIAA  HHERA B
BARHEMBEL L E MRS EKA] e
EASEFAMKE I EEBERNHEER
REFZ TIERF(RARRREMEBRREH
BRON PR s - T ZAARIE L AR RISE8.10(2)
fER1F A TS B ER

Nature of Competing Business

HEREME

HAN Xiaosheng
BEE

China Oceanwide Holdings Group
REZBERE

Oceanwide Holdings

2 BRI

Executive Director

HITES

Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer

HITES B

Real estate investment
FHERE

Real estate development and
investment

FHERERRE
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Name of Director

Name of Company

Position(s) of Director

Nature of Competing Business

EEnR DEER EEHA BEEBLE
LIU Bing China Oceanwide Holdings Group Executive Director, Executive  Real estate investment
21k FEZEERER Vice President, Risk FiERE
Management Director
RITEFE HTEIER
B 4 1 48 B2
Oceanwide Holdings Chairman of Supervisory Real estate development and
2B R Committee investment
EESXR FHERERRE
LIU Hongwei China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Vice President Real estate investment
)3 REZEERERE R FHERE
Oceanwide Holdings Supervisor Real estate development and
7R EE investment

ZHANG Xifang

= 4

RKED

LIU Guosheng
27t

ZHAO Yingwei
BREE

Oceanwide Holdings

2 BRI

Oceanwide Holdings

2 BRI

China Oceanwide Holdings Group

REZEZREE

Oceanwide Holdings
2 BER

Director, Executive Vice
President

EX BR8N

Chief Financial Officer
BB E

Executive Director, Executive
Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer

WITES  WTRIAE

BERE

Executive Director

HBITES

FEREELE

Real estate development and
investment

FwEREELE

Real estate development and
investment

FHERERLRE

Real estate investment

FHERE

Real estate development and
investment

FEREELE

thiz iR HR LS 2018FE F£ 1R
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As the Board is independent of the boards of directors of
the above entities, the Group has been able to carry on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length with, the
above entities. Further, although the above entities are also
engaged in real estate development and investment, no
competition is considered to exist among members of the
Group (which focus on offshore investments) and the above
entities (which focus on onshore investments).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any
interest in a business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

ended 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated

The Directors’ emoluments for the year

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted on 19 May
2015, under which the Directors may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Shares, subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the participants (the “Participants”) with an opportunity
to obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.
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The Board may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), any employee (whether full-time or
part-time) and any consultant or adviser of or to the
Company or the Group (whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis and whether paid or
unpaid), who, in the absolute opinion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the Company or
the Group, as the Participants.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 19 May
2015), being 1,076,176,870 Shares.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of
grant unless approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting.

The subscription price shall be such price to be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the Participant in the offer and shall be at
least the higher of:

(a) the closing price per Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price per Share as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) consecutive business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value per Share.
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A period of time where the grantee may exercise the
option (the “Option Period”), which period in any
circumstances shall not be more than 10 years from
the offer date to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which the Option Period shall commence on
the offer date and expire on the last day of the Option
Period as determined by the Board.

Subject to the any condition or restriction in
connection with the exercise of the option which may
be imposed by the Board when granting the option
and the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the
option may be exercised by the grantee (or his or her
legal personal representative(s)) at any time during
the Option Period.

No option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme on or after the date of the tenth anniversary of
the date on which the Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional (the “Scheme Period”), but in respect of
all options which remain outstanding and exercisable on
the expiry of the Scheme Period, the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

No option had been granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme since its date of adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

RIGHTS ISSUE

No rights issues were conducted by the Company during the
year.

AERAATEBERENHR ([FHERERS
R BEEABRAT BEFTEREA
BRAMGHEL A BEF TN EB10F - M
BREMREEENEHESE YNE
EEETMBRENRRER -RER-

FEEF 2 n pE R BB AR B P e AN 1)
B RBITIE R B A0 R SR I M R A At
SRS T - AR A (HEEAERK
A I TA B B v A TR R B B 17 (68 R M

REBERE X ASEGFZARERSE +
BAFEZER(THHEHE) R 2R TBIRERE
Pt ot 813 AT (R B AR - HERL IO AT 81 HR
B m B D RITRE R AT Z A B A ig
ME - BRI ZGEH DA TN
K AER °

ARRERMEBEREAEZRE YERER
P i 5t B 1% BB A A o

R 3F 4ih £ thh 5

B b 3T B 1 ) | — B T R R 2 W AR AT
SN+ AR E BN RIS F R IT M2
4 89 15 7% -

353

FA-ARRE I EETTHA -

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 27 December 2018, the Company issued convertible
notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$600 million
with the initial conversion price of HK$0.71 per share
(subject to adjustment). For further details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 12, 20, 27 and
28 December 2018 and Note 30d to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from
the issue of the notes of HK$587.5 million have been
utilised in the following ways: (i) as to HK$556.5 million for
refinancing two loans advanced by licensed banks in Hong
Kong; (ii) as to HK$14.0 million for interest payment; and
(iii) as to approximately HK$13.3 million for the general
operating expenses.

As at the date of this annual report, the conversion right
attaching to the notes had not been exercised by the
noteholders.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in Note 30d to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations amounted to HK$784,000 (2017: HK$792,000)
were made by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACAQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which enables the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES IN THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and their respective associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Company’s own Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Securities Code”) were as follows:

ESNALEREABEEZR
fﬁéﬁﬁﬁ}]ﬁﬁ&%#qﬂZ*&ﬁ&

20185 12H31E  EE R EEZBCHEA
RARARREEBEZE(EERESLSRPEK
BIEXVER) 2 f&fh - MEARMRESFTHSE - I
EIREFES KHE G EXVEETRE8D & &
EAANARBRAMzERRAE (BEREE
FRPEHRNIZZEGRNESTHRANEEE
BHEZEZRKR)  KEIWALRRRIRIEES

REIEGHIE3525 8 EEF 2B ftAm - 3
BBEARFRNE 2 EEHITELFI DT EST
AI(TFEHTRDME AR MBIz R &
KEWT

Approximate%
of shareholding
in the Company

Number of (NN
Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held REZHBD
EEfE 6% EEHE FrERGOEE Bat
LIU Jipeng Beneficial owner Personal interest 9,212,000 0.06
2 42 g Em#EA A (PN £

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Name of Director

EEHR

HAN Xiaosheng
REEA

LIU Bing
21K

LIU Hongwei
2R

ZHANG Xifang
wEFT

LIU Guosheng
2 5 7+
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Capacity
&%

Beneficial owner
ExREAA

Beneficial owner

BERBEAA

Beneficial owner
ExREAA

Beneficial owner

BERBEAA

Beneficial owner
ExREAA

Nature of Interests

EEME

Personal interest

& A 21

Personal interest

(ERN:

Personal interest

& A 22

Personal interest

(EPN:

Personal interest

& A 22

Personal interest

ZHAO Yingwei Beneficial owner
HRE EmEA A (PN F

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018,
none of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company and their respective associates had any
other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Securities
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Number of Approximate%
ordinary shares of shareholding
in Oceanwide in Oceanwide

Holdings held Holdings
FigzaER MREBERKRE
EER#E ZHABE D
3,500,000 0.06

90,000 0.001

30,000 0.0005

276,000 0.005

400,000 0.007

200,000 0.003
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND

OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December
2018, the following persons had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in {§
the register required to be kept by the Company under =~

N

J

Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange:

XVIERE2R 53

A) R B R

MESZFA > 20185128318 » T A LR
RO KRR DR EERBEES NP E KRGS

FERRERHEMA TG X EE
fetn 2= RiRE

77

D EZAEAR AR E R 2
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions #H AR @ K2 AR R G BIZE S M E &

E3BHETFE 2B LMEUAEM T MG R
" FrZmBORR -

Approximate%
of shareholding

Number of in the Company

Name Capacity Shares held {EADFREZ

neE/ 4B &4 FERGEE BHES T

LU Zhigiang Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
&5 THEE AR R (Note 1)
(P 5E1)

HUANG Qiongzi Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
BEZ XEEI AR ER (Note 1)
(BiFEE1)

Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
BEERARRDA REHDAZER (Note 2)
(M 5F2)

Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
ZEEEARRA REHRR (Note 3)
(P 5E3)

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
B BEREE bk |NCI o (Note 3)
(PiF5E3)

Oceanwide Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
2 BER REHAR R (Note 4)
(Pft 3%4)
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Approximate%
of shareholding

Number of in the Company

Name Capacity Shares held EARAFRKREZ

wnE/ 8 L FERBEE BAEIL

China Oceanwide Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,098,515,178 74.95
Hiz&E 2k N oy (Note 5)
(Ff3E5)

Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd  Beneficial owner 11,267,476,178 69.80
WBEREBR AR A A EnBEBA (Note 5)
(KF3E5)

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled corporations  10,245,856,608 63.47
BBEHEBRNERA A SRR NI (Note 6)
(Kf3Ee6)

Haitong International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 10,245,856,608 63.47
BBEERERERA A corporations (Note 7)
Sk | NI £ (B 5E7)

Haitong International Securities Group Interest of controlled 10,245,856,608 63.47
Limited corporations (Note 7)
BEEREASEARAA ZEH AR = (B 5%7)

Haitong International Financial Solutions Security interest in Shares 9,002,697,108 55.78
Limited BB RMDOIREE D (Note 8)
BEERSRRBER AR (B 3x8)

Haitong International Financial Products Beneficial owner 830,985,500 5.15
Limited EnEB A (Note 8)
BERERERERERAA (B 5x8)

Notes:

1) Mr. LU Zhigiang and Ms. HUANG Qiongzi (spouse of Mr. LU Zhigiang) 1)
together held more than one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LU
Zhigiang and Ms. HUANG Qiongzi were deemed to be interested in
all the Shares in which Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* is interested.

(2) Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* held 100% interest in the entire issued (2)
share capital of Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO,
Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* was deemed to be interested in all the
Shares in which Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* was interested.

B

BEREEREBELT (BEREEZRE) A 1HH
ERSERARANREAR FBBE=H Y — 2 BER
B RS R E D BEREEREREL L
WOR ARG R R A A A 2 A R 0 o
B

BEZERERATNFAZESEERAREHNE HIT
PEAHI100%H# 55 © RIFFE 5 R AGKD - BEREEE
RARBEGERANZEEEERARDFEERRZMAR
DAz -

thiz iR HR LS 2018FE F£ 1R
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(©)

4)

()

(6)

(7

(8)

Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* held 98% interest in the issued share
capital of China Oceanwide Holdings Group. By virtue of the SFO,
Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* was deemed to be interested in all the
Shares in which China Oceanwide Holdings Group was interested.

China Oceanwide Holdings Group directly and indirectly held 68.49%
interest in the issued share capital of Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue
of the SFO, China Oceanwide Holdings Group was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Oceanwide Holdings was
interested.

Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd, Oceanwide Holdings
International Finance Limited and Oceanwide Real Estate
International Company Limited are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of
China Oceanwide Group, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, China Oceanwide
Group and Oceanwide Holdings were deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 12,098,515,178 Shares, including: (i) 11,267,476,178
Shares held by Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd; (ii)
751,500,000 Shares held by Oceanwide Holdings International
Finance Limited; and (iii) 79,539,000 Shares held by Oceanwide Real
Estate International Company Limited. Oceanwide Holdings
International Co., Ltd and Oceanwide Holdings International Finance
Limited have charged 8,251,197,108 Shares and 751,500,000 Shares
respectively in favour of Haitong International Financial Solutions
Limited for a loan facility. Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd.
has also charged 3,016,279,070 Shares in favour of China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch in order to secure the
obligations of China Tonghai International Financial Limited (“CTIF”,
formerly known as China Oceanwide International Financial Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 952)),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings, under a credit
facility.

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd held 100% interest in the issued share
capital of Haitong International Holdings Limited. By virtue of the
SFO, Haitong Securities Co., Ltd was deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Haitong International Holdings Limited was
interested.

Haitong International Holdings Limited indirectly held 63.47% interest
in the issued share capital of Haitong International Securities Group
Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong International Holdings Limited
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Haitong
International Securities Group Limited was interested.

Haitong International Financial Solutions Limited and Haitong
International Financial Products Limited are the indirect subsidiaries
of Haitong International Securities Group Limited. By virtue of the
SFO, Haitong International Securities Group Limited was deemed to
be interested in (i) 9,002,697,108 Shares in which Haitong
International Financial Solutions Limited had security interest and; (ii)
830,985,500 Shares beneficially owned by Haitong International
Financial Products Limited.

(©)

4)

()

6)

)

®)

ZEEEARAARATEIEEREBEBTRA
08% M 35 - 1B IEE B R DI 2 S EEARA A
AR AT EZ R S G M R 2 A MR 05 o B
B -

TEZEEREEEREREFAZERREEITR
A68.49% # i - RIFE H R E G R BZIEER
SEREANZEERAERELMAERD T HAE

3¢

5 °

CERERERERAR  EERERSRARA A
kZBREEBRERAARATZEEZZENBA
Al MAPZEBRIAZEERZ2EWBRR - RIE
BERBEGED  PREBERZEZERBEANE
12,098,515,178% & h #E A i o - B1E © (i) 2 8 1%
A% B R B PR A )35 B #911,267,476,1 78 A% 15 ¢ (ii) 72
1 R B R 5 B A BR A B4 A #9751,500,000% ik 15
% (i) 28 ERBEB AR A R EE 79,539,000/ A%
o BERBEERARRSFERERSRAR
ANRIPL—EEREE 5 55 198,251,197,108[% i (1 K&
751,500,0000% i 19 ¥ /8 BB @ BARBBR R E] <2
8 R IR B B A BR R A 3P K 4813,016,279,0708% % 15 T R
BERERTRODARARETAST  UWERZEER
W2 EMBARFEBEHE AR AR ([FE
BEEESR] AMBPEZEERSRERAR
AR AT BT (B A5 952)) BT — B &R
BETHEL-

BBREZRNBRARSESAERZERERAFLD
BITARA100%E 5 - RIFESZ RHE G - BBES
Bt ARABRE /NG BERERERDEERE
EOMBRND SRS -

BRERERERARAMEFAEREREFEEE
BRARE BHITRA6347% e - RIBEFESF R E K
Pl BBEEBRERARATARELSNEEERESE
EERAREEEGNAEROTHEEER -

BEEESRREERARMEIRERSRERAR
AREASRERESFEEERARMMEENB AR -
BEEHFRBERY  GRERESFEEERAAE
BAE G NVEBEECRREERARAELREES
#99,002,697,108% f% 17 K (i) BBBEEELMEME
[R A &) B 25 % 5 #9830,985,5000% 19 7 ## A #E 25 ©

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there
was no other person who held interests and/or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which was
required, to be entered in the register to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or was a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS

RELATED PARTY

Details of material related party transactions entered by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, of
which (a) the transactions summarised in Note 37a(iii),
b(i)(1)&(iv), c(i), d(ii) and e(i) constituted non-exempted
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules
and the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules; and
(b) the transactions summarised in Note 37a(i) to (ii), b(i)
(2) to (iii), d(i) and e(ii) constituted continuing connected
transactions which are fully exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14.76(1) of

the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered by the Group during the year are

required to be disclosed in this annual report:

B b SCPT B2 B8 & 4h - 02018512311 - &
HATHERDKBBEBROTHERAIALE
7 R EIE RO EXVE £33615% 7 & 2 B 5L fit 1
Bak/ SKE IREARREERR -

EXRABAERXS

RNEBNRE E2018F12A31B I FEFI Y2 &
KRB AR SH NG E B R E M 37 - B
(a) BY #E37a(iii) ~ b(i)(1) K (iv) * c(i) ~ d(i) Ze(i)
WMl o XGEX ETHRNBT 2 TN EREFE
MERS  ANARESIES EWHRAE M
AEIA T HE AT & (b) K 5Z37ai) 2 (i)
b(i)(2)Z (iii) ~ d(i) Me(i) B it 2 2 5 # K E R
ERG  BRERMEET EMAEINE14.76(1)K
BT2HE FEHEZ AHRBILRRME
BIE o

FAEXSRIFEMEXS

B ETRASHRASRE  ARERERE
TRATHESR S RAEBER HARKFH
P

hiz iR ERAE 2018F F 3R

51



52

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide
Investment

International
Company Limited (“China Oceanwide
International Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Oceanwide Holdings Group, which in turn is the
controlling shareholder of Oceanwide Holdings, entered into
a consulting services agreement (the “Consulting Services
Agreement”’) with China Oceanwide Power Co., Limited
(“China Oceanwide Power”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, pursuant to which China Oceanwide
International Investment shall provide consultancy services
for the two coal fuel steam power plant facilities with net
capacity of 150 megawatt (“MW”) each developed by PT.
Mabar Elektrindo (“PT Mabar”),

subsidiary of the Company, in the Medan Industrial Area,

a non-wholly owned

North Sumatra, Indonesia (the “Medan Project”) to China
Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar and assist China
Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar in the financing and
insurance arrangement in respect of the Medan Project and
to assist the development of PT Mabar.

Subject to China Oceanwide International Investment
successfully assisting China Oceanwide Power or PT Mabar
in securing a loan facility of not less than US$400,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,133.1 million) from the
relevant banks or financial institutes during the course of
providing the above consultancy services, China Oceanwide
Power agreed to pay a service fee of not more than
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.8 million)
(exclusive of tax) (the “Service Fee”) to China Oceanwide
International Investment.

The Consulting Services Agreement had expired on 29
December 2017 and a supplemental agreement to
Consulting Services Agreement was entered into between
China Oceanwide International Investment and China
Oceanwide Power on 1 February 2018 to extend the
service period of China Oceanwide International Investment
to 31 January 2021.

2015512 H308 28 ZE R A IE IR AR SR A B2
HIERERNZ2ENBARTPBRZBEEERE
ERAT(FEZEHABEE])EARNANE
BWMBRRIFEZEENERAA(HEZE
BAHDRI v HARBHE((FARSHBED -
Bt PEZBBBEREARARNTNIELE
B & X B]PT. Mabar Elektrindo ([ PT MabarJ)
RENFE b &R P2 I & 15 30 T3 1= 5 38 2 R R MR
HAEREEMEE (B FEL /150K E) ([18
MIEE ) RFAEZEE NPT Mabariz {5574
fR7 - WHEMBEIEENRERRBLHETEB
B B2 8 E S EPT Mabar » AN %813 EPT
Mabar °

MEFRBRZEEEERENREMHERF
ARG BIEPRKN B P EZEE S HPT
Mabar8 B IR Tk ME BB T LR
400,000,0003% 7T, (#H % 7 4978 #531.33118 70) 19
ER@E AR EZEENRERFEZEEH
ST B X #8181,000,0003 T (FEE R B
B780& L) (TEEMRE)MREE ((REE]) -

AR 7S W52 20176125298 & i © 20184
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HERRS TR Z2021F18318 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

During the year, nil fee was paid by China Oceanwide
Power under the Consulting Services Agreement (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreement).

On 30 July 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Oceanwide Sigma Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Oceanwide International
Investment owned via a fund where a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Oceanwide International Investment is
the general partner, for disposal of its entire equity interest
Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which owned

in China Oceanwide International the former
equity interest in an unlisted company (the “Unlisted
Company”) at a consideration of US$12.8 million (the

“Consideration”).

Completion of the disposal has taken place simultaneously
with the signing of the agreement. As at 31 December
2018, the equity interests in the Unlisted Company were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss in these annual financial statements and the Group has
recognised net fair value gains of HK$100.5 million on
revaluation of investment in the Unlisted Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 with reference to the
Consideration. For refer to the

details, please

announcement of the Company dated 30 July 2018.

On 18 January 2015, PT. China Oceanwide Indonesia (“PT
COI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Oceanwide
International Investment and PT Mabar entered into an
apartment lease agreement pursuant to which PT Mabar
agreed to lease certain apartments located in JIn. Senopati
Raya No. 44, Jakarta Selatan from 1 February 2015 to 31
December 2017.

FA- PEZEEN L EREE MRS (K
AR X ERMEM -
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On 18 May 2015, PT COIl and PT Mabar entered into an
office lease agreement pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed
to lease certain office space in JI. KH. Mas
Mansyur Kav. 126, Jakarta 12920-Indonesia from 1 June
2015 to 31 December 2017.

located

On 18 June 2015, PT COIl and PT Mabar entered into an
apartment lease agreement pursuant to which PT Mabar
agreed to lease certain apartments located in JIn. Senopati
Raya No. 44, Jakarta Selatan from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2017 (together with the above apartment lease
agreement and office

lease agreement, the “Expired

Agreements”).

On 29 December 2017, PT COIl and PT Mabar entered into
a renewed apartment lease agreement and a renewed
office lease agreement (collectively the “Renewed
Agreements”) to renew the Expired Agreements for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31

December 2020.

The maximum aggregate amount of rent payable by PT
Mabar under the Renewed Agreements, determined based
on the annual rent stated in the Renewed Agreements is
IDR12,479,544,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6.8
million, excluding value added tax (“VAT”), other fees and
utility bills) for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2020.

The annual cap under the Renewed Agreements was
determined between PT COIl and PT Mabar after arm’s
length negotiation on normal commercial terms, taking into
account the location of the relevant properties, the term of
the Renewed Agreements, the market rates and conditions,
and the historical annual rental amounts under the Expired
Agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the rent paid by
PT Mabar under the Renewed Agreements was
IDR12,479,544,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6.8
million).

201555H18H * PT COIfEPT Mabarz] 37 i A
=HE W - Bt - PT Mabar[F Z 7 AR
KH. Mas Mansyur Kav. 126, Jakarta
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On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender and
Shanghai Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd* (“SEPC”,
which held 20% equity interest in PT Mabar, together with
PT. Shanghai Electric Power (“PT SEPC”), collectively the
“SEPC Group”) as borrower entered into a loan agreement
pursuant to which China Oceanwide Power agreed to make
available a loan in the principal amount of up to
US$3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27.4 million)
at an interest rate equivalent to the rate of expected
average financing cost for the power plant project
developed by PT Mabar to SEPC. The purpose of this loan
was to provide SEPC with funds to make capital
contribution into PT Mabar in proportion to its 20% equity
interest. The loan shall be repaid when SEPC obtains the
approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of
the PRC (“SAFE”) for the transfer of its capital overseas.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, SEPC has
repaid the loan with the approval of SAFE. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, no interest income was incurred.
As at 31 December 2018, the interest receivable of the loan
was approximately US$531,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.2 million).

On 23 December 2013, PT Mabar as employer and SEPC as
contractor entered into a master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) pursuant to which PT Mabar engaged SEPC to
provide all materials, parts, equipment and construction
equipment, transportation to sites (including customs
clearance) and other labour services and to perform all
works, activities and services on a fixed lump sum turnkey
basis for the design, engineering, procurement, construction,
commissioning, testing and completion of, and making good
of defects in relation to the power plant facilities of the
Medan Project. The Master Agreement was renewed twice
on 23 November 2015 and 8 June 2017 respectively, the
consideration was US$431,930,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$3,383.3 million). For further

renewed total

details, please refer to 2017 annual report of the Company.
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During the year, the amount paid by PT Mabar under the
aforesaid agreements was US$15,093,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$118.2 million).

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender
entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with
PT. Garda Sayap Garuda (“GSG”, which held 20% equity
interest in PT Mabar) as borrower, making available a loan
(the “Loan”) in the principal amount of the lower of: (i)
US$22,442,400
million); or (ii) the amount equivalent to the face value of
20% of the total registered capital of PT Mabar, at an
interest rate equivalent to the financing interest rate of the

(equivalent to approximately HK$175.8

Medan Project. GSG also pledged all the shares it owned in
PT Mabar (i.e. 20% equity interest in PT Mabar), to China
Oceanwide Power as security to guarantee the Loan.

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide Power and GSG
entered into a supplemental loan agreement pursuant to
which the parties agreed to revise, among others, (i) the
principal amount of the Loan to US$28,353,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$222.1 million); (ii) the loan period to
three years commencing from the date of the Loan
Agreement; and (iii) the interest rate equivalent to the
financing interest rate (including but not limited to upfront
fee, commitment fee, loan arrangement fee, bank advisory,
agency and management fee etc.) of the Medan Project.

On 12 May 2017, China Oceanwide Power and GSG
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to renew the Loan Agreement for a term
commencing from 17 May 2017 to 31 December 2019.

For further details, please refer to the 2017 annual report of
the Company.

F A > PT MabariR & £ il 17 3% P S BV RIB
15,093,000 7T, (1055 70 498 #1.18218 7T) °

2014565148 - FRZBENHERERA)
HIPT. Garda Sayap Garuda([GSG ] #&#H
PT Mabar 20% % #) ({fE BB K A) E] L E 1%
H(ERBZED PREFTZERDNA S
AN TRIEE A% (i) 22,442,400% 7T
(FBER QB E1.758/E 7T) ¢ 2 (i) HERPT
Mabarzt filt & 7~ 8 5820% M) E (B € &8 + i A &
MERBHEBEENREFNE - GSGII K H T
APT Mabarz 81 (BIPT Mabar 20% A% )
ERTFHREZEEN  ERERZEXKERF

[}
on °

20155 12H308 * B2 /8E /J B1GSGE] AL 18
FERBE - B AN REBE (AR EIE)
(i) ZEF B K% 4% 528,353,000% T (FHHER
W2 2218 L) 5 (il) ERHIR BB ER %
HERRE =4 K(il) IEXHERNBHELE W
BMEME(BEETRAEBENE - E#HE EX
ZHE RITHA REREEEBE)-

2017958128 » REZ /S E HEGSGE M 7T
E(HRRE]) UEEEZ WS 8 h
20175 A17H £ £2019F12 8318 |k o

BN A T12017E F 4 -

W

T
e
]_j‘_\t\l;
™

E=113

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The annual caps under the Loan Agreement are set out as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B £2016F12A31A LFE

us$

7T

31,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$246.7 million)

(IR F R 4078 52.467(8 7T

The annual caps under the Loan Agreement were determined
with reference to the principal amount of the Loan and based
on the assumption that GSG would borrow up to
US$28,353,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$222.1 million)
for each of the above periods.

The annual caps under the Supplemental Agreement are set
out as follows:

For the period

from 17 May 2017 to
31 December 2017
H201755817THEE
20175128318 L HI [
Uss$

ETT

33,500,000

(equivalent to approximately
HK$262.4 million)
(HERWEE

2.624187C

The annual caps under the Supplemental Agreement were
determined with reference to (i) the historical transaction
amounts under the Loan Agreement; (ii) the principal amount
interest rate under the
Supplemental Agreement; and (iii) the assumption that GSG
will borrow up to US$28,353,000 (equivalent to approximately

of the Loan and the annual

HK$222.1 million) for each of the above periods.

For the year ended
31 December 2018

(equivalent to approximately

ERMERTOFEE LRFEIMT

For the period from

1 January 2017 to 14 May 2017
H2017F1A18 £ Z£2017F5H8148 L5 H
us$

ETT

32,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$254.6 million)
(HBE R L #2546 T

EXMEETNFELRIKEZ2BER LA S
ENERBRGSGER Ll S HEEAZS
28,353,000 jt (FHE R 478 222118 0) m &
E o

MAMBRTZFELREINMT :

For the year ending
31 December 2019

H £2018%F B Z£20194F
12A31B L& E 12A31B LEE
us$ Us$

Ep ED
35,500,000 37,500,000

(equivalent to approximately
HK$293.7 million)
(HERWEE

2.937(8 7T

HK$278.1 million)
(HEEROBE
2.7811E7T

HWaAMBEETIZ2EELRDIELR () BEXH
BETZEEXRZ8: (i) BERZ2AS 8B R
WARBEET Z2FMNE : & (i) BRCSGHR
bl & B RS A B %£28,353,000% T (BSR4
B2 22180 MEE -

20184F F 3R
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During the year, an interest income (before discounting) of
approximately US$1,985,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15.5 million) was accrued by China Oceanwide Power.
As at 31 December 2018,
receivable (before discounting) of the Loan was
US$35,011,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$274.2
million).

the principal and interest

On 21 September 2017, the Company entered into a
framework services agreement (the “Framework Services
Agreement”) with CTIF. Pursuant to the Framework
Services Agreement, the Company and CTIF have
conditionally agreed to engage in various services
transactions, and investment and lending transactions with
each other for the period from 20 November 2017 to 31
December 2019. Oceanwide Holdings is the controlling

shareholder of both the Company and CTIF.

The annual caps for the period from 20 November 2017 to
31 December 2017 and for the two financial years ended
31 December 2018 and ending 31 December 2019 are
shown below:

FR-PEZEENREF KA (BER A L
1,985,000 7T (18 5 54 #9 % #51,5508 7T) - R
2018128318 * ZEFMN A& K EUF] S (B
IR A1) A35,011,0003 JT (18 & 7 4978 #2.74218
TT) °

20175F9H218 » A Al EEG R € EE]
VIEERBHE(ERKRSEHZE] - BIEREZR
R HaE AAREPEBGEES/ME K
B B It 2 R 82017411 208 #£ £20194F
12A31B LI ETE TRERSEKERE
KRG BERARNARRFEBEEES
Bh A9 AR AR R o

A2017511 208 £2017F12 A31B S A K &
7201812 A31 8 K&20195E12 A31 8 1M AR I
FEMNTFELRIIBHOT

For the period from

20 November 2017 to Year ended Year ending
31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
Type of transactions B2017F11 20 £ E HZE20185F BZE20195
REEH 2017512A318 LH 1NANBLEE 12ANBLEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBRET BEBET BEBEET
(1) Service transactions BE X 3
(@) Income from service transactions provided to 0.5 5 5
CTIF and its group companies (collectively,
“CTIF Group”) (including ancillary services)
mPEREERERERAETEAR (SHEF
ERERReREE) RECRBERS (B
RERY) 2 W
(b) Expenses for service transactions provided by 6.5 65 65

CTIF Group (including ancillary services)
RrEEEEREREERRNRER S
(BREERB)ZER
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For the period from

20 November 2017 to Year ended Year ending
31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
Type of transactions H2017F118208EE EHZ20185F BZ2019F
XEEE 2017F12A31B LA 12AMALFE 12AMALEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEBET BEBEETL
(2) Investment and lending transactions
RENERXS
(a) Maximum daily amount/outstanding balance 100 200 200
for investment transactions provided to CTIF
Group
[ 2 Ii_iiﬁ’f TREERENRERSHZ
R r—J %E/h 5'535 TL
(b) MaX|mum daily amount/outstanding balance for
lending and underwriting transactions
provided by CTIF Group
ATERSEReREERENERRAH
RHZBERBAGE/MALHE
— Financial assistance 81 7% & Bf 300 300 300
— Underwriting £ 84 — 200 200
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company R & E2018F12A31H It FE AR E Rt &Y

accrued (i) a

sub-underwriting service fee of HK$100,000;

interest expense of HK$20,584,000. As at 31 December
2018, the principal and interest payable of the loans from [& f

CTIF Group were HK$288,734,000.

loan service fee of HK$100,000;
corporate finance advisory service fee of HK$100,000; (iii) a

and (iv) an

7'[:0

(i) a HE

AR B A% %100,0007T
[ & &7 ¥100,0007T ; (iii)
100,0007T : K (iv) 7!

(i XEmE

DEERGE BB
B X A B 20,584,000
JC ° 72018512 A31H  F A EHE &

It
B A

B

oA & K RS S8 #288,734,000

thiz iR HR LS 2018FE F£ 1R
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The INEDs have
connected transactions and confirmed that (other than those

reviewed the aforesaid continuing

expressly stated otherwise and separate compliance
procedures have been conducted), the transactions have
been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited (“BDO”), the Company’s auditor, were engaged
to report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. BDO will issue their unqualified letter containing

issued by the Hong Kong

their findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the letter will be
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

FREREXINFEREEZ

BYFATEFCERN LASERERS X
BRMRAZAITAREETEBSRIEFEIN
PR

ZER

1. RAKEAER-—REBBEBFTL:

2. B-RAEARGAIEEGRETL: &
3. WREREZXFXRIZIBAGRMEIL - R
ZHERRNFEE  YAFERROERET

o

E>\<

ARAZEMEBELERREAMEBAER
RA(IZEREDEZEURREBSFMA
SR AE B ERE XK ERIFI0005 [ FFFZX
EHBEMBENZERTTHE] AR EEKH
BREE74057 (RN &8 MR B FTl #5 B RAE R
SEBRBEE] - R LR FERERZELR
& MERERRE LT R B E14A560% A&

EREBRHM ERHAERY LMSERE
RHMNBEESHERMEGR - ARAHELZ KT
BIAK 2B~
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 24 November 2016, China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development V Limited (the “COREDV”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the purchaser of three
parcels of land in Hawaii (the “Project”) as announced on 19
August 2016 and 19 September 2016, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement with a licensed bank in Hong Kong
relating to a US$300 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,349.9 million) facility. The facility has a term of one
year and COREDV can opt to extend for another one year
within 14 days prior to the maturity of a standby letter of
credit provided by Oceanwide Holdings. The purpose of the
facility is to refinance the investment in the Project and to
finance its further investment.

As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings,
the controlling Shareholder, shall procure the issuance of a
standby letter of credit (in an amount equivalent to the
outstanding loan amount or more) in favour of the bank as
security for the Facility, the breach of which the outstanding
loan amount of the Facility is repayable in full on demand by
the bank.

As at the date of this annual report, the loan was fully
repaid and the facility was not renewed.

On 11 February 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with a licensed bank in Hong Kong relating to a
US$200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,566.6
million) facility. The facility has a term of one year or 14
days prior to the maturity of the standby letter of credit
provided by Oceanwide Holdings. The purpose of the
facility is to repay the shareholders’ loan owed to China
Oceanwide Group, an intermediate holding company of the
Company.

R EHRBISE13. 2105 E I =
ST

2016F 118248 AR M2 EWB AR F 2
EHEREEFAERAA(RZEHERESE
Al BNRERENZRBIbE (BB 2 E
77 (3 201648 A 198 F20164F9 78198 FT A
MIEREBRAE—EBEERBRITHIEET
(IHER LB B23.499E L) B E AT gb &
FOREMEMNBRA—F HhXEMERE
FERARNZEERALENEREAZINRAF4
HAREBETER—F ZEMESEEMRZER
MIRERIE THHE-TRERB‘EER -

ZEBMENEP -BEFRERERZEER
ARHBTUARTARBEANERERRZ (2
BHEFNAZRHARERESBIIERZERE
MR MBER  ABERTRHBEREXS
BEEZEREETNHRERESHE -

RAFHRBEH ZEERDTH
MEYEES-

i
Al
=
=1l
Ny
i

20182 A11B - R A G H—EEBFERITH
2BE T (FHE R 4B #15.6661E 7T) KR E 7] 3L
BMEWZE ZERMENHR A —FHZEER
RO ERERIEINHAN4E - ZEMENA
BARNARNTNPNZERAFTRCEEEE —
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As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings
shall procure the issuance of a standby letter of credit
(equivalent to the outstanding loan amount or more) in favour
of the bank as security for the facility, the breach of which
the outstanding loan amount of the facility is repayable in
full on demand by the bank.

As at the date of this annual report, the loan was fully
repaid and the facility was not renewed.

On 23 July 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with a licensed bank in Macau relating to a
HK$784,669,900 facility. The facility has a term of one year.
The purpose of the facility is to fund the coal fuel steam
power project in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia.

As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings

shall procure interests

(equivalent to the outstanding loan amount or more) in the

its savings and respective
bank as security for the facility, the breach of which the
outstanding loan amount of the facility is repayable in full on
demand by the bank.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on Oceanwide Holdings
continued to exist.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duties in their offices.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
throughout the year and is still in force. In addition, the
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for the directors and officers of the Group.

ZRMEMEP —HRFRZEBERARET
MRIT AR ANBERERRE(EEEERH
ZRHRERERIIFLAZBENER  WEE
R-BIZBERTREERBEEZBREEZRER
THRREREHE -

RAFEHRAH ZEERCBHEE
AW EmER -

201847 H23H - A A R B — BRI BRITH
— I8 5 784,669,900 T H) Bt & 7] M B & 155 % o
ZERMEMNHBRA—F ZMEMNABEAHRE
MELIEENREEZAIEERBEREES -

ZRENEFR -HEFRZEBERARENE
RIBITHHEF A LERNE (SEHEAERK
ZRHRERSB)ERZBRENER  H&
R-AIZBERTREBEREEHEEZRER
THHRRERSHE -

RAFHRAH Ll inn 2 8RR E R
WMBETRERE-

¥ 5 5 45 15 3L
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there had been no significant change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Notes 30 and 37h to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the listed securities
of the Company. In addition, the Company has not redeemed
any of its listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 297 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group is set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEXH

FAARBANBEEXHLBEBEREH -

B&
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December
2018 attributable to the major customers of the Group were
as follows:

FTEERTIMER

H ZE2018F12A31MB Lt FE - AEE X EBEEF
HAEEKA(TREEMNEMBEERIT) NE D
LT

Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

EEEER

BEANBEI L

The largest customer A &E F 20.1%
Five largest customers in aggregate i A& F & &t 41.3%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the major customers noted above.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has

not made any purchases other than incurring rental

outgoings and overhead expenses.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float in compliance with the requirement
of the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of
this annual report.

BEEEHARENTAHEARTARR(E
EFEMAREARAIEBRITHRANBBES% )N £
MEBEPHHEE TR -

HE2018F12A3MHIEFE  BREAHEEEX
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DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
INITIATIVES

The Company’s corporate governance practices during the
year are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 66 to 92 of this annual report. The Group’s
environmental and social initiatives during the year are set
out in the Social Responsibility Report which is available at
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTION BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Securities Code regulating
Directors’ dealings in securities of the Company, on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of the Model
Code. In response to specific enquiries made, all the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Securities Code and the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements for event after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as auditor of
the Company with effect from 22 February 2019. The Board
had, with the recommendation of the audit committee under
the Board, appointed BDO as auditor of the Company to fill
the casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC with
effect from 22 February 2019 and to hold office until the
conclusion of the AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by BDO.
A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three
years.

By Order of the Board

Han Xiaosheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group as it believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to safeguarding
interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders and
enhancing shareholders’ value. To this end, the Board and
our management make continuous effort to reinforce our
standards of corporate governance with emphasis on
independence, effective internal control, transparency and

accountability to the Shareholders.

The Company has complied during the year ended
31 December 2018 with all applicable code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations which are
explained below:

CODE PROVISION A.21

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Han Xiaosheng currently performs the two roles of the
Company’s chief executive officer and chairman of the
Board. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership with the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers that
the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decision
promptly and efficiently. The Board will regularly review the
effectiveness of this structure to ensure that such structure
is appropriate
circumstances.

in view of the Company’s prevailing

EXELSER
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CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should,
inter alia, attend general meetings.

Due to other business engagement, Messrs. Liu Jipeng and
Cai Hongping, the INEDs, and Mr. Zhao Yingwei, the non-
executive Director, did not attend the 2018 annual general
meeting (the “2018 AGM”) of the Company held on 17 May
2018. The other non-executive Directors and INEDs were
present at the meeting to enable the Board to develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders.

CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to

attend.

Due to other business engagement, Mr. Liu Jipeng, a
chairman of audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) under
the Board and Mr. Cai
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
under the Board, did not attend the 2018 AGM.

Hongping, a chairman of

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTION BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) regulating
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code.
In response to specific enquiries made, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Securities Code
and the Model Code
31 December 2018.

throughout the year ended

= IR 3LA.6.7
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and four INEDs.

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors
are well-versed in respective areas such as accounting and
finance, business management and industry knowledge and
the Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of
skills and experience. The Directors’ biographical details are
set out from pages 31 to 35 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no
financial or family relationship among the Board members.
All of them are free to exercise their independent judgment
on all matters concerning the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and as an essential element in
maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development
of the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be
based on merits against objective criteria and with due
regards for benefits and balance of diversity on the Board.
The Board diversity will be considered in terms of, among
other things, gender, age, professional experience and
qualifications and educational and cultural background, and
(the
“Nomination Committee”) under the Board may consider

any other factors that the nomination committee

relevant and applicable from time to time towards
complementing and extending the skills, know-how and
experience of the Board.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the
Group’s strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put
them into effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance
of the Group and are accountable to the Shareholders. To
maximise the effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the
Board has delegated management and administration of the
Group’s daily operations to the executive Directors and the
management (the “Management”) while reserving several
important matters for its approval. To this end, the Board
has adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”) laying
down the division of functions between the Board and the
Management.

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the
Board and the Management are summarised as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining/approving the overall strategy and annual
operating budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policy matters of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to
ensure that the business operations of the Group are
properly planned, authorised and undertaken; and

4. overseeing the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems at least
annually.

The duties of the Management mainly include the following
aspects:

1. is vested with all general powers of management and
control as are vested in the Directors, save and
except for those that may specifically be reserved by
the Board and/or the Board committees for decision
and implementation; or those that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the Listing Rules,
the Bye-laws and/or the terms of reference of the
Board Committees;
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2. is authorised to perform all acts as may be performed
by the Directors, save and except for those that may
only be performed by the Board pursuant to the
Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws, the Listing
Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs;

3. is empowered to implement policies/measures for

business activities, internal control, risk management

and corporate governance of the Group; and

4, is empowered to implement any other matters as
assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

The Board has assessed the independence of INEDs and
considers all of them to be independent having regard to (i)
their annual confirmations on independence as required under
the Listing Rules, (ii) the absence of involvement in the daily
management of the Company and (iii) the absence of any
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment. Throughout the year,
the number of INEDs on the Board meets the one-third
requirement under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years, subject to renewal and re-election as and when
required under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. However,
any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company, or in the case of an additional
appointment, until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company, and shall be eligible for re-election at the
relevant general meeting. All the Directors are subject to
retirement from office and shall be eligible for re-election at
the annual general meetings at least once every three years
in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors as
required under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules
and regulations.

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year
with meeting dates scheduled prior to the beginning of the
year. Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to Directors, on a regular basis, monthly
updates and other information with respect to the
performance, and business activities and development of the
Group. Throughout the year, the Directors participated in the
deliberation and approval of routine and operational matters
of the Company by way of written resolutions with supporting
explanatory materials, supplemented by additional verbal and/
or written information from the Company Secretary or other
executives as and when required. Details of material
transactions of subsidiaries are provided to the Directors as
appropriate. Whenever warranted, additional Board meetings
are held. In addition, the Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional
advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors and they are at liberty to propose appropriate

matters for inclusion in Board agendas.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
receive written notice of the meeting generally about a month
in advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than three days prior to the meeting. For other
meetings, Directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for
those circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and the
Listing Rules, a Director who has a material interest in any
contract, transaction, arrangement or any other kind of
proposal put forward to the Board for consideration abstains
from voting on the relevant resolution and such Director is
not counted for quorum determination purposes.
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The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at

the scheduled Board meetings during the year ended

31 December 2018:

Name of Director

THRIAESNEHE2018FE12A31HILEE T
FEEHESESSHEMNEBRN

No. of the scheduled
Board meetings
attended/held

HE RBTES

BEEnF EEESENAE
Executive Directors HITES

HAN Xiaosheng EEA 2/4
LIU Bing 217K 2/4
LIU Hongwei P 3/4
ZHANG Xifang wEF 2/4
LIU Guosheng 2 = A 1/4
Non-executive Directors EHTEE

ZHAO Yingwei (R 2/4
ZHANG Fubiao (Appointed on 29 March 2018)  3R#& % (2201843 H29H & & 1) 2/4
Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHTES

LIU Jipeng 242 i 3/4
CAIl Hongping B 2/4
YAN Fashan B A & 3/4
LO Wa Kei Roy EEA 4/4

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular

meetings with the executive Directors and at least two

meetings with the non-executive Directors (including INEDs)

annually without the presence of the executive Directors. The

non-executive Directors (including INEDs) freely provide their

independent opinion to the Board.
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GENERAL MEETING BREXE

During the year, the Company held one general meeting. FR  ARQAREITT —XKREAE - FRIK
The following table shows the attendance of the Directors & % & =& JF 42 8% ¢

and the attendance record of each Director was as follows:

Name of Director

No. of general meetings
attended/held

EEpE HE BITHRRAERH
Executive Directors HTES

HAN Xiaosheng B 17
LIU Bing 2k 0N
LIU Hongwei £l 11
ZHANG Xifang REF 0/
LIU Guosheng 2| A 01
Non-executive Directors FHITES

ZHAO Yingwei R 01
ZHANG Fubiao (Appointed on 29 March 2018) 3&#&[% (720183 290 E & {T) 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIYHTES

LIU Jipeng 2142 B8 0N
CAI Hongping B 0N
YAN Fashan BEE 1/1
LO Wa Kei Roy EEL 11

hiz iR ERAE 2018F F 3R
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Chairman has authorised the company secretary of the
Company to prepare agenda for each Board meeting and to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings and receive adequate and
accurate information in a timely manner.

Ms. LAM Wai Yee Sophie, the company secretary of the
Company, is a fellow member of The Institute of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom. She is a full time employee of the Company and is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board complies with the
applicable rules and regulations. During the year ended
31 December 2018, Ms. LAM has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company arranges and provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to the Directors from time to time to help ensure that they
are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. In
addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions
(including delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also
counts toward CPD training.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with
details of the CPD training undertaken by them from time to
time.

The Directors have to disclose to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisations in a timely manner and update the Company
on any subsequent changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all the Directors
have participated in the CPD by attending internal CPD
training/seminars/programmes and/or reading materials
relating to updates on corporate governance and regulations.

REMUNERATION MANAGEMENT POLICY

The remuneration management policy of the Group is to
ensure that the Group’s pay levels are competitive in
attracting and retaining the Directors, senior management
and employees as well as motivating them in the continual
pursuit of the Group’s goal.

The remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management is performance-based and takes into account
factors such as the Group’s business performance and
prevailing market practices. The key components of the
Group’s remuneration package include basic salary, medical
insurance, discretionary cash bonus and retirement benefit
scheme. No individual Director or senior management will be
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman of
the Board in

determining the remuneration of the executive Directors and

respect of their recommendations in
senior management of the Company. The details of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and
senior staff of the Group for their potential liabilities incurred
by them in discharging their respective duties. The Company
reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors and the

Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee (collectively the “Committees”) to
The
Committees have been provided with sufficient resources to

Remuneration Committee and

oversee specific aspects of the Group’s affairs.

discharge their respective duties. Each of the Committees
has adopted specific terms of reference covering its duties,
powers and functions which will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. The terms of reference of the Committees
have been posted on website of the Company at
www.oceanwide.hk. The company secretary of the Company
also acts as secretary of the Committees. The Committees
adopt as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement
of the Board meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings,
notice of meetings and Further
particulars of each of the Committees are set out below:

recording of minutes.
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The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LIU Jipeng, the INED,
with Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, the non-executive Director, and Mr.
LO Wa Kei, Roy, the INED, as members. All of them possess
the relevant business and financial management experience
and skills to understand financial statements and contribute
internal controls and risk

to the financial governance,

management of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee
the relationship between the Company and its external
auditor, review the preliminary results, interim and final
results, and annual and interim financial statements of the
Group, monitor the corporate governance of the Group
including compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
engage
advisers and conduct

the activities of internal
legal

investigations as it determines to be necessary. All members

audit of the Group,
independent and other
of the Audit Committee have unrestricted access to the
Group’s external auditors and management.

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer,
internal auditor and other management of the Company
from time to time for the purposes of reviewing the interim
and final results, the interim report and annual report, and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance and
risk management matters of the Group. It considers and
discusses the reports and presentations of the
management, the internal and external auditors of the
Group, with a view to ensuring that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. It also meets at least twice a year with the
external auditor of the Company, to consider the reports of
the external auditor on the scope, strategy, progress and
outcome of its independent review of the interim financial
statements and its annual audit of the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Audit Committee holds regular
private meetings with the external auditor without the

presence of the management.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal
control and risk management. It reviews the process by
which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and
control risks are managed. It receives and considers the
presentations of the management in relation to the reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function of the Group, as well as their training
programmes and budget. In addition, the Audit Committee
reviews with the internal auditor the work plans for its audits
on the Group together with its resource requirements and
considers the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of internal controls in the business
operations of the Group. Further, it also receives the reports
from the company secretary of the Company on the
compliance status on regulatory requirements of the Group.
These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by the
Audit Committee when it makes its recommendation to the
Board for approval of the consolidated financial statements
for the year.

the Audit
Committee held three meetings to (1) review the management

During the year ended 31 December 2018,

and accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group; (2) discuss financial reporting matters including the
review of 2017 annual results and 2018 interim results of the
Group; (3) review the adequacy of resources, accounting staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions; (4) review the corporate
governance structure and practices within the Group; and (5)
review of the Group’s internal control procedures, risk
management, connected transactions and other related

issues.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors. The Audit Committee also
met the external auditors at least twice without the presence
of the executive Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the

Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018:

Name of Audit Committee member

EXeEBERZB QAR BEREMNE
E I BIARLBMERR -BFREZES
MERE|BAITESHESHNER T EHINEZH

A=l E@mMmR -

TRINTEZZBE LK ERE E2018F12A31
AtFELEEZZE

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

HE BTN ERZEES

EREEEREHRE BRRE
LIU Jipeng 2 42 5 2/2
ZHAO Yingwei i 1/2
LO Wai Kei Roy EEE 2/2

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members with
expertise in human resources and personnel emoluments.
CAl
Hongping, an INED, with Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, chairman of
the Board, and Mr. YAN Fashan, an INED, as members. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.

determinate the remuneration package of Directors and
senior management of the Group. Remuneration matters are
also considered and approved by the Remuneration
Committee by way of written resolutions and additional
meetings where warranted.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating employees of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy of the
Group. It assists the Group in the administration of a fair and
transparent procedure for setting remuneration policies for all
Directors and senior executives of the Group. Whilst the
Board retains its power to determine the remuneration of
non-executive Directors, the responsibility for reviewing and
determining the remuneration package of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Group is delegated
to the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to (1) review the remuneration
policies of the Group; and (2) review the proposed 2018 and
2019 directors’ fees for the INEDs.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee at the Remuneration Committee
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018:
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No. of Remuneration Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Remuneration Committee member HE BTHENEES
FHEEEREHR = PN
CAl Hongping BOAF 11
HAN Xiaosheng A 1/1
YAN Fashan BEE 1/1
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During the year, the annual remuneration of the Company’s
senior management is within the following bands:

Remuneration band

FR AR
™
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Number of senior management

FENEE EREEEAHY
HK$
7
2,500,001-3,000,000 1
< 1,000,001 2

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. HAN Xiaosheng,
chairman of the Board, with Mr. LIU Jipeng and Mr. YAN
Fashan, the INEDs, as members.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (1)
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Group’s corporate
strategy; (2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (3) assess the independence of INEDs; and
(4) make
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors.

recommendations to the Board on the

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure and composition of the
INEDs in

accordance with the relevant requirements of the Listing

Board and assessed the independence of

Rules.
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The following table shows the attendance of members of the T&RF|IRIEZZ E &K 8 N E £2018F 12 A31
Nomination Committee at the Nomination Committee meeting HIFFEEHFERELZZES@2NBE R
during the year ended 31 December 2018:

‘D]]U

No. of Nomination Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Nomination Committee member HE "ETHIREEZEES
REZESERENKSR 2B
HAN Xiaosheng BREAE 11
LIU Jipeng 242 11 11
YAN Fashan BEE 1/1
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT o] & 14 B & %

The annual and interim results of the Company are published AR AEFERFHEEDHINFELEBR=EA
in a timely manner, within three months and two months 4 P Hf 45 R 14 W & A B IR 79 38 B 1) 2% -
respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial TN HEERT ERRAMAENS L BE
statements is set out below. It should be read in conjunction 93 =106 H J& 37 #% 25 Aib ) & A 7K £= [ #% 8L Al
with, but distinguished from, the Independent Auditors MR EESRETENTR @ BRNEE—HFFE -
Report on pages 93 to 106 which acknowledges the

reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Group.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the ZEEZWMRHAESEHEBUARDFFER LY B R
preparation of the annual report and financial statements of X' IRV BHREERESTEQ IEL KB
the Company, ensuring that the financial statements give a F & EBEEMTSHMEHNER -

true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting

standards.
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The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of the Group.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the
view that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the

going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

EXERR AEEERBEVMBRRECER —
ERMMEZEFRE  URBERNEGE
e A B REE H T R hF -

EXZREHRAKERFAREASEN KR
MG EE MEFLEEATEGTNIER
HEHBRRmAENHRE

EERER VARV ENERRENS
=& E - IR N R R AN S B A RE SR R A
EBRITR-

REENERR EFER/AEEHEARANE
ﬁETﬁ*X%ﬁ“@ B bt AN &= B 3 B3R 4
FELENEERUEVBRE -
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The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. It receives each year a letter from the
external auditor confirming its independence and objectivity
and holds meetings with representatives of the external
auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees,
and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if
any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and

retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of

external auditor for the various services listed below is as
follows:
. Audit services — include audit services provided in

connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditor.

. Audit related services — include services that would
normally be provided by an external auditor but not
generally included in audit fees, for example, audits of
the pension plans of the Group, accounting advice
related to mergers and acquisitions, internal control

reviews of systems and/or processes, and issuance of

special audit reports for tax or other purposes. The
external auditor is to be invited to undertake those
services that it must, or is best placed, to undertake in

its capacity as auditor.

ERZESENTERIIERBMREE LN
BB URZBEBRENOAN EREZEGEF
ERERIIEZEMBELEREB LML REHIE
B R WERIMNERBMNRKXRBTEE £
BEERZIIENSE W EHL KRB A RMR
HIEBRRE(WB)NEBEEESE - B
ZEENMIINERBMNEERERESEEME
ERRLEBRER -

AEEZTIBRREZERINEZBERE T X
Pt &9 = AR 7%

- BERYK — BREAEREAVBERRA
FEEZRY - B LFREBHIMNSZ
ZREm IR -

- EBERHEBERY — 8% - Rb ISR
RH# EAFTTEEEEXERANR
%o Pl EZASERRKE S - 25
BEDFHENGHER HESR IR
FrEfT A BRES I sT - AR E A
BMEXRFREZRSES - ARBEBI
FEfz 2hEm e R B (R R BBl 4 2B S iR BE s
EH AR ©
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. Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services, except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditor where it
is best suited. All other significant taxation related work
is undertaken by other parties as appropriate.

. Other services — include, for example, financial due
diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial systems consultations. The external
auditor is also permitted to assist Management and the
internal auditor with internal investigations and fact-
finding into alleged improprieties. These services are
subject to specific approval by the Audit Committee.

. General consulting services — the external auditor is not
eligible to provide services involving general consulting
work.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid or
payable by the Company to BDO Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, in respect of their audit and audit related
services were HK$3,600,000.

. EMBEEBORYE — BRERMERBER
EBEHRERS EFREREZEEN
ARTG - AREB R IMNS X AR K KRB
BER RS - MATE M EZNHAARE
THABEMEE ALTHRIT

. HibR% — BREINTBERAEL &
BRERERAET L RREESTK
FHAE - AR R B 7 R e e R AR A
SMNEE Az R EM JT A] 3 B B IR B R A BD AT A
HRERNERZTHEFEABAERERH
Lo WEREEARBSREZESHIHE -

. —MREFE R — SIS RR BRI AT A R
—RERRBTOER -

RELE2018F12A3MB IEFERN » XA F MR
RANEZSMBEA L EEXSMEBLME
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EMPLOYEES’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Group places utmost importance on employees’ ethical,
personal and professional standards. Every employee is
required to undertake to adhere to the code of conduct of
the Group, and is expected to achieve the highest standards
set out in the code of conduct including avoiding conflict of
interest, discrimination or harassment and bribery and
corruption etc. Employees are required to report any non-

compliance with the code of conduct to the management.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community during the
year. Through its chairman, the Group responds to requests
for information and queries from the investment community. A
policy on the shareholders’ communication, which is available
on the website of the Company, was adopted and is subject
to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and
compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other

requirements.

The Board
information on the Group to the Shareholders through the

is committed to providing clear and full

publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. An up-to-date consolidated version of the
Bye-laws is published on the websites of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).
Moreover, additional information on the Group is also
available to the Shareholders and stakeholders through the

“Investor Relations” page on the website of the Company.

}
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, the Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights at general meetings of the Company
have statutory rights to call for special general meetings and
put forward agenda items for consideration by the
Shareholders, by sending the Company Secretary at the
registered office address a written request for such general
meetings, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned

together with the proposed agenda items.

The Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders or of at least
one hundred shareholders in number, may put forward
proposals for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company by sending to the Company Secretary at the
registered office address a written request for such proposals
according to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act. All substantive resolutions at general meetings are
decided on a poll which is conducted by the Company
Secretary and scrutinised by the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar of the Company. The results of the poll are
published on the websites of the Company and HKEX. In
addition, regular updated financial, business and other
information on the Group is made available on the website of

the Company for the Shareholders and stakeholders.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its
efforts to promote transparency and foster investor relations.
Comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company are
welcome and can be addressed to the Chairman of the Board
by mail to 64/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong
Kong.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. This policy aims
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholder(s) whilst
preserving the Group’s liquidity for its business
development. The Board has complete discretion on
whether to pay a dividend, subject to the Shareholders’
approval, where applicable. The Company’s ability to pay
dividends will depend upon, among other things, the
Group’s operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements, and such other factors as the Board may
deem relevant. The payment of dividend is also subject to
the Company’s applicable rules and regulations as well as
the bye-laws of the Company. There is no assurance that in
any given year a dividend will be paid by the Company.

The Board will review this policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The management of the Company manages risks effectively
through identifying every potential issue that may affect the
business of the Company, thus ensure providing reasonable
assurance in achieving the objectives of the Group within a
sustainable range. The Group adopts the Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) to implement the comprehensive risk
management. The management of the Company reviews
and updates the framework and procedures on risk
management and internal control annually under the
structure of connecting the four categories of entity’s
objectives (strategy, operation, reporting and compliance)
with the eight interrelated components (internal
environment, objective setting, event identification, risk
assessment, risk response, control activities, information
and communication and monitoring), improves them with
various recommendations by identifying the corresponding
risks and internal control guidelines respectively in respect
of the key process of the Group. The management of the
Company organises a self-assessment annually, the key
process owner of the Group prioritise the risks under his/
her respective business and acknowledges the
effectiveness of the corresponding internal control
procedures, and makes prompt remediation for internal
control weaknesses identified.
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The management of the Company has established a key
risk register for significant risks, by identifying the root
cause, risk impact and risk response, and developing
respective risk index to monitor significant risks through
periodic collection of operational data on a monthly basis.
Risk alert will be promptly issued with recommended risk
response in controlling risks when the risk index exceed the

predefined threshold value.

The management of the Company has established
appropriate internal control procedures against key risks,
which mainly include the followings:

1)  Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
the management of the Company and subject to review
and approval by both the executive management team
and the Board. Reforecasts for the current year are
prepared on a quarterly basis, compared for variances
to the budget. When setting budgets and reforecasts,
the management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant
business risks.

2)  The executive Directors review monthly management

reports on the financial results and key operating
the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company holds periodic

statistics of the business. In addition,
meetings with the executive management team and
senior management of business operations to review
business performance, significant business risk
sensitivities and strategies. The Chief Financial Officer
also holds monthly meetings with Financial Controllers
of business operations to review the monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and to

address accounting and finance related matters.
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3) The Company maintains a centralised cash

4)

5)

management system for its subsidiaries’ operations
and the finance department of the Company oversees
the investment and lending activities of the Group.
Treasury reports on cash and liquid investments of the
Group and movements thereof are distributed daily.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has
established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. Operating
expenditures are subject to overall budget control and
are controlled within each business with approval
levels set by reference to the level of responsibility of
each executive and officer. Capital expenditures are
subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific
control and approval prior to commitment by the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company or the executive
Directors are required for unbudgeted expenditures
and material capital expenditures within the approved

budget.

The Procedures for Reporting Possible Improprieties in
Matters of Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other
Matters has already been published on the website of
the Company for encouraging the employees of the
Company and other stakeholders who are dealing with
the Group to report to the Company any suspected
improprieties, misconducts or malpractices within the
Group. The Group will assure that the whistle-blower is
free from any unfair dismissal or punishment for any
authentic whistle-blowing made according to the
Procedures. The internal auditor of the Company will
promptly follow up the whistle blowing incident through
specific and secured whistle blowing email and inform
the executive Directors and the Audit Committee on the
recommendations

investigation results and the

proposed will be carried out by respective department.

3)

4)

5)
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6) The Company has already established the procedures

and internal control measures for the respective
handling and dissemination of insider information. After
any price sensitive insider information has or shall have
been known to the executives of the Group during the
process of performing their duties under reasonable
conditions, such price sensitive insider information shall
be disclosed to the public as soon as practicable,
unless the “Safe Harbor Provisions” under the SFO are
applicable. be announced

through the websites of the Company and the HKEX, or

Insider information will
announced by other means or methods as prescribed
such
announcement is subject to the approval of the Board

by the Listing Rules from time to time,

before announcement. The insider information may only
be announced through other channels after being
announced in the form of an announcement through
the websites of the Company and the HKEX.

The system and procedures established are aimed at
managing risks and rather than eliminating all risks. Such
system could only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance. Such system cannot eliminate completely the
consequences resulted from unpredictable risks and
uncontrollable events (such as natural disaster, fraud and

misjudgment).

The internal auditor of the Company shall report directly to
the Audit Committee, and provides independent assurance
as to the existence and effectiveness of the risk
management activities and controls in the business
operations of the Group. Depending on the nature of
business and risk exposure of individual business units, the
scope of work performed by the internal auditor of the
Company includes financial and operations audit, regular
and surprise audits, fraud investigations and construction
audit. Using risk assessment methodology and taking into
account the dynamics of the activities of the Group, the
internal auditor of the Company derives its yearly audit plan
which is approved by the Audit Committee, and reassessed
during the year as needed to ensure that adequate

resources are deployed and the objectives of the plan are
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met. The internal auditor of the Company is responsible for

assessing the internal control system of the Group,

formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and
reporting its findings to the management of the Company,
as well as following up on all reports to ensure that all
remediated. The Audit

Committee holds two meetings annually in respect of the

issues have been properly

review results and opinions from the internal auditor of the
Company against the risk management and internal control
system, and reports the review results to the Board.

In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with the external
auditor of the Group so that both are aware of the significant
factors which may affect their respective scope of work, and
review the reports regarding the internal control and relevant
financial reports submitted by external auditor and take
appropriate actions.

it has the
maintain an effective risk management and internal control

The Board confirmed that responsibility to

system of the Group to protect the interests of the
Shareholders and preserve the assets of the Group, and
review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group once every year,
including financial control, operational control and
The Board, the Audit

Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of

compliance control. through

the risk management and internal control system of the
December 2018, which
risk management functions and all

Group for the year ended 31
covered material

financial, operational and compliance controls, and is
satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate. In
addition, it has also reviewed and is satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the
staff of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function of the Group, and their training programmes and

budget.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OCEANWIDE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to
296, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

in compliance with the

Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for

Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

Professional

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

BHhZERERAAKRR

(RERZZMHE LA ER LA

ZHEEATREEBERAR(EAR]) K
MERAR(MEIEEE])IERFI07TAEESR
206 B AR A IS HRK - B BHER2018F 124
MNEMEAMBMAR  URBEZRLEFE
MEaRaR SEE2ERER Kagal
B HERREREEAVBHRRNM
g BREXSHERRME -

BMRE ZERAVBRREREEESH
MASRMAKEEMBREENNEEMFR S
R T &%EBEN2018F12A318 K4 A Bt
BRAKEHZZAEFENSRAMBEREAR
REBeRE  WEEREB(AREHME
BHTEZ BB -

BMPEREFESTMASEMNCEER
ERADETE - RAUEZFEA T AENRE
EEARES[ZBEMLB A M EHRRARE
M EE]#o P — R - RIBFE ST
RERMOCEX G BRE AN AL -
BMBUR BESEE YCEITTAPEAM
BEXERAEMT HRMAMGE HMAMESHET
BREEACTREZEHWREAMOTRIBHER -

20184F £ 3R

93



94

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIYZBEKRE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

Refer to note 3b to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had properties under
development of HK$14,798,884,000 which were classified
as current assets while expected to be completed and
recovered after one year. Excluding these properties under
development, which are illiquid in nature, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$5,170,539,000 as at 31 December 2018. Bank and
other loans which will fall due within twelve months from the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position
amounting to HK$4,513,893,000.

To support the going concern basis in preparing the

consolidated financial statements, management has
prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group covering the
next twelve months from 31 December 2018 and concluded
that there will be sufficient funds from the Group’s existing
cash resource, available facilities from banks, its
intermediate holding companies and fellow subsidiaries and
cash flows to be generated from its operations to finance its
future operations and enable it to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from 31 December 2018. The cash flow forecast
involved key assumptions such as revenue, gross profit
margin, planned capital expenditures, and availability of
facilities to the Group. We focused on this assessment as it
involves consideration of future events and application of
significant judgements and estimates and accordingly, this

was an area of audit focus.
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Refer to note 3b to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
included:

— assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions in
the cash flow forecast, including revenue growth,
gross profit margin and planned capital expenditures
by referencing to actual historical performance of the
Group and making reference to the Group’s future
development plan;

— checking the mathematical accuracy of the projections;

— confirming the cash resources and available facilities
from bank, intermediate holding companies and fellow
subsidiary as at year end by circularisation of bank
and related parties confirmations and assessing the
probability of facilities renewal during the forecast
period by examining historical records of renewal
pattern and letter of support from intermediate holding
company obtained;

— assessing financial ability of intermediate holding
companies and fellow subsidiary to consider the
sustainability of facilities granted; and

— evaluating the sensitivity of the projected available
cash by considering downside scenarios through
applying reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions, including revenue and gross profit
margin.
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Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s certain investments which are non-publicly
traded listed equity securities in Hong Kong classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$200,956,000. During the year ended 31 December
2018, a decrease in fair value of the above-mentioned
financial assets of HK$231,044,000 was recognised in other
comprehensive income.

We identified the valuation of the above-mentioned financial
assets is significant to our audit because the balance of
investment in the non-publicly traded listed equity securities
of the total
investments classified as financial assets at fair value

representing 53% equity and securities
through profit and loss or other comprehensive income of
HK$378,990,000 in aggregate, and the determination of fair
value is based on several key inputs that require significant
management judgments, assumptions, estimations and other
The key
marketability, price movement of comparable companies

inputs. inputs are discount rate for lack of
and specific adjustment attributable to the trading halt due

to corporate governance issues.
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Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the valuation of financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income included:

— evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the management’s valuation expert;

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of input data and
adjusting factors based on the available market data.
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Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s investment properties in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$1,241,449,000 are measured at fair value. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, no fair value change was
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s investment properties in Los Angeles, the
United States of America (the “U.S.”) which
development as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$3,171,622,000 are measured at cost due to inability to
measure fair value less cost to complete reliably. During the

is under

year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment was

recognised in profit or loss.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties are significant to our audit because the balance
of investment properties represented 18% of the total
assets of the Group, and the determination of fair value or
estimated recoverable amount is based on several key
inputs that require significant management judgments,
assumptions, estimations and other inputs. For investment
properties in the PRC, the key inputs of fair value are
rental rates and capitalisation rates. For investment
properties in Los Angeles, the U.S., which are under
development, the key inputs of estimated recoverable
amount are expected rental income, growth rate and

discount rate.
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Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the valuation of investment properties included:

For investment properties in the PRC which professional
independent valuer involved

— evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuation expert appointed by the
management;

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness of inputs based on the
available market data; and

— evaluating the accuracy of the historical estimated data
by comparing with the actual rental income and
occupancy rate, and verifying whether the input data
is supported by relevant agreements.

For investment properties in Los Angeles, the U.S., under
development which the valuation was performed by the
management

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness on the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by
the management; and

— evaluating reasonableness of important assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

The construction in progress under properties, plant and

equipment located in the Republic of Indonesia
(“Indonesia”) as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$2,781,293,000. During the year ended 31 December

2018, no impairment was recognised in profit or loss.

We identified the impairment assessment of construction in

progress under properties, plant and equipment is
significant to our audit because the balance of construction
in progress represented 11% of the total assets of the
the

management judgments for the estimation of future

Group, and impairment assessment require

recoverable amount.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the impairment of construction in progress under properties,

plant and equipment which included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness on the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by
the management; and

— evaluating reasonableness of important assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements

Certain properties under development located in Los
Angeles, the U.S. which are under construction as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$6,204,586,000. During the
year ended 31

December 2018, no impairment was

recognised in profit or loss.

We identified the net realisable value assessment of
properties under development in Los Angeles, the U.S.
which are under construction is significant to our audit
because the balance of the concerned properties under
development represented 26% of the total assets of the
Group, and the net realisable value assessment require
management judgments for the expected selling price and
cost to completion.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the net realisable value of properties under development in
Los Angeles, the U.S. which included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness on the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by
the management; and

— evaluating reasonableness of important assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
the other
in doing so, consider whether the other

statements, our responsibility is to read
information and,
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981,
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

and for no other purpose. We do not assume

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
and where

thought to bear on our independence,

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; £2018F12A31H Lt F &

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 BET T BT T
Revenue A 8 138,637 142,174
Cost of sales 5 A AR (10,319) (9,408)
Gross profit E R 128,318 132,768
Other income B U g — 469
Other net (losses)/gains HiF (BB /FIE 9a (85,962) 29,151
Selling and distribution costs HE R D HKA (5,849) (2,425)
Administrative expenses THER (90,186) (73,407)
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B 18) AE 9 (53,679) 86,556
Income tax expense Fri8 8 > 10 (26,243) (17,411)
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr(EE) 7B (79,922) 69,145
(Loss)/profit attributable to: UT MG (EER),FIE :
Shareholders of the Company VNI (48,840) 70,422
Non-controlling interests FE 12 B 7 (31,082) (1,277)
(79,922) 69,145
Basic and diluted (loss)/ EAFRREMLNER
earnings per share EXAR#E(HER)
attributable to shareholders 27 HK(0.30) cent HKO0.44 cent
of the Company 12 7 %5(0.30) 1L 75 150,444

The notes on pages 117 to 296 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F12A31H It F &

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr(EE) 78 (79,922) 69,145
Other comprehensive (expenses)/ Ht2m(BIX) s
income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently 2 & i] & #7578 % 18 2 A1
to profit or loss: HEH
Translating financial statements of foreign # &g h % F B 5 H K -
operations:
— (Losses)/gains taken to reserves — FrAREHER (EBE)
42 (44,130) 165,505
Debt investments at fair value through other Z AR BEFAEMEE
comprehensive income: WHHEFRE
— Net valuation losses taken to reserves — — &t Af& & 89 (4 B F
&5 18 (6,666) —
— Net gains previously in reserves — REHEREKE
recognised in statement of income WRBET ARE
upon disposal EpRETAIEES (6,281) =
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEEVBEE:
— Net valuation losses taken to reserves — — &t A& #8914 B %
&5 18 — (60,663)
— Net gains previously in reserves — R R KRR B A
recognised in statement of income A B F 15 — (47,597)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit T~ & & #7748 2 18 25 #9
or loss: HH
Equity investments at fair value through 2 AR EEFTAHMEE
other comprehensive income: WaEm R AKZE
— Net valuation losses taken to reserves  — =t AfEH M (HEF
&5 18 (243,890) =
Other comprehensive (expenses)/ FRARBAEMEE
income for the year, net of tax** (FX) iz (300,967) 57,245

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F12A31H It F &

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Total comprehensive (expenses)lincome F£RZ2MH (Bx%) =
for the year g (380,889) 126,390
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income LI TEENZE (X))
attributable to: EF 8-
Shareholders of the Company NN (351,300) 119,699
Non-controlling interests FE 1% I A (29,589) 6,691
(380,889) 126,390

**  There was no tax effect on each component of the ** & ZE2018%F N20175F12A3MB LFE K

other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the years fis 2 (FAX) /&K & 48RS 5 3 4
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. MIGHE -

The notes on pages 117 to 296 are an integral part of F117EZEFE2968 K i RAGFE MK MK H
these consolidated financial statements. — & e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018 7201812 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 5 BET T BT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Properties, plant and I RIS
equipment 17 2,852,735 2,749,420
Investment properties "EYE 18 4,413,071 3,400,473
Leasehold land and land use TAE T &+ b A
rights 19 2,291 1,359
Available-for-sale financial AT ENEEE
assets 20 — 908,746
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFTAEME
through other comprehensive H W w15 & B
income 21 314,290 —
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFTABRTH
through profit or loss B i & E 22 64,700 80,670
Deposits, prepayments and e ENREREM
other receivables JE U FR IR 23 624,105 506,311
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEHEE 28 10,585 9,211
R 8,281,777 7,856,190
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BERPYE 24 14,798,884 12,131,649
Trade receivables & U BR 3% 25 1,595 292
Deposits, prepayments and & BERNRBEREM
other receivables JE U FR IR 23 73,504 75,939
Restricted cash <R HIE € 26 411,892 880,642
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 26 677,983 713,397
I 15,963,858 13,801,919
Total assets EEHE 24,245,635 21,458,109
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to AATRRRELER
shareholders of the
Company
Share capital & 7 29 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves i 8,759,303 9,093,074
10,373,568 10,707,339
Non-controlling interests TR ER 438,872 468,461
Total equity S 10,812,440 11,175,800

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B IR R &R

At 31 December 2018 2018512 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T 7T T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FFRBEE
Borrowings BE 30 1,633,570 1,067,007
Amount due to an intermediate &<t — [ AP R AR A A
holding company FQE] 37h 5,194,773 —
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMEHEE 28 269,339 268,787
R 7,097,682 1335794
Current liabilities REEE
Deposits received, other Blike A
payables and accruals RIE R EFTIEE 27 1,795,017 1,539,332
Borrowings B 30 4,513,893 4,261,357
Amount due to an intermediate &t — [ FF AR A A
holding company FIE 37h — 3,120,506
Current income tax liabilities MEFTRH AR 26,603 25,320
R 6335513 8,946,515
Total liabilities BEHAHE 13,433,195 10,282,309
Total equity and liabilities BEEhaEH8sE 24,245,635 21,458,109
The notes on pages 117 to 296 are an integral part of SF117EE$296E WM T ARG AMEHRRD
these consolidated financial statements. — &8 o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 296
were approved by the Board of Directors.

HAN Xiaosheng
BRLE
Chairman

Ey

FI07TEEF2EMGRAVBRRNEEST S

BUAE ©

LIU Guosheng
215 FH
Director

EF

PZERARAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F12A31H It F &

FLOWS

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT BT T
Operating activities REEK
Cash used in operating RETBEBEKA « BT
activities before finance MEREEESEH
costs, tax paid and changes MEEEBMARE
in working capital 31a (19,929) (8,446)
Changes in working capital LEESHNED 31b (2,142,891) (1,738,588)
Cash used in operations KEFMARS (2,162,820) (1,747,034)
Interest received 2 WA 8 18,311 36,667
Dividend received 2R 8 11,904 3,228
Tax paid A1 (12,458) (17,108)
Net cash used in operating REXEKFTAESFESR
activities (2,145,063) (1,724,247)
Investing activities REER
Disposal of subsidiary, net of HEWRB AR
e ElepozEn EMBRAHERS 35 100,453 —
Purchase of properties, plant BEWME KRN ELE
and equipment (29,205) (738,662)
Additions to investment REREMHE
properties (988,469) (532,137)
Purchase of available-for-sale EEAHEEVKEE
financial assets — (78,070)
Purchase of financial assets at B EHZ QAL BE A
fair value through profit or Bani g EE
loss (313,638) (78,053)
Proceeds from disposal of REHEUHEHENBE
available-for-sale financial BEMFTSHRIE
assets — 463,688
Proceeds from disposal of REHEEREQAAEE
financial assets at fair value AT ACE Ath 2 U 2 Y
through other comprehensive M EE®FFIE
income 267,152 —
Proceeds from disposal of REHEEREQAAEE
financial assets at fair value AFABRHNYBEE
through profit or loss B FT 15 K18 306,108 =
Increase in other non-current Eﬁﬂ#ﬁi))éﬁ?‘i hn
assets (105,609) (195)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted R HR LR
cash (3 nn) 466,779 (264,772)
Net cash used in investing REXEBFTANE S
activities =] (296,429) (1,228,201)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEHETREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ 201812 A31H IEFE

Financing activities
Acquisition of non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Proceeds from bank and other

loans

Repayment of bank and other
loans

Proceeds from borrowings from
an intermediate holding
company

Repayment of borrowings to an
intermediate holding
company

Proceeds from loans from fellow

subsidiaries
Repayment of loan from a
fellow subsidiary

Net proceeds from issuance of

convertible notes
Interest paid
Increase in restricted cash
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Exchange (losses)/gains on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

BMEXK
Y fE B B~ B A0 3F
e
XKERTREME
P15 5R
BERTEREME

KB — T EER
f& & #) AT 15 500

A) — ] P R P2 AR
BEEE

KB REMEAR
B P 15 588

B8R — R R B

BT BRREED
P 1S 5K IR 5 88

BENHE

IR B3R & 580

TR T IR AR P 2

[Egs)

MEXBAMELR
g

BERAEEEY

OBl 2) /18 tn 7% 28

Notes
B 5E
2l
37i(ix)
A H
31c
b
31c
NE]
31c
Al
31c
31c
NE]
31c
31c

iy

&

MA1TENBREREAESE

&7

BERAESEEVER

(') FE

AM12A3MBMEE R
REEEY

2017
20174
HK$'000
BT T

(233,321)
2,038,206

(177,314)

2,331,268

(919,974)
340,000

(60,000)

(98,124)
(194,672)

(1,560)

3,024,509

72,061

615,568

25,768

713,397
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHETREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ 201812 A31H IF FE

2017
20174
HK$’000
7S T T
Analysis of unsecured and BEEFRTERERSE
unrestricted cash, liquid REBEERLETRE
funds and listed investments il
Bank deposits with maturity less 7 =1& A A2 IR R 17
than three months T 413,478
Cash at banks and on hand RITGFEHREERES 299,919
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 713,397
Unsecured available-for-sale £ 3 ) A O B RS
financial assets, listed BE EMEE
investments 508,025
Total unsecured and BEEARTZRIES
unrestricted cash, liquid REBEERLETRE
funds and listed investments s 1,221,422

The notes on pages 117 to 296 are an integral part of 21178 £ %2068 KT ARG S EREN
these consolidated financial statements. — 2B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; £2018F12A31H Lt F &

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
AATRRER FEREE RREE
Fair value
Investment through other Convertible (Note)
Share Share  Exchange revaluation comprehensive note equity Other  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve income reserve reserve  reserves profits  Sub-total
BAREEA
REEfR Hb2EKE TRRRS (t3E)
BE ROGEE EXfRG & B EnEG HERE REWNR it
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT A¥Tr A%Tr B%Tn BETT A¥Tr ANTr B%Tn  B%Tn BT BETR
At 1 January 2018, previously reported 1201841718 (17 £ ) 1,614,265 8,181,541 265,715 (24,194) - - (54,662) 724,674 10,707,339 468,461 11,175,800
Reclassification on adoption of REREBH B RERRIHR
HKFRS 9 (Note 5) BEHNDE(H5) - - - 24,194 (22,490) - - (7,303) (5,509) — (5,599)
At 1 January 2018, as restated 201851518 (8 E7F) 1614265 8181541 265715 - (22,490) —  (54662)  TI73T1 10701740 468461 11,170,201
Other comprehensive H2E (M%) Wi
(expenses)/income
Translating financial statements of BB &N EFHHFHRE
foreign operations:
— (Losses)/gains taken to reserves  — :f A {EE (K518) /75 - - (4523) - - - (385) — (45623 1493 (44130)
Debt investments at fair value through 122 7t BB A K12 E K=
other comprehensive income: BHRE:
— Net valuation losses taken to —HARBENHEETEE
reserves - - - - (6,666) - - - (6,666) - (6,666)
— Net gains previously in reserves ~ — RIRERERBEH AL
recognised in statement of BHENE
income - - - - (6,281) - - - (6,281) — (6,281)
Equity investments at fair value through 12 7t BB A E {2 E K% H
other comprehensive income: RARE :
— Net valuation losses taken to —HARBNHEETEE
reserves - . - - (243,890) . - —  (43,890) — (43,890)
Net (expenses)fincome recognised B REXBIMNF (A%,
directly in equity: W - - @52) - (256,837) . (385) — (302,460) 1493 (300,967)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - —  (48,840)  (48,840) (31,082  (79,922)
Total comprehensive (expenses)) 2 (%) /WHLE
income - - (@529) - (256,837) - (385)  (48,840)  (35300)  (29,589)  (380,889)
Written back of unclaimed dividends % Bl R B & - - - — - - - 7 7 - 7
Issue of convertible notes BOUHRER - - - - - 23,121 - - 23,121 - 23,121
Transfer of impairment losses on equity &R AL BEH AEM2E
investments at fair value through BEsBRARENABER
other comprehensive income to ZREME
retained profits - - - - 189,054 - - (189,054) - - -
Recognition of losses on disposal of ~ AL &R A1 BEFALM
equity investments at fair value 2EMENRAREBER
through other comprehensive income (R & 7 &
to retained profits — - - — 24,344 - - (24,344) - - -
Total other transactions with ERREREANEMRRRN
shareholders recognised directly ~ X Z &%
in equity - - - - 213,398 23121 - (213,391) 23128 - 23,128
At 31 December 2018 #2018512A31R 1,614,265 8,181,541 220,477 - (65,929) 23121 (55,047) 455,140 10,373,568 438,872 10,812,440

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R

115



116

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F12A31H It F &

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Non-

controlling

interests  Total equity

ADRARREMN FERRESE REREHE
Investment (Note)
Share Share  Exchange revaluation Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserves profits Sub-total
REEM (Fit5t)
BEA  ROEE EXHE w®E HeRE  RBAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT #¥%Tr ATt BETz BETr AT AT BTz B%Tx
At 1 January 2017 R201761A18 1,614,265 8,181,541 108,727 84,066 10,479 654,228 10,653,306 629,401 11,282,707
Other comprehensive i I(exp VA2 E R (FX)
Translating financial statements of BEENEBHBRE
foreign operations:
— Gains taken to reserves — FARENTSE — — 156,988 — 549 — 157,537 7,968 165,505
Available-for-sale financial assets: ARHERBEE:
— Net valuation losses taken to — FTARENREZHAE
reserves — — — (60,663 — — (60,663 —  (60669)
— Net gains previously in reserves — REERERBAARE
recognised in statement of income HERG — — - (47,597) — - (47,597) — (47,597)
Net income/(expenses) recognised EERERERNT RS/ (AX)
directly in equity — — 156,988 (108,260) 549 — 49,277 7,968 57,245
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE/(E8) — — — — — 70,422 70,422 (1,277) 69,145
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) 2 W%,/ (B %) 8% — — 156,988 (108,260) 549 70,422 119,699 6,691 126,390
Written back of unclaimed dividends BB REMRE — — — — — 24 24 — 24
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 4 B 7 122 5 1 2 (B £37i(ix) )
(Note 37(ix)) = = = — (65690 —  (65690)  (167.631)  (233.321)
Total other transactions with EREREERANHMERRN
shareholders recognised directly in REBE
equity _ _ — —  (656%) 24 (65066) (167.631)  (233.207)
At 31 December 2017 #20174128318 1,614,265 8,181,541 265,715 (24,194) (54,662) 724,674 10,707,339 468,461 11,175,800
Note: i

Other reserves comprise other properties revaluation reserve, merger reserve,

HFERREMYEEGHE S6HE BEXABOMFE

capital redemption reserve and other reserve. N CE At 4 o
Other
properties Capital
revaluation Merger redemption Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Hib % EAXEE
EfRE aOtERE & HisfRE £
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BETT BYTT BET T BETT
At 1 January 2017 R®2017F1818 7,834 (913) 3,558 — 10,479
At 31 December 2017 and MR2017F12831B &
1 January 2018 20181 A1H 8,383 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (54,662)
At 31 December 2018 "20185F12H31H 7,998 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (55,047)
The notes on pages 117 to 296 are an integral part of SH117HEZ%$296E ARG EHIBEHREN

these consolidated financial statements.

igﬁ/'\ ®

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in property investments in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), real estate development
in the United States of America (the “United States” or
“U.S.”), development in the energy sector in the
Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) and finance
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s parent is Oceanwide Holdings
international Company Limited and the directors
consider its ultimate parent company is Tohigh
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (incorporated in the PRC), which is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu Zigiang.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—BEH

FREBAERRAB ((ARA] REKB A
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M o 7N A &) 89 7% it #* = B2 iz A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda -

ARANBRRR/RZEERERERA
Al MEERAERRIRAARHELR
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B A SL) o
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hiZ i REBERAT 2018F £ 1R

117



118

The Group has adopted all of the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to Revenue from contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share Based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to Transfer to Investment Property
HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1, First
to HKFRSs 2014-  time adoption of Hong Kong

2016 Cycle Financial Reporting
Standards
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKAS 28,
to HKFRSs 2014—  Investments in associates and
2016 Cycle joint ventures

Except for those respectively set out below and
in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the adoption of these new HKFRSs
does not have any significant impact on the
Group’s accounting policies.
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HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
from 1 January 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
The new accounting policies are set out in Note
4j to the consolidated financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 9(7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative
figures have not been restated. Any adjustments
to the carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities at the date of transition are recognised
in the opening retained profits of the current
year.

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 has
presented in the Note 5A to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

BB B HREERIFEIH —
2HMT R
BEMBREERNFRMNABTES
FHERIEISRENBEEMVBE
ERR DENMFE EBIAR
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CE - FEABRRERLEETBHR
XM F4 - BBEET RS
% Bl 9% & i@ E 1§ X (7.2.15) &
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HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 has
presented in the Note 5B to the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-

2017 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Leases'’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to: HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations;
HKAS 12, Income Taxes;
and HKAS 23 Borrowing
Costs’

Definition of a business?

Prepayment features with
negative compensation’
Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019

2 Effective for business combination for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first

annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of
operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are (i) short-term leases; (ii) low-
value leases; and (iii) variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date of the lease.
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HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject
to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

The accounting treatments for lessors will not
significantly change according to HKFRS 16.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases where the
Group is a lessee.

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R
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HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

As set out in Note 33b, the total operating lease
commitment of the Group in respect of rented
premises as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$85.9 million in which HK$82.9 million were
with original lease term over 1 year. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16,
and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability in
respect of all these leases at its present value
upon the application of HKFRS 16. The
combination of straight-line depreciation of the
right-to-use asset and the effective interest rate
method applied to the lease liability will result in a
higher total charge to the profit or loss in the
initial years of the lease, and decreasing expenses
during the latter part of the lease term, but there
is no impact on the total expenses recognised
over the lease term.
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HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

The new leases standard is mandatory for the
Group’s financial statements for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and the
Group will adopt this new standard from 1
January 2019. As a lessee, the Group will apply
the standard using the modified retrospective
approach. Under the modified retrospective
approach, (i) comparative information for prior
periods is not restated; (ii) the date of the initial
application of HKFRS 16 is the first day of the
annual reporting period in which the Group first
applies the requirement of HKFRS 16, i.e. 1
January 2019; and (iii) the Group recognises the
cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) in the year of adoption, i.e. as at 1
January 2019.
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HK(IFRIC) Int 23 — Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the
tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not
probable, then the uncertainty in the
determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3
which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation,
this is a business combination achieved in stages
and the previously held equity interest should
therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair
value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable
profits, either in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23
which clarifies that a borrowing made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which
remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale would
become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general
pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adopting the above
standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. Except as HKFRS 16
described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions and/or the
disclosures to the financial statements of the
Group.
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This following note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
financial statements are for the Group consisting of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets (under HKAS
39), financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (under HKFRS 9)
which are carried at fair value at subsequent
reporting date.
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The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the directors of the Company to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 7.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
properties under development of
HK$14,798,884,000 which were classified as
current assets while expected to be completed
and recovered after one year. Excluding these
properties under development, which are
illiquid in nature, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$5,170,539,000 as at 31 December 2018.
This is mainly because certain bank and other
loans of HK$4,513,893,000 will fall due within
twelve months of the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the
Group’s businesses in real estate development
in the United States of America (the “United
States” or “U.S.”) and energy sector in the
Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) are capital
intensive in nature and funding the continuous
development of these businesses would require
access to substantial capital in the foreseeable
future.
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In view of these circumstances, the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) have taken careful
consideration to the future liquidity, the
construction progress of the projects in the U.S.
and Indonesia and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient working capital for the next twelve
months from the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to
improve the Group’s financial position and
alleviate the liquidity pressure, the Directors
have been implementing various measures as
follows:

(i) The Group is currently negotiating with the
banks and financial institutions to renew or
extend the existing facilities;

(i) The Group is able to utilise the undrawn
facilities as at 31 December 2018
amounting to HK$4,635,517,000 (including
undrawn facilities from an intermediate
holding company);

(iii) The Group will also continue to seek other
alternative financing and bank borrowings
to finance the settlement of its existing
financial obligations and future operating
and capital expenditures;

(iv) The Group entered into a non-binding term
sheet with a well-known financial institution
for a project financing facility amounting to
US$850,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,657,965,000); and

(v) The Group is able to seek additional
financial support from its intermediate
holding company, such as obtaining
additional facilities, for any additional
financial needs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

In light of the above, taking into account all the
financial resources currently available to the
Group, including the banking facilities currently
available (subject to renewal and extension) as
well as further borrowings currently under
negotiation with potential lenders and the
continuous financial support from the Company’s
intermediate holding companies (when
necessary), the Directors are of the opinion that,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months from 31 December 2018.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, the
equity interests issued by the Group, the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement and the fair
value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date
fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date
when the control is transferred to the Group to
the date when control ceases.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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Business combinations (Continued)
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary is
the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’'s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment (Note 40). Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors and the chief financial
officer that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt and
equity securities denominated in foreign
currency and classified as available for
sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and/or other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are recognised
in the income statement while other
changes in carrying amount are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held at
fair value through profit or loss are
reported in the income statement as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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(iii) Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the
Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial
position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.
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(iii) Group’s entities (Continued)
Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment comprise mainly
freehold land, construction in progress, buildings,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and motor vehicles. Properties, plant
and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes its purchase price and expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value less accumulated impairment losses
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the
term of the relevant
leases, whichever is
shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 7 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years

Freehold land is stated at historical cost less any
recognised impairment loss and not depreciated.

Gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income
statement.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each date of statement
of financial position.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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Construction in progress represents properties,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the cost of plant and machinery, employee benefit
expenses, professional fees and interest charges
arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing, if any. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and are available for intended use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of properties, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development
comprise costs of land use rights, construction
costs, employee benefit expenses, borrowing
costs and loan arrangement fee capitalised for
qualifying assets and professional fees incurred
during the development period.
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Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, that are not
occupied by the Group, are held for long-term
rental vyields, capital appreciation or both.
Properties that are being constructed or
developed for future long-term rental vyields,
capital appreciation or both are also classified as
investment properties. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and fair value cannot be reliably measured at that
time, and therefore are stated at cost. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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e BB AR M R

Payments for leasehold land held for own use

under operating leases represent up-front

payments to acquire long-term interests in lessee-

occupied properties. These payments are stated

at cost and are amortised over the period of the

lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.

(i)

Financial Assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

— financial assets at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income
or through profit or loss), and

— financial assets at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income,
depending on how the assets are
classified. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading
and not contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer to which HKFRS
3 applies, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial application of HKFRS 9
or initial recognition of the assets to
account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

()

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate
line item in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

(i) Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

—  Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that do not meet the

criteria for amortised cost or fair

value through other comprehensive

income are measured at fair value

through profit or loss. A gain or loss

on a debt

investment that is

subsequently measured at fair value

through profit or loss is recognised in

profit or

loss and presented net

within other gains/(losses) in the

period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

—  Fair value through profit or loss

Equity
through profit

investments at fair value
or loss are

subsequently measured at fair value.

Changes
income and

value, dividend
interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

For equity investment which is not held
for trading purposes and not contingent
consideration recognised by an
acquirer to which HKFRS 3 applies
and on initial application of HKFRS 9
or initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
they are subsequently measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the
issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained profits. It is not
recycled through profit or loss.
Dividend income is recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. Equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses (“ECL(s)”)
associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost (including trade
receivables, other receivables, cash and
bank balances). The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses which are measured at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive) over the expected life
of the financial instrument. The maximum
period to consider when measuring ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the entity is exposed to credit risk.
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(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

ECLs are measured at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in the
debt instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the amount of
ECLs is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. Loss allowances
for debt instruments measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For
debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in fair value reserve
(recycling), instead of reducing the carrying
amount of the financial assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

For trade receivables (Note 25), the Group
applies a simplified approach to measure
the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
For other debt financial assets, the Group
measures the loss allowance either based
on 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs. When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to
be in default when the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is
held).

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

(ii)
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(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including other payables, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, bank and
other borrowings and the debt component
of convertible note issued by the Group are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The related
interest expense is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 4o.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

For other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

For borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.
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(iv) Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
that contain the liability and conversion
option components are classified
separately into their respective items on
initial recognition. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. For conversion option
classified as an equity instrument, the
difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible loan notes and the
fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the loan
notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes equity reserve). For
conversion option classified as derivative, it
is recognised at fair value. Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as liability.
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(iv) Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible loan notes is
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of
the Company, will remain in convertible
notes equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible loan equity
reserve will be transferred to share capital.
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry dates, the balance stated in
convertible loan notes equity reserve will
be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion
or expiration of the option. The conversion
option derivative is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to
the liability and conversion option
components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged
directly to equity and relating to conversion
option derivative is recognised to profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan notes using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when, and only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB AR M R

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

(i) Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories:

— available-for-sale financial assets;

— financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

— loans and receivables.

The classification determined on the
purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determined the
classification of its investments at initial
recognition. See Notes 20, 22 and 23 for
details about each type of the above
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Classification

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated or not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are investments either held for
trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. They are presented as current
assets if they are expected to be sold
within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets.

Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. When available-
for-sale financial assets are sold, the
cumulative fair value gains or losses
previously recognised in investment
revaluation reserve is removed from
investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

()

Financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Measurement

Investments in debt and equity securities
and funds are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that use only data from
observable markets. Any difference between
the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price is recognised as a gain or
loss in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are recognised as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets,
changes in fair value are dealt with as
movements in the investment revaluation
reserve except for impairment losses which
are charged to the income statement.
Where these investments are interest
bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement. Dividends from available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised
when the right to receive payment is
established.

For financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, the gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised
in income statement within other gains/
losses.

For loans, trade and other receivables

Loans, trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

For debt securities of available-for-sale
financial assets, if any such evidence exists,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in income statement — s
removed from equity and recognised in
income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in income statement, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

For equity investments of available-for-sale
financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement
— is removed from equity and recognised in
income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

For loans, trade and other receivables, a
provision for impairment is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, the probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as indicators
that the loan, trade and other receivables
are impaired. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The reversal of the previously
recognised impairment cost is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including other payables, borrowings and
amount due to an intermediate holding
company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

For other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(Continued)

For borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(iv) Effective interest method

(v)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when, and only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation, but are at least tested
annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject
to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed to
determine whether there is any indication that the
carrying value of these assets may not be
recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Such impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
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The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax
Current tax is based on the profit or loss
from ordinary activities adjusted for items
that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(ii) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill and the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the date of statement of financial position
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
on deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can
be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
leasing company are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases
(including up-front prepayments made for the
leasehold land and land use rights) net of any
incentives received from the leasing company are
charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property
leases are considered separately for the purposes
of lease classification.
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e BB R MY R

(i)

(i)

Salaries, bonus, paid annual leave and the
cost of other benefits to the Group are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the
Group.

The Group operates two defined
contribution schemes for Hong Kong
employees, the assets of which are held in
separate administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to the defined contribution
schemes are expensed as incurred and are
not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired
employees for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets
of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the
government of the PRC. Contributions to
these plans are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

The Group has participated in the 401(k)
scheme covering all of its eligible
employees in the U.S. Employees who
participate in the plan may contribute a
portion of their compensation on a pre-
income tax basis up to a limit specified by
law. The Group’s contribution to the plan is
based on the percentage of employee
contribution from the individual employee’s
monthly basic salary. The Group also
provides an employee benefit plan under
Internal Revenue Code Section 125,
offering to pay for its eligible employees
for medical premium and dependent care
expenses on a pre-tax basis. Contributions
to this scheme are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, and involves the
payment of termination benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present
value.

(iii)

(&)

N & B E 2 HA01(k)5T 8 K
EHEMAEEAEAKEER - 2
5+ 88912 8 ] LABR P13 5 A
HENE MBI (LERRER
FTEMRB)ERHR K&
B R FF S L AR D ERRE
BEREESAEAHFSEEM
EEHNEDLFE - AEE
TR AR R B A U A JED (Internal
Revenue Code)% 125 12
—IHEBRAGTE - R U
AEELREEREBINEE
e RZXEARERZ - mMUts
EEEMERERELERX
84 o

BEREANEEELREERIKE
AIEASER FEANEER
X B R DA R Bt 35 48 ) B
A AEBERIAT B E A
REERE)EABRRER
(a)EAKE T A e EHZ
EFwMmEER RO)EE®
HEREE L G &£ R E375R
[(BE ARBERIAREE]
BB N EAKEL F kX
BB AR M NIRRT o IR 2
AR B RERER BT
BEREANDERAHEIESR
MEBAHBE -ERSHR
1& %8 @121 B 2 8 > &9 48 7
SMRERME-

20184F £ 3R

177



178

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected
to become vested. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement and a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in
profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.
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Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties and
is after deduction of any trade discount.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognised in the
income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the year in which they are earned.

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments including
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
or other comprehensive income are recognised
when the shareholder’s rights to receive
payment have been established (provided that it
is probable that the economic benefit will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the year in which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(if)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the

consolidated financial statements and also discloses the

new accounting policies that have been applied from 1

January 2018, where they are different to those applied

in prior years.

(a)

Impact on the financial statement

As explained in Note 5A(b) below, HKFRS
9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new impairment rules are
therefore not reflected in the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the opening balance

on 1 January 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments
of the Group recognised for each individual
line item. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
As a result, the sub-totals and totals
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided. The adjustments of the
Group are explained in more detail below.

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application (the “DIA”) of HKFRS 9), the
Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial
assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(a) Impact on the financial statement (a) EHIBHFZZE(E)
(Continued)
The impact of these changes on the hEEHHAEERSNTE
Group’s equity is as follows: T

Effect on fair
Effect on value through

Investment other Effect on
revaluation  comprehensive retained
reserve  income reserve profits
HEAABETA
HREEM Hu2EKEMHE HESABEH
RENTE EZ EZ
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5x BETT BETT BETT
Opening balance 1 January 2018 — #2018F1 A 18 B F 4]
HKAS 39 N
£395 (24,194) = 724,674
Reclassify listed debt securities from BEMEBEHRAMHE
available-for-sale financial assets to PNENBKEEENNE
financial assets at fair value through ERARBAEFALM
other comprehensive income 2ENENIBEE b(i) (15,719) 15,719 —
Reclassify listed equity securities from  # F IR Z & 5/ Al
available-for-sale financial assets to PNENBKEEENNE
financial assets at fair value through ERARBAEFALM
other comprehensive income 2ENENIBEE b(ii) 38,209 (38,209) —
Reclassify non-publicly traded fund BHEAAEBERRER
investments from available-for-sale N ERBEESEN
financial assets to financial assets at fair DEZZ A A EEA
value through profit or loss BafyKEE biii) 1,704 = (1,704)
Increase in expected credit losses in loan & 7t [ J& I 705 #) 7 5
and interest receivables ERBEREM b(iv) = — (5,599)
Opening balance 1 January 2018 — 201851 A1B & 4]
HKFRS 9 wHh — BEMBRS
R FI — (22,490) 717,371
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(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— Impact of adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS
39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The
new accounting policies are set out in Note
(c) below. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9(7.2.15)
and (7.2.26), comparative figures have not
been restated. Any adjustments to the
carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities at the date of transition are
recognised in the opening retained profits
of the current year.
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(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— Impact of adoption (Continued)

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified its
financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories. The main effects
resulting from this reclassification are as

follows:

Opening balance 1 January 2018 —
HKAS 39

Reclassify listed debt securities from
available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Reclassify listed equity securities from
available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Reclassify non-publicly traded fund
investments from available-for-sale
financial assets to financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Opening balance 1 January 2018 —
HKFRS 9

Notes

i

P2018F1 BB —
AR QHEAEINR
BEMEBEFBAIELE
YHREEENHER
BARABEFALMBZE
KatmBaE (i)
BETREEFBARLE
NREEENHEE
BAABEGFALLEZE
BangHEE (ii)
BELAEERGRERTH
HEHKEEENHEE
BRALBEFARRN
HBEE (i)

20181 R1H M E N8R —
BARBREEREOR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(b) EEHFHEERFEIT

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

BLABEA
RENMKEE
HK$'000
EETT

80,670

76,366

157,036
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Financial assets
at fair value
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Available-for-sale

income financial assets
BRAREERA

Htt2EREN THHEN

HEEE HEEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

— 908,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption (Continued)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

Notes:

(0]

Reclassification of listed debt securities from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Listed debt securities were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as the Group’s
business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these
assets. The contractual cash flows of these
investments are solely principal and interest. As
a result, listed debt securities with a fair value
of HK$332,338,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and fair value gains of
HK$15,719,000 were reclassified from the
investment revaluation reserve to the fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve
on 1 January 2018.

(b) EEHFHEERIFEIT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption (Continued)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Reclassification of listed equity securities from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income changes in the fair value
of all its listed equity securities previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
because these investments are held as strategic
investments. As a result, listed equity securities
with fair values of HK$500,042,000 were
reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value
losses of HK$38,209,000 were reclassified from
the investment revaluation reserve to the fair
value through other comprehensive income
reserve on 1 January 2018. Other income for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was
HK$213,398,000 higher as there is no longer
any reclassification of accumulated amounts
from reserves to profit or loss on the disposal
and impairment of of these investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— Impact of adoption (Continued)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Reclassification of non-publicly traded fund
investments from available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group’s non-publicly traded fund
investments were reclassified from available-for-
sale financial assets to financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (HK$76,366,000 as
at 1 January 2018). They do not meet the
HKFRS 9 criteria for classification at amortised
cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, because their cash
flows do not represent solely payments of
principal and interest.

Related fair value loss of HK$1,704,000 were
transferred from the investment revaluation
reserve to retained profits on 1 January 2018.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, net
fair value losses of HK$11,830,000 relating to
these investments were recognised in profit or
loss.

Assessment of ECLs of loan and interest
receivables

The non-current loan and interest receivables of
the Group at amortised costs, upon the
transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018,
recognised the ECLs of HK$5,599,000 in the
retained profits.

(b) EEHFHEERIFEIT

[£H TR — REHZEE
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BRE(E

B i -
(iii)

(iv)
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BERFEEESREMAH
HENBEEENDEERR
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(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) BEMBHREERFIG 2/

Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instrument

HKFRS 9 basically retains the existing
requirements in HKAS 39 for the
classification and measurements of financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of
held to maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification
and measurement of financial assets is set
out below.

T EH/|— BE2018%F1H51H

FE R Y B 5t B %
(i) ZETANSERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instrument (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised costs”);
(i) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or (iii)
FVTPL (as defined in above). The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria:
(i) the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (ii) its
contractual cash flow characteristics (the
“solely payments of principal and interest”
criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”).
Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no
longer required to be separated from a host
financial asset. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #
FE B E 5 B 5 (48)

(i) =B TAMSERE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instrument (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and it has not been designated
as at FVTPL:

. It is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if
it meets both of the following conditions
and it has not been designated as at
FVTPL:

. It is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

. The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

(c) BEMFBHEERFEIT 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #
FEH B E 5 B 5 (48)

(i) =B TAMSERE(E)

MBEEMRBFTAS AT K
- BYEEERRAAEBE
T AR as 0 A% 3 55 A AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instrument (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading and
not contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer to which HKFRS 3 applies, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. All other financial assets
not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI
as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #
FE B E 5 B 5 (48)

(i) =B TAMSERE(E)

RAEFER I IR B I
FEE B HE EREIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from

(c) BEMFBHEERFEIT 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #

1 January 2018 (Continued) BRNETBF (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () =B ITABSERIE(E)

instrument (Continued)
The following accounting policies would be

AT BRGERNANEE

applied to the Group’s financial assets as W BEERT :
follows:
FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in

B BEFARS

Amortised cost

B 55 A A

fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised

in profit or loss.
BARBEAABREREALBER

REEMEKWANRBRER
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

AR BEED

]

measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

REBHEKNAINENVBEERERNAERNEXEGFE - A
Blras - IMNERGE REBARRERBRER - RIEHER
ERMEREBERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #

1 January 2018 (Continued) BREBF (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () ZBITABSERIE(E)

instrument (Continued)

FVOCI (debt instruments)
BRAARBEFAEMEZEKR
(BB ILE)

FVOCI (equity instruments)
BRARBEFAEMEZEKE
(RATAR)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

BARBEAAHMZARENERRELRRAALEBE
FAE-MAERMNEREAENNE NaE  INEFERER
NEORERERER - RFNEREENEMEEK
MR o MR IEHRE - NEM2E RS RFAHMNE RE
BeEsREEx-

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

BRARBEFAEMEZEHRGEORARERAABETE -
REWRGIFAEBROHORER AN - BN

SRR - EMFNEREER A2 E WA ER - M1

=8

PR o o
SEMOAEEE -

e

20184F £ 3R

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —

Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i)  Classification and measurement of financial

instrument (Continued)

The following table summarises the original

measurement categories under HKAS 39

and the new measurement categories
under HKFRS 9 for each class of the

(c) BEMFBHEERFEIT 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #
FEH B E 5 B 5 (48)

B TANDELEE (B)

TR A A20184F1 A1 H A&
EEEMBEERBEEESS
HERFEIRHREFT =R &
BAR B A B %5 3 5 22 A 95

Group’s financial assets as at 1 January

2018:

Financial assets

MBEE

Listed debt investment

IHEHRE

Listed equity investment
THRARE

Non-publicly traded fund
investments
FRREEEERE

Original classification
under HKAS 39

REE B SR RE9H
NEEDE

Available-for-sale
investments
(at fair value)
AHREERE(RARER)
Available-for-sale
investments (at fair
value)
AHEERE(RALER)
Available-for-sale
investments (at fair
value)

HEERE(ROAER)

T =28 R
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
1 January 1 January
New classification 2018 under 2018 under
under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
REZEEGT REFEHH
ERHEIRA  REERFR
BEEBHBERE  2018F1818  R2018F1A
ERZENFIE WMEESE 1BNEESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
FVOCI 332,338 332,338
BARBEFAHM
2HEME
FVOCI 500,042 500,042
BRnBEFALMD
2HEKE
FVTPL 76,366 76,366

BRABEFARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial

instrument (Continued)

Financial assets

MBEE

Unlisted equity investments

FLMBRARE

Trade receivables

JE e 55 3%

Loan receivables
(non-current)

EREFRGERE)

Interest receivables
(non-current)

FEYFI S FER E)

Other interest receivables
(current)

H YA 2 (R E)

Restricted cash

XRERE

Cash and bank balances

Be RRTHEH

Original classification
under HKAS 39

REFBE T ERFE0N
MEREEDE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BAREBAEFTABENTH
BE

Loan and receivables

BRI A

Loans and receivables

BEX R EYHIE

Loans and receivables
BEX R EYHIE

Loans and receivables
EX R EYHIE

Loans and receivables
BER R YA
Loans and receivables
BER R EM A

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #
FE B E 5 B 5 (48)

(i) =B TAMSERE(E)

Carrying

amount as at

1 January

New classification 2018 under

under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39

BEEBE

% B 83955 1

BEEEMBRE 20181818

ERZENTIE HEEHSHE

HK$'000

BETT

FVTPL 80,670

BRARBEFARR

Amortised cost 292
B

Amortised cost 221,632
BHEAR

Amortised cost 35,867
BEAR

Amortised cost 8,593
B

Amortised cost 880,642
B

Amortised cost 713,397
BHEAR

Carrying
amount as at
1 January
2018 under
HKFRS 9
BERBHE
% % B 95
2018518
1ENGEESRE
HK$'000
BETT

80,670

292

219,368

32,532

8,593

880,642

713,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“ECLs model”. HKFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognise ECLs for trade
receivables, financial assets at amortised
costs, contract assets and debt investment
at FVOCI earlier than HKAS 39. Cash and
cash equivalents are subject to ECLs
model but the impairment is immaterial for
the current year.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the end of the
reporting period: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

For trade receivables, the Group has elected
to measure loss allowances for rental
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #

BREBF (&)
(i) BB EERE(E)
STEEBERER

BHEERBRAZRE DS
B & #)IR 20 BN 5 B 78 B UL
B AEREANERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For loan and interest receivables, the ECLs
are determined based on the 12 months
ECLs. The 12 months ECLs is the portion
of the lifetime ECLs that results from
default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. However, when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECLs. When
determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information. The Group’s loan receivables
at amortised cost are considered to have
low credit risk as the balance represents
loans receivables due from a non-
controlling shareholder of PT Mabar
Elektrindo (“PT Mabar”), a subsidiary of the
Company. Since PT Mabar is entitled to
retain 70% of each dividend distribution to
PT Garda Sayap Garuda with gross
amount outstanding as at 31 December
2018 of HK$274,240,000 (2017:
HK$258,694,000) for repayment of
outstanding loan receivables, the credit risk
on these receivables is limited and the
restatement of the loss allowance for these
receivables on transition to HKFRS 9 as a
result of applying the expected credit risk
model was immaterial.

(c) BEHMFBHEEEREIR 25
TE/— BE2018%18518 #

R B B &t B % ()
(i) FBEEEREE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to
be in default when the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is
held).

For listed debt securities carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the
Group considers all of them to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the year was therefore
limited to twelve months expected losses.
Management considered a low credit risk for
listed debt securities to be an investment
grade credit rating with at least one major
rating agency.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

(c) BEMBHEERFEIR 25
TEHE/— E201818518 #

RSB % (&)
(i)  BIHEERE(E)
STEEBEABXRE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model

(a)

Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECLs which
adopts a life time ECLs for trade
receivables. The Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECLs which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables. The balance of
trade receivables mainly represents
rental receivables. Rental deposits
are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. Since the
Group’s historical credit loss
experience for its trade receivables
was minimal, the restatement of the
loss allowance for these receivables
on transition to HKFRS 9 as a result of
applying the expected credit risk
model was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-current loan and
interest receivables

The non-current loan and interest
receivables of the Group at amortised
costs are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowances
recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 was therefore limited
to 12 months ECLs.

The increase in loss allowances for the
non-current loan and interest
receivables upon the transition to
HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 were
HK$5,599,000. The loss allowances
further increased by HK$1,219,000
during the year ended 31 December

2018.

(c) BEMBHREELEIW £/
T H|— H2018F1H18#
RSB % (&)

(i)  BIHEERE(E)
TBHEABAEANNTE(E)

(b)

FE B HA fE Uk & 5k K I B
BB

7N 6 B 1% 8 A AN B BR
9 3E BN HA JE U & 5% K A
BREHEARKEER
B - & £2018F12H31H
LEFEERANEEBE
EfmA+ =@ A EHE
RABEXAER -

R2018F1 818 B B =
BB IREERER
Y 3E BN HA E Uk B 3R K
BB 18 B B
5,599,0007T ° & %2018
F12A3MB L F & - B
BHEEE—SEINBE
1,219,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(c) HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —
Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(iii)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9
was generally adopted without
restating comparative information.
The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new ECLs rules are
therefore not reflected in the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the statement of
financial position on 1 January 2018. This
mean that differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 does not reflect the
requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those
of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(c)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument —

Accounting policy applied from
1 January 2018 (Continued)
(iii)  Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the DIA of

HKFRS 9:

(c) BEMBHREELEIW £/
T H/— E2018F1HA1H &
BREBF (&)

(iii) B (48)

ATHELDERE M B RE
EAFOHFHERRRFE

MEERBREDL :

The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is
held;

The designation and revocation of
previous designations of certain
financial assets as measured at
FVTPL; and

The designation of certain
investments in equity investments not
held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had
low credit risk at the DIA, then the Group
has assumed that the credit risk on the
asset had not increased significantly since
its initial recognition.

- EERAVBEEMNZE
BIRAY

. EEMMBERXEES
THBEENEAAE
AABRN ST AFE:
54

- ETLEBEEEOR
AREHETRERD
RES AR 2 E S -

HREBRENRE EIGEE
REHMABEEERR AIX
SERRZEENEERARA
H ) 16 7 72 LA 2R I & K 1F 1
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The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies.
In accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted the new rules
retrospectively. The Group assessed the impacts
of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the assessment, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 has no significant impact on the
Group’s revenue recognition as the Group’s
dividend income, interest income and rental
income are not within the scope of HKFRS 15.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk management is
carried out by senior management of the Group
under policies approved by the board of directors
of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

()

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollar (“US$”), HK$ and
Renminbi (“RMB”) as the Group’s revenue
and the operating costs are denominated in
these currencies. The Group is also exposed
to other currency movements, primarily in
terms of investments in the U.S. and
Indonesia, bank deposits, available-for-sale
financial assets and bank and other loans
denominated in US$. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The
Group has not entered into any derivative
instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
exposures.

(i)

i 45 L g (4%

S & J7l %
AEBHEZETRERES
MSNERKR - EBW RETT
BELEARE RERAKH
B A R B ERAIAZFE R
AHE -AEETESEMBER
SERORER - TERIAEITE
BEOREXBERHNENKRE R
TEH - A EMBEEMN
FARTT R EME R - SME R
KEHERERS  CHERN
BENABBANRNRINEZED
FIRE o NEE YW EET A
TTET RS AN EREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if the HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 0.5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year and equity would have
been HK$35,435,000 higher/lower (2017:
profit for the year would be HK$19,769,000
lower/higher) and HK$34,868,000 lower/
higher (2017: HK$17,725,000 lower/higher)
respectively, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of US$
denominated cash and bank deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
available-for-sale financial assets, loans
receivables, borrowings and amount due to
an intermediate holding company. The
Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HK$ and the
US$ not significant due to the fact that the
HK$ and the US$ are pegged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

()

Market risk (Continued)

Price risk

The Group’s main market price risk
exposures relate to its financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and through
other comprehensive income, which mainly
comprise debt and equity securities. At 31
December 2018, if the market price of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and through other comprehensive
income had increased/decreased by 5%,
loss for the year and equity of the Group
would have been HK$3,235,000 lower/
higher (2017: profit for the year would have
been HK$4,034,000 higher/lower) and
HK$18,950,000 (2017: HK$49,471,000)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result
of the gains/losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and through
other comprehensive income. The Group
closely monitors the price movement and
changes in market conditions that may have
an impact on the value of these financial
assets.

(i)

45 B % (48)
15 )7 S
REBEMNEEMSERRERSE
BEAnEBEFTABREITAR
thEEBNRNMBEERRM -
REBEENEBEREZSF R
F o 2018F12A31H - it #%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for cash and bank
deposits, listed debt securities included
under financial assets at fair value other
comprehensive income and loans
receivables. The Group has no significant
interest-bearing liabilities except for bank
and other loans.

The interest rate for the listed debt
securities, loans receivables and other
loans are fixed. The interest of the bank
and other loans is capitalised. At 31
December 2018, if interest rates on cash
and bank deposits had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would have
been HK$10,899,000 lower/higher (2017:
profit for the year would have been
HK$15,940,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of interest income on the bank
deposits.

Credit risk

The aggregate revenue from the five
largest customers represents 41.3% (2017:
45.3%) of total revenue excluding interest
income and dividend income, of which, one
customer (2017: two customers)
individually exceeds 10% of the total
revenue (excluding interest income and
dividend income) for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the balance of
trade and other receivables mainly
represents rental receivables and interest
receivables. Rental deposits are required
from tenants prior to the commencement of
leases. The Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of these debtors to manage the
risk.

There is no significant credit risk in relation
to the Group’s cash and bank deposits as
cash and bank deposits are placed with
banks and financial institutions with good
credit ratings. Approximately 98% (2017:
85%) of the Group’s bank deposits were
placed in international financial institutions
with minimum credit ratings of A3/A- as
rated by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s
as at 31 December 2018.

The Group’s investments in listed debt
securities are listed in Singapore with
credit rating of A2/A- as rated by Moody’s
and Standard & Poor’s as at 31 December
2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for
the Group and the Company at the
reporting date is the carrying amount of
each class of financial assets.

The Group determines the ECL rate for its
loan receivables using the general
approach, which is based on Group’s
historical credit loss experience, expected
loan repayment date and adjusted by
forward looking factors.

45 B (48)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

(0)

Market risk (Continued) (i)
Credit risk (Continued)

The loss allowances as at 31 December

2018 was determined for non-current loan

and interest receivables as follows:

5 B % (48)

EEmEE (&)

NEBE R IR E R ER R F
EEER2018F12H31B /&
BHEENOT :

Loan and

interest

On 31 December 2018 receivables

12018512831 H ERERRFE

ECL (%) T8 Hi {5 A 1B 2K (%) 2.4
Gross carrying amount of non-current 3F B} 2 & U & 7% & %I B 49 BR T 42 58

loan and interest receivables (BTt
(HK$’000) 278,396
Loss allowances (HK$’000) EEEE (BB T T) 6,818

In respect of loan receivables, credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
and the
recognised during the year was therefore
limited to 12 months ECLs.

recognition, loss allowances
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB AR M R

(i) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, senior management
of the Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines
available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

(ii)

By 1 BE
FEAMEN R R E R IR
RmEMRENEEES iﬁiﬂ
TRENFAFEEREES

B2 kAH ﬁ#”m%HF°
BMAREEEBEE RS A
WMAEENSRERESES
BEFTAAREERERE
BEeTEEM-

TRERBERESHEIHA

E’Jﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ' FBMEEHA
HEDTAEBNTKEERE -

%WT&E@E’J%&%E%*EEEEEE%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 BMBEMKREER(E)
(CONTINUED)

(ii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TENIEE BE ()

Contractual payment

R ENEN
Less than
1 year and Between Between
repayable 1 and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
1E 0T R
BRERMBE 1Z2628 285528 545 E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT B¥ETT B¥ETT B¥ETT
At 31 December 72018F12H31H
2018
Deposits BlES - Hitt
received, other JE{I K TE K&
payables and  JE:tIEH
accruals 933,441 473,633 3,310 7,489
Borrowings BE 4,563,968 242,820 1,426,371 —
Amount due to  FE{ — A EZER
an intermediate A 7 7 1E
holding
company — 5,194,773 — —
5,497,409 5,911,226 1,429,681 7,489
At 31 December 72017§12H31H
2017
Deposits BElize - Hit
received, other &t IE &
payables and  JE:tIEH
accruals 913,953 334,929 6,677 5,743
Borrowings P 4,299,643 — 1,067,007 —
Amount due to  JEF — & %
an intermediate A 7 7B
holding
company 3,120,506 — — —
8,334,102 334,929 1,073,684 5,743
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
capital. Total debt is calculated as “total
borrowings”. Total capital is calculated as “total
equity”, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 BMBEMKREER(E)
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a healthy AEENKRBEEHEFBRENER
gearing ratio. The gearing ratios, as calculated by BELE - BEREELE(REER
total borrowings over total shareholders’ equity, HHRUARRESBETE)NOT -

are as follows:

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Total borrowings (excluding BEERE(TBEEEN
amount due to an — R R R A A FRIE)
intermediate holding
company) 6,147,463 5,328,364
Amount due to an intermediate & < — &5 & [ 5 % A A
holding company RIE 5,194,773 3,120,506
Total borrowings (including BEERE(BEEN
amount due to an —ME R EERA B KIE)
intermediate holding
company) 11,342,236 8,448,870
Total equity M AR 10,812,440 11,175,800
Gearing ratio (excluding amount & 7N & & bt & (T 1T
due to an intermediate — R R B A R KIE)
holding company) 56.9% 47.7%
Gearing ratio (including amount & A & &Lt & (& %F&“ﬁ
due to an intermediate — R R R A R RIE)
holding company) 104.9% 75.6%
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In order to fund the daily operation and the
expansion of the business of the Group,
significant amounts of capital in the form of
borrowing or equity, or a combination of both, is
considered to be necessary in the future. The
directors of the Company consider such funding
for the future operation and expansion will be
available as and when required.

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments that were measured at fair value at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

(i)  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

(i)  Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

(iii)  Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RRM
6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 BMBEMKREER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(iii) (Continued) (i) (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2145 Zop 235 st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT BETT

At 31 December 2018 2018%F12H31H
Financial assets at BARBEFARR

fair value through W% EE

profit or loss

— Non-publicly traded — FERHEE

fund investments Ee KB — 64,700 — 64,700

Financial assets at fair & A7 BEF AH M

value through other 2 H W1

comprehensive MBEE
income
— Non-publicly traded — FFAHEE L
listed equity mREE 7
securities — — 200,956 200,956
— Listed debt — BEEM=EMNE
securities with mEKE S
fixed interest rate 113,334 — — 113,334
Total financial assets  Bf 7% & & &8 113,334 64,700 200,956 378,990

At 31 December 2017 720174127318
Financial assets at fair %A 7 (BET AEBzE
value through profit or K81 7§ & &

loss
— Unlisted equity — — JFFETRAKRE
investments — — 80,670 80,670
Available-for-sale ARHENBEE
financial assets
— Listed debt — BEM=ENE
securities with MEBLEH
fixed interest rate 332,338 — — 332,338
— Listed equity — TR EES
securities 500,042 — — 500,042
— Non-publicly traded — FERFEE
fund investments EEIRE = 76,366 = 76,366
Total financial assets & EHEE 832,380 76,366 80,670 989,416

218 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there
were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments in Level 1
During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company’s equity investments in China
Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (“Huiyuan
Juice”) of HK$200,956,000 (2017:
HK$432,000,000) has become non-publicly
traded as trading of shares of Huiyuan
Juice has been suspended since April
2018. Hence, these equity investments
were transferred from Level 1 to Level 3
for the estimation of fair value as at 31
December 2018.

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the date of the
statement of financial position. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price.

Financial instruments in Level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

REE2017F12A31B IEFE - F1
& B2 M EIF RN EER -

(i)

(ii)

F1RA LT A

» B £2018F12A31H I F
E BHRTBERRTEESR
RAF(CEREADRM A
2018F4A R EFEE - A
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#200,956,0007T (20174 : &
#432,000,0007T) E 5K A FE R
FE &ALt K20185F12H
3B AHETAREE %5
BAKED HEIREBREES
43

REBMSEENSRT AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 BMBEMKREER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.

The following table presents the changes in
Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31

(iii) FE3RA L TR
W—IBH L EENGASEL
FERABEAEBOTEH
B AT AFIAEMR-

TREJNERIARERE
20184 k2017412H318 It

December 2018 and 2017. FEMNEE -
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Opening balance F Y4 o 80,670 —
Additions R — 78,053
Transfer from level 1 o 551 4% B 432,000 =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEMEAFR
(Note 35) (PfF7%35) (100,453) —
Fair value gains on revaluation Z &% A 4 EE A
of financial assets at fair BEamiiBEEN
value through profit or loss NREENE 19,463 2,499
Fair value loss on revaluation Z &% 4 EE A
of financial assets at fair H b 2 T W %5 &9 B
value through other BEENAREE
comprehensive income [ (231,044) —
Exchange difference ME 5, Z R 320 118
Closing balance F R 200,956 80,670
Total gains for the year RBERARFEED
included in income BEFAREZERD
statement for assets held at ~ F R F15 425 -
the end of the reporting Z TR E At F
period, under “Other net F15
gains” 19,783 2,617
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e M RRMEE

Iy ==
6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 HMHEEEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3 (iii) FEIRABI L TR (&)
(Continued)
The following table summarises the TRBMBEHEAEIR AR EE
quantitative information about the STEFMAMEARTNAIBEME
significant unobservable inputs used Mg AEBENELLER
level 3 fair value measurements.
Range of significant Relationship of unobservable
Description Fair value at Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RT3 BHH EXTABEREH FABRMEH
ik AAREE EXATABREMEHBAYE BAREEE WABEEQAAEENBR
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20174 20185 20174
HK$000  HK$'000
BT BETRT
Unlisted equity investments - 80,670 Expected volatility N/A~If the volatility is 2.6% higher/  The higher the volatility, the
at fair value (Note a) 78 H#1)% 1 TER lower, while all other lower the fair value
BARBENFELD (Ftka) variables were held constant, FIEH® @ A4 EEBE
BRAKE the fair value would decrease
by HK$405,000 and increase
by HK$443,000 respectively.
fif 58 £ 7t/ T B2.6% 1M Fi A £
pEBERETE AAAEE
1% 5 Bl A 2 7 %405,0007T K
14 0 7% %£443,0007T
Non-publicly traded listed equity 200,956 — Discount for the lack of 10%  N/A The higher the marketability
securities at fair value (Note b) marketability TEA discount, the lower the fair
BRRBEMFEAH (K &Eb) Rz BT R value
BELTRERS mBENELS  AnBEME
Company specific discount 40%  NIA The higher the company specific
attributable to trade halt due to TEA discount, the lower the fair

corporate governance issues
Re$EREEMEERILEER
FfT 31 B8 1 R4 E A iR

value
AABERESS AABE
MR

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3

(Continued)

Notes:

a. On 30 July 2018, the Company entered into a

sale and purchase agreement with a connected

person of the Company for disposal of its entire

equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary

which owned the unlisted equity investments.

Completion of the disposal has taken place

simultaneously with the signing of the

agreement.

b. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the

Company’s equity investments in Huiyuan Juice

has become non-publicly traded as trading of

shares of Huiyuan Juice has been suspended

since April 2018.

Hence, these equity

investments were transferred from Level 1 to

Level 3 for the estimation of fair value as at 31

December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,

the Group did not transfer any impairment

loss from other comprehensive income into

the consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,

the Group transferred impairment loss of
HK$189,054,000 from other comprehensive
income into the retained earnings upon

adoption of HKFRS 9.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(iii) FEIRABI LT R (&)

Mt 3

a. 20187 H308 * AR Al & —
BARRNBAEATII L —HE
Bl AHER —MHEEF
EFTRAREH 2 EHER A
2R E - HEFIHEE EY

AR RAEEETK -

b. R # £2018412A318 1t F
E - AR ERRT RN 852018
FARAREEFEEE  WARAR
ERETHRAZEBKAF]
AR EE - Bk 72018512
A31B REFRABE Z
ERARECHBIREBBES
3@ -

R H E2017412A318 I£ F
B AEEYEAEME2ER
HEHTAREBEEGA I

#H Z£2018%F12A318 It F
CAEBEERRAEBVBR
A F9 1% B Hth 2 HE W
o5 B B K #5189,054,0007T HY
BWEBEERBAEF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3
(Continued)
The fair value of the following financial

assets and liabilities approximate their

carrying amount:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Loans receivables;

Trade receivables;

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables;

Cash and bank deposits;

Deposits received, other payables and
accruals;

Borrowings; and

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company.

The disclosures of the investment

properties that are measured at fair value

are set out in Note 18.

(iii) BIRABI L5 T AR (&)
ANTHBEERBBNARE
BEEDSERS :

(iy EWE:
(i) FEUWERK

(i) & BNKREREM
JE R FRIE

(iv) RERRITER:

(v) 2¥EE - HEMENK
ARERIARB

(vii) B —MEHEIZERA A
FRIA ©

RAREERORED L
15058 R B 18 -

20184F £ 3R
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Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements
includes a summary of the significant accounting
policies used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements often requires the use of
judgments to select specific accounting methods and
policies from several acceptable alternatives.
Furthermore, significant estimates and assumptions
concerning the future may be required in selecting
and applying those methods and policies in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group bases its
estimates and judgments on historical experience and
various assumptions that are reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates and judgments under different assumptions
or conditions.

The following is a review of the more significant
assumptions and estimates, as well as the accounting
policies and methods used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, apart from those involving
estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the
assumption that the Group will be able to
operate as a going concern in the coming year,
which is a critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors, at
a particular point of time, about the future
outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The directors consider that
the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption are set out in Note 3b to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

REMBRRMTIEEREGSMBR
KEMAZESTRRAME - EHRALR
B BEWMRNBRETEEBFELHE - A
REEANERITRPELFRESHTER
BK - BE ERENERSFIEMK
RARBGAV B RERIBED  AIREH
EHARARELEAGEERRER - AKEDW
EERHABDZERNBELR  UREER
AERATARAENZEARBR ETRRBR
HZERT  BERERAEANNEEFHE
&

T X AR S hR A IS R R A R &
EABRRLMEE  ARGHBERRTE -

EERASHEENRRUABREA
MBRROERED By RbitE
Sh BIEE IR R A K B A L 5
KRR -FHERE MUtz
BN GEMBERERPER SR
BUREATZE GEFEFELE
BRE - EFARX - KEHAEH
ETEMHABANARARER A H
BREAELEBERE EFRE
AEBRRNIFELE MARKE
AEBRBREEBR—RAIEER
HREKERVRELEARENET
ZEMHRBRENGE B HHRKHK
F3b °
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A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used
in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets
for identical items (unadjusted);

. Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;
and

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above
levels is based on the lowest level of the inputs
used that has a significant effect on the fair
value measurement of the item. Transfers of
items between levels are recognised in the
period they occur.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

BREAKENMBEHREANSZIRE
ERABRBEAREBEFER /X

BEAAEE-

AEBEMBGRIEMBEERAED
ARBEFEEANENBMESAE
EMSHABBERERET AR
BEAABEFENGAREDE
RET R S ERM T R ARE
MABREED R TRBMNTAR
BESHR]):

© B AREANERD
5 ) 4 (B Ok 48 18

)

. 28 1 BRI AR A
MABRMEER
& B ABE
K

c F3K: TABEMBEA
2 (BN 3F T 35 8K
BEH) -

BE—IEB SR E &R TS5 A
HEBEAABEAEAAEARE
B BT AR B A BUE SR AR BI R AR
BHEERAN zENEEENEL
B HA R IR o
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The Group measures a number of items at fair
value:

. Investment properties in Shanghai, the PRC
(Note 18);

. Available-for-sale financial assets (Note
20);

. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 21); and

. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 22).

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes.

The Group recognised life time ECLs for the
loan and interest receivables due from a non-
controlling party at HK$6,818,000 (Note 23),
using a general approach based on
management’s best estimate of losses incurred
at the reporting date. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flow that are due to the Group
and all the cash flows that the Group expected
to receive, discounted at effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected or
being revised downward due to changes in fact
or circumstances, a material impairment loss
may arise.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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AEBZARBEAESEER :

TELEENREYDEME
18)

« AHHERBEE(ME20):

- BAARBERAHEMEEKE
m B & E (B aE21) &

. BARBEFABEONTEE
= (FfsE22) -

BERLEMBRBERAABEFENEHN
MER F2HERME -

AEBAAEREREBHRB®RER
HEEEABBNREM TN KA
BB —RIEERTNER K
FEeEmAEPBEHEHRBEBREBE
6,818,0007C (Fff 5£23) - ERNFEH =
FRBRER R EE B SR IIRA
EENAEENEGHNRSRERE
EEHKBHERE R ZENE
B2 WIRR YA ERFEE D
ERFER - MARRRE R DR
EHSIEAEEREREEM
AT gL EEE B AR E RIS ©



At the date of statement of financial position, the
Group undertakes a review to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment of non-
financial assets.

Properties, plant and equipment and other non-
financial assets are reviewed for impairment
losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which an asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Reversal of
an impairment provision is recorded as income in
the period when the reversal occurs. Reversal on
impairment loss would be recognised if there has
been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment test was carried out.

Estimation of the useful lives of the Group’s
power plant facilities is based on the Group’s
assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar
assets. Management estimates the useful lives of
the power plant facilities, which are under
construction, to be around 40 years. Changes in
the expected level of usage and technological
development could have an impact on the
economic useful lives and the residual values of
these assets, and therefore future depreciation
charges.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

REER AEBETERANETE
ERBEMPRETRIEMBEEL
HRE -

BEBEHABRAEHBETIRE

EW B Y MR RBENREM
VB EENEDSER  AEE
gEMREBE ~SEeREE
IRE R W& 8 A =R
RREBEE BAEREMNS @ &
ETRABIHNR SN ENRE
BRSE - BREZBEOERLSNE
EEANDHREIERA - MARE
EFEENKESENMTEETL
RBEAREERZSE  A|AEHE
SRR BEBENED -

AEBEBHEBMREHNAIERFHID
ERNAEEHTREMNNFE A
MEMFEREEEUEENLR
et EEEBRAERERERRIE
B B {58 A F B 40 /R40%F - T T £
KERRMERNEH R ETEZ

FEENRKEANERFHRRGE
B EMFEARNTESL -
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The estimated useful lives are reviewed at least
each financial year-end and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limitations on the use of the assets. It is
possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by
changes in the factors mentioned above.

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties under development according to their
net realisable values based on the realisability of
these properties. Net realisable value for
properties under development is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion (including land costs). Based on
management’s best estimates, an impairment
loss of HK$77,582,000 (Note 24) was
recognised on properties under development for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group currently classifies the construction
costs of the project in the Los Angeles, United
States as properties under development (for
condominiums) and investment properties (for
others). For the investment properties, the Group
considers to hold the properties for earning fixed
rental income after completion of construction and
commencement of operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

8 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

Revenue represents rental income, interest income and
dividend income. The amounts of revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

I N\ B 53 88 &
ARAMEELBAREER - KA AM
B R0 E B A B I 30 -

WABRHES K M8 Mam kB
7o FABIBHNWASRMOT :

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 7T T
Rental income from investment HEMENES W
properties 96,118 92,194
Rental income from properties ERAMENHES K=
under development (Note) (M%) — 1,582
Interest income F 2 Wz 30,785 44,024
Dividend income % Bk 2% 11,734 4,374
138,637 142,174
Note: Bt 5T -

Revenue of HK$1,582,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
represented rental income from leasing of properties acquired for
development before the commencement of the development.

HZE2017F12A318 1L E 18 #1,582,000T A 35
RNERBAB RSB HASREEMKENDERSH
el -
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The senior management comprising executive
directors and the chief financial officer are the
Group’s chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”).
Management has determined operating segments for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

Segments are managed separately as each business
segment has different business objectives and is
subject to risks and returns that are different from one
another.

Earnings/(losses) before interest expense and tax
(“EBIT/(LBIT)”) is regarded as segment results in
respect of the Group’s reportable segments as the
CODM considers that this can better reflect the
performance of each segment. EBIT/(LBIT) is used in
the Group’s internal financial and management reporting
to monitor business performances.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

EREEE(BRATESIVMBEAE) R
AEBHNEIELERKEE ((TERERK
) BEEREBECEEREDH  UNEE
RE R ERE

HREXEBHMNEHAETR BED
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HREBELERRERRARAGRAEZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

8 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

WA B 53 BB & # (8])

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2N18FN2ANBLEE
Finance
Property Real estate investment
investment  development Energy and others Total
BHRE
NERE EHERE HRED REfM @it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
Segment revenue from external RENBEFEHHBRA
customers 96,118 - - 42,519 138,637
Segment results before other net EFBEAISBER
losses 80,977 (27,648) (18,754) (2,292) 32,283
Other net losses (Note 9a) £t 3 HE (M) - (77,582) (1,219) (7,161) (85,962)
EBIT/(LBIT) MERBARMN/ (BR) 80,977 (105,230 (19,973) (9,453) (53,679)
Income tax expense FRR (26,243)
Loss for the year FAEE (79,922)
Segment assets PEBE 1,485,413 18,239,875 3,498,194 1,011,568 24,235,050
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE - 10,585 - - 10,585
Total assets AEBE 24,245,635
Segment liabilities NHEE 71,737 1,509,166 169,432 44,682 1,795,017
Borrowings EE - 2,269,437 — 3,878,026 6,147,463
Amount due to an intermediate holding & ff — & F B2 2 &l 58
company 874,140 3,424,855 - 895,778 5,194,773
Current income tax liabilities mBAERAR 24,406 - - 2,197 26,603
Deferred income tax liabilities EEHMERAR 266,842 2,497 — - 269,339
Total liabilities BERE 13,433,195
Depreciation of properties, plant and ~ #1% - BELRREHTE
equipment 460 763 597 1,207 3,027
Amortisation of leasehold land and land 7 & 1 i [z £ 06 F 2 ) 4 85
use rights 79 — — — 79
Additions to non-current segment assets AE FEAH 2 BEE (M)
(Note) 35,530 1,037,437 206,108 182 1,279,257
Note: B 5

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions to

properties, plant and equipment, investment properties, prepayments

for construction of power plants and prepayments for property

development projects.

REFRDOMEEREFEDE BIBERRMHE &
BEME 2REEHMORNFKBAARYEERIAE W

T FROR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

8 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8 WARDEIER(E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE17TE12RMBILEE
Finance
Property Real estate investment
investment  development Energy and others Total
HBRE ‘
NERE  BHERE HEEN REA &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETIL BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue AHKA 92,194 1,582 — 48,398 142,174
Segment results before other net Bt RGasH2E
qains 75,165 (20,645) (9672) 12,557 57,405
Other net gains (Note 9a) E A5 (Fr9a) - - — 29,151 29,151
EBIT/(LBIT) HERBARRN/ (BR) 75,165 (20,645) (9,672) 41,708 86,556
Income tax expense FrERZ (17.411)
Profit for the year FERFIA 69,145
Segment assets PHEE 1,614,030 15,036,106 3,481,907 1,316,855 21,448,898
Deferred income tax assets BERGHAE - 9,211 - - 9,211
Total assets KERE 21,458,109
Segment liabilities PHEE 77,415 1,282,734 156,538 22,645 1,539,332
Bormowings EE — 3232269 617535 1478560 5328364
Amount due to an intermediate holding & ff — & R 15 22 A1 U8
company 1,178,241 — — 1,942,265 3,120,506
Current income tax liabilities RBMEHAR 25,320 = = = 25,320
Deferred income tax liabilities ERFMEHAR 266,851 1,936 = = 268,787
Total liabilities BELE 10,282,309
Depreciation of properties, plant and ~ #1% - BELRENHTE
equipment 401 643 89 2,305 3,438
Amortisation of leasehold land and land & T3t T3 FENEH
use rights 51 — — — 51
Additions to non-current segment assets R E JEEE D HEE (M)
(Note) 359 1,008,813 762,854 413 1,772,439
Note: L

REFRDOMEECEREDE BIBERRE R
EME 2REEBOANRBAARDEERIRE W
T FROR -

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions to
properties, plant and equipment, investment properties, prepayments
for construction of power plants and prepayments for property
development projects.
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Geographical information:
The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong, the PRC,
the U.S. and Indonesia. The geographical segment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

I EH

AEBXTERNEL HE XBERODEL
EETE o s MBRARE S - FLE KA
BRENMBLUERERZT -

revenue is presented based on the geographical
location of the rental, interest and dividend income.

BWBRUESDWKRAREENT :

Revenue and assets by geographical location are as

follows:
Hong
U.S. Indonesia PRC Kong Total
EY] 211 ] 58 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BETr BBt BBt A%Tr
Revenue ['ON
31 December 2018 2018F12A31H
31 December 2017 2017%F12A318 2,664 13,365 96,811 29,334 142,174
Total assets BEE#E
31 December 2018 2018F12A31H
31 December 2017 2017%F12A318 15,045,317 3,480,988 1,580,722 1,351,082 21,458,109

FHEEEZEFEH :

W A HR 4978 51,9308 7T (20174F « 4978
2, 7708 7T) KRB — B INE & P (20174 -
B2 TTOB T REAMBINBEL) %5
B EMEANEBRRA (TEEFN B K
KR B 25)10% A E - ZIWARBR
MEREDELREFRE -

Information about major customers:

Revenue of approximately HK$19.3 million (2017:
approximately HK$27.7 million) is derived from one
external customer (2017: HK$27.7 million from two
external customers), which individually amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
income and dividend income). This revenue is
attributable to the property investment segment and
derived from the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 7% SRR MY &E

(Loss)/profit before tax is stated after crediting and

charging the following:

Crediting

Fair value gains on revaluation of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note a)

Net realised gains on disposal of
listed debt securities classified as
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (Note a)

Net realised gains on disposal of
listed debt securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets
(Note a)

Net realised gains on disposal of
listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale financial
assets (Note a)

Rental income from investment
properties

Charging

Fair value losses on revaluation of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note a)

Impairment loss on properties under
development (Note a)

Expected credit losses on loan and
interest receivables (Note a)

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) (Note b and 14)

Depreciation of properties, plant and
equipment (Note ¢ and 17)

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights (Note 19)

Operating lease charges in respect
of properties (Note d)

Auditor’s remuneration
Audit and audit related services
Non-audit services

Net foreign exchange losses
(Note a)

Direct operating expenses arising
from investment property that
generated rental income

BERT(ER) /FEE s ARDKR T3
EE
2017
20174
HK$'000
T T
A
EHEAABETABRR
NP EEENRAABE
15 (Fff 5Ea) 2,499
LESEAZERAREE
FAHMEEKED
PEEEN EMER
BERFERFE
M zta) —
& 548 A A & B
BEMNLEMEKES
7R & I8 F 15 (M 5Ea)
19,669
& 55 AT S B
BEMLETRERESN
FEIEFF (M Ea)
27,928
REER S WS
92,194
HBR
EHEAABET AR
NV EEENRAEE
&5 18 (M =%a) —
EEAYENREEIS
(Ff3¥a) =
FE U B 3K B B By B HA
ZAB Kk (HiEa) —
EERA(BEESEHE)
(Bt &% bZk14) 43,759
VI3 S REBRENITE
(Wﬁ%c&ﬂ?) 3,438
A& 4t & 4 3t F F A
85 (KT 3E19) 51
MEKEHEER (HEd)
10,071
2 S BB &
EZ R EZEERE 5,724
IEEZRE 1,746
AN S B 55, 0% B5 18 (B ta)
20,945
EEHSWENREDE
EAMNBEELEETH
9,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

Notes:

Other net losses of HK$85,962,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 represented (i) the net foreign exchange losses
of HK$12,812,000; (ii) the impairment loss on properties under
development of HK$77,582,000; (iii) the expected credit losses
on loan and interest receivables of HK$1,219,000; and (iv) the
net fair value losses on revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$630,000; net of (v) the net
realised gains on disposal of listed debt securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of HK$6,281,000.

Other net gains of HK$29,151,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 represented (i) the fair value gains on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$2,499,000; (ii) net realised gains on disposal of listed
debt securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$19,669,000; (iii) net realised gains on disposal of listed
equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$27,928,000; net of (iv) the net foreign exchange
losses of HK$20,945,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, staff costs amounting to
HK$50,592,000 (2017: HK$38,968,000), HK$11,844,000 (2017:
HK$9,639,000) and HK$2,708,000 (2017: HK$5,242,000) were
capitalised into properties under development, investment
properties and properties under construction, plant and

equipment respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, depreciation charges
amounting to HK$2,629,000 (2017: HK$1,911,000),
HK$321,000 (2017: HK$328,000) and HK$492,000 (2017:
HK$750,000) were capitalised into properties under
development, investment properties and properties under
construction, plant and equipment respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, operating lease charges
amounting to HK$7,910,000 (2017: HK$7,376,000),
HK$1,896,000 (2017: HK$1,454,000) and HK$3,671,000 (2017:
HK$7,091,000) were capitalised into properties under
development, investment properties and properties under
construction, plant and equipment respectively.

B i -

HZE2018F12A31H IEFEH E M FEEBEE
85,962,0007T A(i)Jh # [E ¥ F & B B K
12,812,0007T ¢ (ii) B & 1 47 35 00 R (B S 128 1
77,582,0007T : (i) fE W & K K A B M TEHA{E A
18K %1,219,0007T ¢ R(v)EHIZ AR EE
AABENUBEENRABEFIERBE
630,0007T : MRV EES B AIZA A EEG
ANEME2ERENHBEEEN EMEBHES
Y F & 30 7 15 7 #6,281,0007T °

HZE2017F12A31 8 IEFE R E M F G B
29,151,0007t () EHIZ A R BEFTAERA
B %5 & 2 B A 7 (B B F 15 78 #2,499,0007T
(NHESBEARAHEENBEEN EHEH
B 5 0% B IR 155 %19,669,0007T ¢ (i) H E
DEARAHHENBEEN FTREZSFD
S 538 F) 1578 127,928,000 ¢ HNER (iv) I K B
0% 518 % 1620,945,0007T °

#H £2018F12A31R L FE MR B AB K
50,592,0007T (20174 : & 138,968,0007T) *
7 #11,844,0007T (20174F : /& #9,639,0007T)
K 7 #2,708,0007T (20174 : 7 #5,242,000
TEARERERERTYWE - BREWEIU
RIEEYE  HBREHE -

H E2018F12A31A L FEMNEB R B
2,629,0007T (20174 : & %1,911,0007T) * /&
#321,0007T (20174F : 7 #328,0007T) [ & #&
492,0007T (20174 : 7 #750,0007T) £ 5 5 &
TERBERFYME REVEURTERDE -
T 28 R B ff e

HZE2018F12AMBILFENKZHEEBRE
#7,910,0007T (20174F : & #7,376,0007T)
7 #1,896,0007T (20174 : % #1,454,0007T)
K 7 #3,671,0007T (20174 : 7 #7,091,000
TBEARERERERTYWE - BREWHEI
RIEEYE  HBREHE -

20184F £ 3R
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2017
20174
HK$’000
BT T
Current income tax BV ER P13 B
— Outside Hong Kong — BAEEI 11,442
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFEBEEE (224)
Deferred income tax charge EIEFT S B = (BT 3E28)
(Note 28)
— Charge for the year — FRAX 4,014
— Write-off of deferred income tax — — il $& I iE Fr 15 7 & &
assets —
— Change in tax rate (Note) — BEEH (M) 2,179
17,411

Note:

Pursuant to the tax reform legislation enacted by the U.S. government
on 22 December 2017, the U.S. corporate tax rate is reduced for tax
years beginning after 31 December 2017. The Group has assessed the
financial impact as at 31 December 2017 and recorded a reversal of
deferred tax asset of HK$2,179,000 during the year ended 31
December 2017 due to the changes in applicable tax rate.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at a standard rate of 25% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%).

No U.S. Federal or State Income Tax was provided for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group had
no estimated assessable profits.

M EE

1R & 3= B BT 2017612 A228 1T 00 B 7% sk 2 0%
Bl - 2017512 A318 AR RIE BB FE R EB b3
MEHTHA ANEBENEN2017F12A31B 0
FE YREBE2017TF12A3MB LFERBERH RE
B) M 6 15 R FE 750 3R & 7 4 )8 %62,179,0007T °

HE2018F12A31H L FE - REBMNH
BB KB A B B R E R K25% (2017
0 25% ) M ERTEH -

#H £2018F N2017F12A31H EFE » &
MAEBE RN ER I &G ERFRAE - &
4 L3 B B B N N PR S B AT IR B4 o

H E£2018F &2017F12A31H L FE * @
RAEEREBL EEFERRAE - &
WER B BRI S HTRBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

10

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10

The differences between the Group’s expected tax
charges calculated at the domestic rates and the
Group’s tax charge for the years are as follows:

Fre¥ (&)

FA-AKEREMREFENARH A
FAXEAKRENHBARHEEDT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ok
(Loss)/profit before tax BREAT (B HR) FE (53,679) 86,556
Tax calculated at the domestic rates 1% F 7 A B B X F B &9
applicable to the profits in the B R E AT IE
countries concerned (7,821) 15,108
Income not subject to tax R = (11,390) (16,553)
Expenses not deductible for DAER R IE A&
tax purposes X 14,872 9,331
Tax losses not recognised AERNTAEE 25,220 7,570
Write-off of deferred income MEIELEFTEHEE
tax assets 5,362 —
Adjustments for current tax of BT IE L
prior periods AE — (224)
Change in applicable tax rate i AR # ) — 2,179
Total tax charge MIBRZ 2 26,243 17,411

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.6%
(2017: 17.5%). The tax rate changes from year to year
due to changes in the mix of the taxable results of the
individual companies of the Group.

AR X E 514.6% (20174 ¢
17.5%) - M E M IR FE2 RN A EEE
THEBARERRES LG ZS -

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBHRME
11 BORROWING COSTS 11 BERE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Borrowing costs on bank and other #R77 & E A & 3 (B — M
loans (including loans from a A &M E DR E R (T
fellow subsidiary (Note 37h)) and 37h)) K — & & 2 A%
loan from an intermediate holding A & & X (Mt 5£37h ) £
company (Note 37h) BEKAR 602,372 171,503
Less: capitalised on qualifying assets J& : R& B EEH &
=N (602,372) (171,503)
Borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of BEKANEST F1.8%%9.5% (20174 :
1.8%-9.5% (2017: 1.8%—6.0%) per annum on qualifying 1.8%%6.0% ) ML EREEREEFTE T
assets. B o
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e BB AR M R

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Weighted average number of ordinary © %17 & & % #9 hn 4
shares in issue FHE

(Loss)/profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company
(HK$’'000)

BB T IT)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to shareholders of the
Company (HK cent per share) ils)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s
dilutive potential ordinary shares are only derived from
the convertible notes. In calculating the dilutive (loss)/
earnings per share, the convertible notes are
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the net (loss)/profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expenses, exchange gains on debt component
and the fair value gains on embedded financial
derivatives less the tax effect, if applicable.

SREA(FIE) /BF TR EA R 7R
RREAS (BR) FIBBAFREBTE
8 0% ) D T 49 B

2017
20174

16,142,653,060

ARBRREN (BR)

70,422

ARAREREMSEFRER
(BB BM(BREE

0.44

SBHREE(BR) /BN DEBRRME
AEE#S S EN T AR EHn 1t H
BRTHENEBRMEFOHAE - AR
AEABREBEYENTBRARAJERK
ER-NAESREE(ER) BNE -
BRALKIEEER S LB - WHAE
F(BR) /FBURSIBRANEXH - EBE
REB D B EE R G RBRARMBITETA
MARBEMNSG AHGREEE(WE
R) e

20184F £ 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

12

13

BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/

12 SREFAREE(BE) B

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) (&
2018 2017
20184 20174
(Loss)/profit attributable to RNR AR EG
shareholders of the Company (B518) /7 H
(HK$'000) (BT IT) (48,840) 70,422

Weighted average number of ordinary © % 77 % i % £ 0 #

shares in issue T8
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EBE#EL@BRNTE —
shares — convertible notes CIE:Y &8

16,142,653,060

11,576,307

16,142,653,060

Weighted average number of ordinary B E E & % 5% (&
shares for diluted (loss)/earnings B) JRAHTBERKRD
per share N

16,154,229,367

16,142,653,060

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share RNRA AR R EAE T RETE
attributable to shareholders of the  (&518) /& F| (FEE

Company (HK cent per share) i) (0.30) 0.44
DIVIDEND 13 2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the RAREFW T EZBE2018F12 731
payment of a final dividend in respect of the year AIEFEIRMNAREARKRE (20175 : &) -

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmERNE
14 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING 14 EERF (BEESINE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
Staff costs recognised during the year are as follows: RENBRNEEX DT :
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BET T
Wages and salaries IERH® 97,093 82,866
Pension costs RIKE KA 5,194 5,693
Other allowances and benefits H bR 8L & A8 A 11,063 9,049

Total staff costs (including directors’ EEM AR (BIEEE

emoluments (Note 16)) B & (P 5E16)) 113,350 97,608
Less: amount capitalised into B RERPYME A
properties under development, MEANRDE  HER
investment properties and BEFETELRNSE
properties, plant and equipment (65,144) (53,849)
48,206 43,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

The Group provides retirement benefits mainly to
employees in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.

The Group has two defined contribution schemes for all
qualified employees in Hong Kong.

a. Hong Kong employees who commenced
employment before 1 September 2000 are
members of the first defined contribution scheme.
The assets of the first defined contribution
scheme are held separately under a provident
fund managed by an independent trustee.
Pursuant to the rules of the scheme, the
employers and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme calculated at
5% of the employees’ basic salaries on a monthly
basis. The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ contributions and accrued interest
after 10 years of service, or at an increasing
scale ranging from 20% to 90% after completion
of 2 to 9 years of service.

When there are employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, in
accordance with the rules of the scheme, the
forfeited employers’ contributions arising from
members terminating employment before
becoming fully vested are allocated to the benefit
of the remaining members instead of being used
to reduce the future contributions of the
employers.

AEEXEREL TERXENEER
HRREF -

E #REHE -

a. MN2000F9A1HAEXEMNB B R
BEREEATHNRFENKE - &F
BAREHKRGTENEEHRB LET
ABENAEEIFARE - RIEZ
FEMRE - EEXREEESANE
Am#Zst gl BEREEELRH
5% 3K o B B £ iR 7 m104F
% BHEIB100%H B EHFHE R
FE 5T F B - ok E AR 5 w2 =9F
A - 3220% Z=90% K i 12 17 [ BS54

e
/NI

REBEZFENRE WERBREESR
B2 HEG KA R h% et 8
AR B ERBEIMEEHHERA AL
XML U R EHRT S B IER
EREREBRNERE  MEEALE
HERA B B H a8
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b. All qualified Hong Kong employees who
commenced employment on or after 1
September 2000 are members of the second
defined contribution scheme which has been set
up in accordance with the guidelines of
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Both the employers and employees contribute 5%
of relevant income (limited to HK$1,500) to the
scheme each month. The assets of the second
defined contribution scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to
make the specified contributions.

The Group has participated in the 401(k) scheme
covering all of its eligible employees in the U.S.
Employees who participate in the plan may contribute a
portion of their compensation on a pre-income tax basis
up to a limit specified by law. The Group’s contribution
to the plan is based on the percentage of employee
contribution from the individual employee’s monthly
basic salary. The Group also provides an employee
benefit plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 125,
offering to pay for its eligible employees for medical
premium and dependent care expenses on a pre-tax
basis. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

b. HM2000F9A81H I U EHBETEN
PREERBBEERE-_ARTE
HARETE (BRECE B A ESEE
BBIDEIESIL L)X B - BEE R
EBESAETAMZTEEHBER
B B A% R (LR BB
1,5007T) » 85 — A R EHREFEH
BEAAEENEESH AEFT
AEENESRHH -

AEEFENBARNEE /T RERMTE
WMOBEREERARBEMEOKE - B
NAARERRBENGE M RHFENAR—
EHEEAA LA ENSRE  (FRRIKEHN
MED AREHERKRBHFAENE -]
ERELEEMNHRK-

REED L2 HA01(K)E BEEFAE
BE&aERES - 28 HES 0 ARA
SHABRMOE —Fo (ERAEEME
MRE)IERER - AEBE M E{EDH
HADERRERNRESAELRFEB/H
MEEBHRBEALTE - AKEBEIRIE
(B R U ASE) (Internal Revenue Code) 5
125K —THE B @ FFT & - 32 H AR
AMEEREGEREEINBESRZEA
RBERAY ANEERNERENTEF K
—BERELEEMHR

20184F £ 3R
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EERSREBASHME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments comprised the payments to EEeeEAKEREELASE
directors of the Company by the Group in EBMAARNRRAES I TRRIE -
connection with the management of the affairs of RAARIEEMNMEMT

the Group. The emoluments of the directors of the
Company are as follows:

Basic salaries,

allowances Inducement or
Director’s and benefits- Discretionary Provident fund compensation Total
Name of director fees in-kind bonuses contributions fees  emoluments
EENS EAHH 28
ExHe REVKE BEEa AREHT  REAHE HWewE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BETR BT BETR BT BETR

Executive Directors HTES

Han Xiaosheng (12 B2 A4 (@ - . . . . =
Liu Bing 27k — _ _ - - -
Liu Hongwei 2@ — _ _ _ o o
Zhang Xifang REF — — — . _ _
Liu Guosheng 23 — - _ _ _ .

Non-executive Directors  JEH{TES

Zhao Yingwei © HHEEO - - - - - -
ZHANG Fubiao © RIERO - - - - - -
Independent BUKHTES

Non-executive Directors
Liu Jipeng @ 22z 200 - - - - 200
Cai Hongping @ gy 200 - - - - 200
Yan Fashan @) BEE® 200 - - - - 200
Lo Wa Kei Roy @ EEHO 200 - - - - 200
2018 total 2018F 48 5t 800 — — — — 800
Notes: Bt 5
(1) Chief Executive Officer (1) ‘R
(2)  Member of the Remuneration Committee (2 FMZEEKE
(3)  Member of the Audit Committee (38) EBEXRZEEGKE
(4) Member of the Nomination Committee (4) REZBEKE
(5) Appointed with effect from 29 March 2018 (5) H2018F3H29H & & i+
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e M RRMEE

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

16 ESREREEAENE (&)

Basic salaries,

allowances Inducement or

Director's  and benefits-  Discretionary Provident fund  compensation Total
Name of director fees in-kind bonuses  contributions fees emoluments
EEMNE ARG - =8

EEHe REWUE BEEL LABSHR ZDAHE M4 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HOTEE
Han Xiaosheng (12 B £ MW — — — — — —
Liu Bing 2K — — — = = =
Liu Hongwei 2k — — 281 — = 281
Zhang Xifang @ REFO — — — — — —
Liu Guosheng 2B — — — — — —
Non-executive Directors  JEH{TES
Qin Dingguo © ZEEO — — 374 — — 374
Zheng Dong © HRO - — - — - —
Zhao Yingwei © HEREO = = — — _ _
Qi Zixin © Ef&e = — 281 — — 281
Independent BUKHTES

Non-executive Directors

Liu Jipeng 2z fgoe 200 — — — — 200
Cai Hongping @ gy 200 — — — = 200
Yan Fashan @ BREEAW 200 — — — — 200
Lo Wa Kei Roy © EERO 200 — — — — 200
2017 total 20175 85 800 — 936 — — 1,736
Notes: B &
(1)  Chief Executive Officer (1) @R
(2) Member of the Remuneration Committee (2) HMEEEKE
(3) Member of the Audit Committee (3) EBEZLZEEKE
(4)  Member of the Nomination Committee 4) REZEGKE
(5)  Resigned with effect from 22 June 2017 (5) B £ B201796 A22H £ X
(6)  Resigned with effect from 15 August 2017 (6) B EB201748 A15H B AE X
(7)  Appointed with effect from 15 August 2017 (7) H201748A15H L E £
(8)  Resigned with effect from 14 December 2017 (8) BT H2017F 128148 # £ 3K

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017, no directors of the Company waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments.

R E 20184 K201712A31H 1
FE VEARAEETERWSERZ

SWERMME -

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EERSREBASME (E)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the TAFEAEEMEERMALMA
highest in the Group for the year include no T W EEE(2017F - &) o X
(2017: no) director. The emoluments payable to REBEEMNTZAM(2017F - B
the five (2017: five) individuals for the year are as AT EHT
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Basic salaries, allowances and EA# 4 - ZBEEEY

benefits-in-kind I & 12,454 10,836
Discretionary bonuses ) 175 78 4T 432 1,336
Provident fund contributions NIE® HH 441 257

13,327 12,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EERSREBASME(E)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the five (2017: five) AEEERaMeNALTHR AL
individuals with the highest emoluments for the (2017 : A ATHHMESBR T
year fall within the following bands: IR A e

Number of individuals

A
Emolument bands 2018 2017
B & &5 & 20184 20174
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 75 3,500,001 T =

75 #4.000,0007C 1 —
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 75 13,000,001 T =

75 #3,500,0007T — 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 75 2 500,0017C &

75 #3,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75 %2 000,0017T &

75 #2,500,0007C 3 3
< HK$2,000,000 75 #2,000,0007T LA T~ — =
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and R & £20184F K%20174128318 1
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FE AEEBERAQRRERE
any of the directors of the Company or the five Eh AU xe e AT A
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join SEAWRSIEMBEREE S MAR
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation SEENRBNIERBEBREE -

for loss of office.
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 17 % B REDE
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Freehold Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land in progress Buildings improvements equipment  vehicles Total
KA HE &R -BE
¥R ERIR BF MERE KERRE ARE @t
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000

BETR BETn BETR BETT BETT AETR BETx

Cost BA&
At 1 January 2018 #2018F1A1H 41,804 2,675,383 19,245 12,230 12,854 5,236 2,766,752
Exchange translation [& i =%

differences 85 5,416 (360) (14) (96) (26) 5,005
Additions NE - 100,494 - 8 810 484 101,796
Transfer (Note 18a) &% (fff:t18a) - - 2,782 - - — 2,782
Disposals and & R

write-off - - - - (886) (569)  (1,455)

At 31 December #2018 12A31H
2018 41,889 2,781,293 21,667 12,224 12,682 5125 2,874,880

Accumulated A ERAEE
depreciation and

impairment
At 1 January 2018 #2018F1H1H - — 1,788 5,957 6,565 3,022 17,332
Exchange translation [E % %%

differences - - (61) (26) (96) (31) (214)
Charge for the year FE# & (I :£9)

(Note 9) - - 1,026 2,314 2,311 818 6,469
Disposals and & R

write-off - - - - (873) (569)  (1,442)

At 31 December #2018 12A31H

Net book value REFE

At 31 December 72018128316
2018 41,889 2,781,293 18,914 3,979 4,775 1,885 2,852,735
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consists of an amount of relating to the Group’s

power plant located in Indonesia, which is currently

under construction which will be depreciated once the

property is complete and available for use.

MENERREMNERE - WE—KEX

RATER - i

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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BIE-

17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 17 % - HBREE (B
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Freehold Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land in progress  Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
KA HE KA BEE
gt ERIR BF MERE REBERFERE B B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETr BAETx BETT BETT RETT BE%Tn
Cost B
At 1 January 2017 #2017F1 818 41,396 1,757,619 3,832 7,398 9,246 5151 1,824,642
Exchange translaton — [EX Z

differences 408 16,525 311 69 208 85 17,606
Additions AE — 901,239 15,102 4,763 3,450 — 924,554
Disposals and write-off & K Jifl 8 — — — — (50) — (50)
At 31 December 2017  R2017412A31H 41,804 2,675,383 19,245 12,230 12,854 5236 2,766,752
Accumulated RAFERAE

depreciation and

impairment
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 718 — — 1,007 3,289 4,162 2,157 10,615
Exchange translaton — [EXZ%

differences — — 78 46 151 62 337
Charge for the year FEE (M)

(Note 9) — — 703 2,622 2,299 803 6,427
Disposals and write-off (! & [ #i 8 — — = = (47) — (47)
At 31 December 2017 720174123318 — — 1,788 5,957 6,565 3,022 17,332
Net book value RHEE
At 31 December 2017 R20174612A31H 41,804 2,675,383 17,457 6,273 6,289 2,214 2,749,420
The net book value of construction in progress FREIENEEDFEREEERNSEMLR
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RE MR RME
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 &YX
2018 2018 2017 2017
20184 20185 20174 20174
Investment Investment
Completed properties Completed properties
investment under investment under
properties construction properties  construction
2% K T2 B &K 2
REYHE REWE WEWE KEME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Valuation/cost (CEEPGD N
At 1 January M1A1H 1,270,243 2,130,230 1,186,650 1,106,748
Additions NE
— Acquisitions — W iE 34,881 — 359 —
— Subsequent — HgxH
expenditure — 1,037,039 — 1,011,821
Transfer (Note a) (i Fa) (3,929) — — —
Exchange translation [& 4 =58
differences (59,746) 4,353 83,234 11,661
At 31 December M12H31H 1,241,449 3,171,622 1,270,243 2,130,230
The Group’s investment properties comprise: REBHKREYEBE -
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Shanghai, the PRC — Office units B )& — BAZEEN
(Note b) (FF5Eb ) 1,241,449 1,270,243
Los Angeles, the U.S. — Commercial EBSFZ# — BEEREE
properties under development ) % (Pt 5Ec)
(Note c¢) 3,171,622 2,130,230
4,413,071 3,400,473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 &M (&)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: B 5
a. Certain premises held by the Group previously classified as a. HERAEEMFEENE TEREMAZNEZE2018
investment properties was reclassified to properties, plant and FI2ANBLEFEANAARDNBSMBASRA
equipment (Note 17) of HK$2,782,000 and leasehold land and RE|EASEEAMSE  BZEWEEHAE
land use rights (Note 19) of HK$1,147,000 as there was a “*Ei%&émii%ﬁ“*ﬁﬁmi 128 K %A
change in use from held to earn rentals to held for the (P 5E17) 7 #52,782,0007T LA J 78 & + #b & +
Group’s own use during the year ended 31 December 2018. Hh {55 FA 4 (Bff 5£19) 7 #51,147,0007T °
b. The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for b. TRIRE @ Tﬁﬁ mMEHKEER R EMEE
investment properties. These fair value measurements are ENNM - WEARBEFEREBMGERMAAM
categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based FERAMNBABREMRAARBESRYHES
on the inputs to valuation techniques used. TRARR o
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEN
HEEE HtEEM FAIBER
EEBWS L TEEMEN =20k PN
H R E WARE g
ARBEEER EIR H21R H3R Mt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2018 72018512 H31H
Office units — PRC MAZEEN — P E — — 1,241,449 1,241,449
At 31 December 2017 20174128318
Office units — PRC MATEN — PE — — 1,270,243 1,270,243

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers into/out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

As at 31 December 2018, the office units in the PRC have been
valued by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, professional valuers.
The fair value of the investment properties was determined
based on,

amongst other factors, comparable market

transactions, rental income from current leases and

assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light
of current market conditions.

RBE2018F12A318 L F - F14 - F24
RE3R 2 MW EERE (2017F : &) - AEH
MBRAREESIBEBHE 4R MR

ER BHRRAAEESHAENEA S -

M20184F12A831H - MBI A E B HEEM
EMEERTERRRETEHE - REVED
RABEDER(BFELMER) A LBRAT
BRE RABRBHAHNHES K RIRFTH
REERERRBAHNOESREOBRRETE

hiZ i REBERAT 2018F £ 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 BEWME(E)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued) Bt : (48)
b. (Continued) b. (%)

The valuations are derived using the income capitalisation
method. This method is based on the capitalisation of net
income with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and
valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuation are referenced to valuers’ view of recent lettings,
within the subject properties and other comparable properties.

Information about fair value measurements on office units in the
PRC based on Level 3 fair value hierarchy:

HEAKEE AL THEEE 177 AT) AR ER
FHEENMCAEE RAEREMME HE
RS HEE RSB N ERBIE - EAML
KDNZ2EHEERGHO T REEMEKRE
EFETHWERNIMENRERE - (AEMFA
MRITTERSE2ZHEMYEABEEW

HEMEMNIHBRENER -

MAZEMRBEFIRAABEER

I8

Relationship of

Significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range of significant inputs to fair
Description Fair value at technique inputs unobservable inputs value
FTRABERSBSH
RT3 B8 EXTABRERE EXTAEEFRBH WABRBEAR
Ei::pu RREME 1t {8 2 1l BB A B WAHEEE BEENBER
2018 2017 2018 2017
20184 20174 2018%F 20174
HK$’000  HK$'000
BETT BETT
Harbour Ring 972,833 1,023,542 Income Capitalisation 7.0% 7.0% The higher the
Plaza capitalisation rate capitalisation
B ES method BEAREE rate, the lower
Wz & AL A the fair value
EAREEMS
AR BEEBE
Rental rate RMB170-240/ RMB170-240/ The higher the
Hex month/sq.m.  month/sq.m. rental rate, the
S¥7HKER FAHAKFA  higher the fair
AE®E170T AR®A1707T  value
F2407T £240T HeXHE -
AREELS
Harbour Ring 268,616 246,701 Income Capitalisation 7.0% 7.0% The higher the
Huangpu capitalisation Rate capitalisation
Centre method RN (e:d rate, the lower
EREER L Wz & AN the fair value
EAREERMS
AR EEYE
Rental rate RMB95-220/ RMB95-220/ The higher the
Hex month/sq.m.  month/sq.m. rental rate, the
SF¥7HKER FAHAKEFA  higher the fair
ANE¥ISTE ARMISILE  value
2207 220 Hexde AR

EELD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

c. The investment properties in the U.S. are under construction
and their fair value is not reliably measureable due to
significant uncertainty as to its future cash flows. Accordingly,
the investment properties are carried at cost. The fair value is
expected to become reliably measureable when the
construction is completed which is expected to take place by
the end of 2020.

19 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments in the

18 H{EWME (&)

BeE - (48)

c. URXBENERRENENAABEREELA
FiEtE RRARERRBASREFEEAT
EM - At REREMERIATER - A
AEBEERH AR ERTHK (RHN20206F KK
ZHIEE)KBAI A E

19 FHE LT &1 ihEHE

AEBPREE T R L ERENERR
RAPEBENBEMNELEHENRE -

PRC.

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T

Net book value REFE
At 1 January MM A1R 1,359 1,320
Transfer (Note 18a) & (fi5E18a) 1,147 =
Exchange translation differences PE i =%H (136) 90
Amortisation (Note 9) B (M 5E9) (79) (51)
At 31 December M12H31H 2,291 1,359

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN
20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20 JHHEMBEEE
ASSETS
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
Listed debt securities, at fair value FtHWEKES  ZAA
BE
— Overseas — FHN — 324,355
— Hong Kong — BB — 7,983
Listed equity securities, at fair value tHREES KA AL
BE
— Hong Kong — BB — 500,042
Non-publicly traded fund FLAHBEEESKE -
investments, at fair value BAREE
— Overseas — Fh — 76,366
— 908,746
The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated AIHEENEEENTY EBEE
in the following currencies:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
HK$ ol — 500,042
us$ X7 - 408,704
— 908,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21 BAABHENANEMZETKE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE M EE
INCOME
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Listed debt securities FHERE S
— Overseas — B4 113,334 —
Non-publicly traded listed FAFEBELTRER?
equity securities
— Hong Kong (Note) — BB (s 200,956 —
314,290 —
Note: Bt 5
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company’s equity REZE2018F12A31H L FE - BNERRTRHN 8
investments in Huiyuan Juice has become non-publicly traded as 2018F4 A RBRE R EE AR ANERRTHRAE
trading of shares of Huiyuan Juice has been suspended since April BEEKARIFAFEE - At - $K2018F12A318 -
2018. Hence, these equity investments were transferred from listed ZERAREC A LTREFFEREF LTRER
equity securities to unlisted equity securities as at 31 December 2018. 7 o
The financial assets at fair value through other BEAnBEAFAEMEZEKEMNIMEEE
comprehensive income are denominated in the following T3 EBEE :
currency:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
us$ ETT 113,334 —
HK$ ki 200,956 —
314,290 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAREBE ANIEBISAEIE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Unlisted equity investments FEEMRAKRE
— Overseas — BN — 80,670
Non-publicly traded fund investments FAMESTELIRE
— Overseas — Bk 64,700 —
64,700 80,670
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBEAABENIBEENET
are denominated in USS$. (e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 23 & -FAARIEREMGEW
OTHER RECEIVABLES I
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current portion FREBIBD
Prepayments for construction of ERBEEROENRIE
power plants (Note a) (Pff 5Za) 327,141 221,532
Loan and interest receivables from & U — & Kf B 2 & B B 7Y
shareholders of a subsidiary BEHEFE
(Note b and 37h) (Mf b & 37h)
— Shanghai Electric Power — EBENRER
Construction Co., Ltd. BEREFERQA
(“SEPC”) (I SEPC ) 4,139 4,147
— PT. Garda Sayap Garuda — PT. Garda Sayap
(“GS@G”) Garuda ([ GSG |) 261,598 253,352
Prepaid insurance for property MEZRIBEENENRE
development project 12,644 19,838
Others HAh 18,583 7,442
Total non-current portion FERENI D EE 624,105 506,311
Current portion BB
Prepaid insurance for property MEZRIBEENENRE
development project 35,377 25,620
Other interest receivables H b B YR B 6,914 8,593
Amounts due from related parties FE W #a B 75 5138 (MY 5E37h)
(Note 37h) 12,070 13,518
Others HAh 19,143 28,208
Total current portion B HA ST 73,504 75,939
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

Notes:

On 1

The balance mainly represents advanced payments made to
SEPC, a non-controlling shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, and its subsidiary, PT. Shanghai Electric Power
Construction (“PT.SEPC”), for the procurement and installation
of equipment and machineries for the Group’s power plant
projects in Indonesia.

The loan and interest receivables are due from SEPC and GSG,
non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and are denominated in USS$.

As at 31 December 2018, the principal amount of the loan to
SEPC was fully repaid and the carrying amount of the loan to
GSG was HK$219,612,000 (2017: HK$221,632,000). The loan
to GSG is interest bearing at 7% per annum and is repayable
through its share of the future dividend of the subsidiaries.

The interest receivables from SEPC and GSG were
HK$4,139,000 (2017: HK$4,147,000) and HK$41,986,000
(2017: HK$31,720,000), respectively. The interest receivables
are interest free and repayable through their shares of the
future dividend of the subsidiaries.

January 2018 and 31 December 2018, an ECL

provision of HK$5,599,000 and HK$6,818,000 (Note
7c) was made on the loan and interest receivables

from shareholders of a subsidiary, respectively.

GEE

ZEERTIEERAEEUREDENEER
BERBRZERBREBIMAARAET
B8 A Bl — B IR AR RSEPC I H i B &
A]PT. Shanghai Electric Power Construction
(TPT.SEPC J) X ff B TR FRIH o

ZEERERERASEAAARETHEA
Al JF 12 AR AR RSEPC R GSGUER + LA T &t
18 °

#2018 12H318 * 4 TSEPCH E R A & &
EREEE  METCSCHERNEESEA
75 #219,612,0007T (20174F « 74 #221,632,000
JT) ° 45 FGSGH B RIRF M ET%: 8 - BiE
BABEEZSHBERAMBRSEE-

FE Y SEPC K GSGHI FI| B 9 7l /3 7% #4,139,000
7T (20174F « 7% #4,147,0007T) K 74 #41,986,000
7T (20174F : % #631,720,0007T) ° FE W FI B A
B BAEBAKEEZSHBRRANRSE

°

i

R2018F1 418 K2018F12A31H » st fE
W—RMBRATRNEREFEDRIERE
75 5,599,000 M 7 6,818,000 (F 7
7c) 2 TEEIE RIBRBE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE

24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 %Rchij%

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At 1 January »1A1H 12,131,649 9,721,171
Additions NE 2,721,617 2,326,445
Impairment (Note 7f) A (B 527F) (77,582) —
Exchange differences &N =% 23,200 84,033
At 31 December ®12A31H 14,798,884 12,131,649
Properties under development comprise: ERPYEBIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Los Angeles, the U.S. EEEY A 6,204,586 4,024,411
Ko Olina No. 2 Land, Hawaii, % B B Bl SR BE I — 5%
the U.S. b 3 1,672,794 1,583,111
Ko Olina No. 1 Land, Hawaii, E BB B R B — 5%
the U.S. b 35 2,554,406 2,352,731
Kapolei West, Hawaii, the U.S. EHERERPEAR 972,320 892,934
New York, the U.S. EE4HR A 3,394,778 3,278,462
14,798,884 12,131,649
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the 72018F12A318 KX2017F12A31H - %
properties under development were expected to be REMEFERERREBRBI —FRE
completed and recovered after one year from the end T R Y E 5RI8 °

of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, trade receivables
represent rental receivables for which no credit terms
have been granted. The aging analysis of trade
receivables, net of provision and based on the date of
invoices at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

0-30 days 0-30H
31-60 days 31-60H
61-90 days 61-90H

No interest is charged on the overdue trade
receivables. The trade receivables included in the
above aging analysis are considered not impaired
(2017: Nil) as these relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of
default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of the trade receivables.

On 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, no ECL
provision was made on the trade receivables,

respectively.

The Group does not hold any collateral securities.

20184 2017128318 » [EWER A
WERDEERNERES - R2018F &
2017512 A31H LA 2= H Bl R 20 1 BR 5
HErROBBKBEFERR DT

2017
20174
HK$'000
BT T

292

292

BHERERL TR - ARFTS RN
ZBN RPN SR AL S, - R
B AT BT B 4E Y FE UK PR SR B AR A EUR
B (20174 : &) -

RAHE B R RAEERR S EUKIRR
MR fBME

7201851418 %2018 12A31H » I &
LM AR KR T BRERBREE -

N6 B I 4 R A TR e

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

26 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 26 HERBITER

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T 7T T

Bank deposits with maturity less than 7 =1 A A E| &9 $E 77
three months 75K 2,106 413,478
Cash at banks and on hand RITTFEREFHEEAS 675,877 299,919
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEeZEEY 677,983 713,397
Restricted cash 2RI e 411,892 880,642
Cash and bank deposits HWe RiEITFER 1,089,875 1,594,039

Notes: M EE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following restricted bank 2018 12A31H - A& BE TR HIRITFR ¢

deposits:

As at 31 December 2018, a bank deposit of HK$186,987,000
(2017: HK$637,930,000) was held in escrow in a licensed
bank for the settlement of any construction obligation of a
subsidiary of the Company to a general constructor of the
property development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. The
escrow arrangement is required pursuant to an escrow
agreement entered into between the licensed bank, the
general constructor and the subsidiary until the Group
obtained construction financing or committed to have fund and
equity sufficient to pay the remaining payment obligation to
work.

As at 31 December 2018, a bank deposit of HK$8,000 (2017:
HK$14,230,000) was held in escrow in a licensed bank for the
settlement of any infrastructure construction obligation of a
subsidiary of the Company to the infrastructure constructor of
the property development project in the Kapolei West area of
Hawaii, the U.S. The escrow arrangement is required pursuant
to an infrastructure agreement and a control account
agreement entered into between the licensed bank, the
infrastructure constructor and the subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of HK$224,897,000
(2017: HK$228,482,000) were secured for guarantees provided
by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries in favour of the
licensed banks for certain banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 34).

#2018 12 A31H + /& #186,987,0007T (2017
& A %637,930,0007T) KER1TF R AEE A
NAFEBITHE  WEEARA—HHBEA
RIHEBEECHYEZRRBENLEEEA
BEREMEREE TERENRIEHZSE
RIT  ZBEEFRZMB ARG HTE R
FNRTEL BEEASENEEERENS
TESESRBARUAINH T IRNRE
BhRIE -

20184128318 + / #8,0007T (20174 : &
#14,230,0007T) MR T FRIATEE A N HF
MRITHRA  WBEARNR —MHERREE
HEREFRHEARBRMEZLRBENERE
REABMEMERAE - EERBENRER
HRERERIT RERAEBERZMB AR
MR RS RIEHREHENREEDL -

720184612 A31H - & %224,897,0007T (2017
F ¢ 5 #6228,482,0007T) MIRITIF RE AR
FIREETHB AR MEERTRMSNER
B NERETRE FASENRITRE
(P 3£34) °
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Bank balances of HK$216,136,000 (2017:
HK$290,373,000) are denominated in RMB and are
placed with banks in the PRC. The remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
The remaining bank balances are mainly denominated
in HK$ or USS.

As at 31 December 2018, deposits received, other
payables and accruals included rental deposits received
of HK$27,425,000 (2017: HK$29,914,000), amounts
due to related parties of HK$26,834,000 (2017:
HK$3,855,000) (Note 37h), interest payable to a fellow
subsidiary of HK$734,000 (2017: HK$460,000) (Note
37h), other taxes payable of HK$312,060,000 (2017:
HK$217,015,000) and payables and accruals for
construction costs of power plants and property
development projects of HK$155,487,000 (2017:
HK$111,018,000) and HK$1,110,982,000 (2017:
HK$1,026,155,000) respectively.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

& #216,136,0007T (20174 : & &
290,373,0007T) W IRTT A R A A R B EHE
RERRPRNIERT  EZEECELF
B 2 3 o B IS T AN B I BV R PR o SR TR
THEBEEZEABELEITFE -

20185 12A31H » EWiR S « H &S
HEREFEEREERHERS B
27,425,0007T (20174 : & 29,914,000
JT) ~ FE < A B 75 3K I8 % 126,834,000
(20174 : 7% %:3,855,0007T) (Bt ##37h) -
B —HARRMERAAMNFEFK
734,0007T (20174 : /& #460,0007T) (
FE37h) ~ H fth FE 1 B 18 78 #312,060,000
7L (20174 : & #217,015,0005T) & 2 5
EARERERYMEZRIEEERINAAE
7 3k 18 K JE 5t 18 B % %155,487,0007T
(20174 : # *111,018,0007T) N & ¥
1,110,982,0007T (20174 : & e
1,026,155,0007C ) °

ENBEITRARERR 28 RARRK
EHRET_EARERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same fiscal authority.

a. The net movement in the deferred income tax
(assets)/liabilities is as follows:

28

BEFRBHR(EE) BfE

EHRANEARE LRI ITOEN Y HR
BSHEERERPMENEE  BRT
Pref s MR — R AR - EERT SR
BEERBESEHEYE-

EFREH(BE) /AEFEFH N

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At 1 January R1H18 259,576 239,511
Exchange translation M 5, Z &
differences (12,386) 16,842
Reversal of deferred tax w5 Be Bt B8 & &) F)
liability upon distribution of BEOREEHEBEERE
profits from subsidiaries — (2,970)
Charge to income statement R UZE R (H3E10)
(Note 10)
— Charge for the year — FAYXH 6,202 4,014
— Write-off of deferred — M REMSRE E
income tax assets 5,362 —
— Change in applicable tax ~ — & M3 % & & &)
rate — 2,179
At 31 December »12H31H 258,754 259,576
b. Deferred income tax comprises: RIEFTS BB IE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok i
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEHEE (10,585) (9,211)
Deferred income tax liabilites EZEFFESEHEE 269,339 268,787
At 31 December MW12A31H 258,754 259,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

C. The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

28 BEFRH(EE) BEE)

c. EBEMBSHEENRABERFANE
8 CREt KR AARBRG ADEE R

MEAEER) AT -
Changes in
Accelerated fair value of Other
Tax tax investment temporary
losses depreciation  properties  differences Total
REME

mEHE AREE At g

BEBR nE 28 £H )
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT  EETT BETR

At 1 January 2018 7201851 718 (16,526) 141,894 120,642 13,566 259,576
Exchange translation differences [E % =% (29) (7,511) (4,721) (125)  (12,386)
(Credit)/charge to income GtAMER) /RkEzNk
statement
— (Credit)/charge for the year — ERA(E@) /it (6,164) 8,355 — 4,011 6,202
— Write-off of deferred income — MEEEMEHEE
tax assets 5,362 — - - 5,362
At 31 December 2018 720184 12A31R (17,357) 142,738 115,921 17,452 258,754
At 1 January 2017 M2017E1 718 (11,539) 124,679 112,801 13,570 239,511
Exchange translation differences [E X =% (108) 9,052 7,841 57 16,842
(Credit)/charge to income GtAM&ER) /RbREzNnk
statement
— (Credit)/charge for the year — F & (&[E) /% H (11,483) 8,163 — 7,334 4,014
— Changes in applicable tax ~ — @R K& &
rate 6,604 — = (4,425) 2,179

Reversal of deferred tax liability 1% & Hf B 2 &) 7 & 5 & [
upon distribution of profits from EEHEE &
subsidiaries

_ — - (2,970)  (2,970)

At 31 December 2017 720174128318

(16,526) 141,894 120,642 13,566 259,576
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The investment properties are held within a
business model with the objective to
substantially realise all of the economic benefits
embodied in the properties over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent it
is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised, based on all available evidence. The
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative unused tax losses of
approximately HK$316,240,000 (2017:
HK$183,657,000). The tax losses can be carried
forward indefinitely, except for Indonesian tax
losses of approximately HK$74,579,000 (2017:
HK$6,331,000) which can be carried forward for
25 years and will expire in the following years:

2039 20394
2041 20414
2042 20424
2043 20434

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REVMEUBERUEE MR
HealEsRRA(MFEEELE)
ERZSEDEMBENBABIR

BRI 2R o

ERFEAGERE WERKBHK
EMEGERTENEmMACREED
REBARBEES AIREERESH
MEBHEERELEMEHREE - K
SEWERD 2 ARBARIBEIELD
7 #316,240,0007T (20174 : & #&
183,657,0007T) i R & & T 18 &
E-HEESEUERBAE KO
& ®74,579,0007T (20174 : B #&
6,331,00070) W EDE R IE /BB E T
BT WHENRUATEEREM

2017
20174
HK$'000
ok e

597

352
5,382

6,331
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30

29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 |B’&F
Number of
shares Amount
il = §E| -}
HK$’000
BT T
Authorised ordinary shares of FREAEEEIATHEARE
HK$0.1 each: Gl
At 1 January 2017, 31 December R2017F181H8 ~ 2017§
2017, 1 January 2018 and 128318 > 2018514
31 December 2018 1H % 2018%12H31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 201751818 ~ 20175
2017, 1 January 2018 and 12A31H > 2018518
31 December 2018 18 }%2018%F12H31H 16,142,653,060 1,614,265
BORROWINGS 30 EE
The analysis of borrowings is as follows: BESTAOT :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Bank loans, secured (Note a) RITER > AR (M 5Ea) 3,025,647 3,981,357
Other loans from third parties, RKEEF=ZFTHEMER
secured (Note b) EEA (Fb) 2,269,437 1,067,007
Other loans from a fellow subsidiary, & & — &R % M & 2 7 &Y
secured (Note c) HMBER  HEM
(Mg 5Ee) 288,000 280,000
Convertible notes (Note d) AR E & (M 5Ed) 564,379 —
Loans and borrowings ERkiEE 6,147,463 5,328,364
Current portion mENES (4,513,893) (4,261,357)
Non-current portion IETRENER D 1,633,570 1,067,007
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Notes:

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans were secured
by assets amounting to HK$1,492,093,000 (2017:
HK$1,827,257,000) and guarantees provided by an intermediate
holding company of the Company, a non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries as
well as letters of credit in favour of the banks.

The bank loans are denominated in US$ or HK$ and bear
interest at London Interbank Offering Rate, Hong Kong
Interbank Offering Rate or the bank’s cost of funds plus a

specific margin.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s other loan was secured
by assets amounting to HK$14,577,934,000 (2017:
HK$6,158,002,000) as well as guarantees provided by a
subsidiary and an intermediate holding company of the
Company

A keepwell deed was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company with certain undertakings in favour of
the lender for the loan borrowed by a subsidiary with a carrying
amount of HK$1,200,246,000 (2017: Nil).

The other loans are denominated in US$ and bear interest at

fixed rates per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loans from a fellow
subsidiary was unsecured (2017: secured by assets amounting
to HK$157,036,000).

A keepwell agreement was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company to provide comfort to the lending
fellow subsidiary that the Company shall be in sound financial
condition to meet all liabilities and perform all obligations under
the facility agreement of HK$280,000,000.

A loan of HK$280,000,000 and HK$8,000,000 is denominated
in HK$ and bears interest at 9.0% and 9.5% per annum
respectively.

Rt

20185128310 * AR EMRITERBEE
#1,492,093,0007T (20174 : & %
1,827,257,0007T) 1) & & & A A 7] — [ 2
BRAR] - MEBARIMEERBKRR - AARRE
ETHBRARIMRBRENERIRARITAS
= A M5 A B EIE 4R

ZERITERAE TR B AT E LR R HR
TRZEHRE  FERTRARXFKEHBITNESR
BMAMERESEZFE -

M20185F12A8310 - AR EMEME KB HE
#14,577,934,0007¢C (20174 7 %
6,158,002,0007T) K & B A J AN 22 7] — R 8
A A Ko — AP R4 B A AT IR £ A9 HE AR 1R IR
o

AAR—HFEEZERARER —EHEAR R
Frfe A BRE € %8 &3 % %£1,200,246,0007C
(2017 - B|)WERBZL BT EE  NEEH
A ERA LB T A -

H B RAETAHEIL R EE FF KR -

120185 12A310 - A5 ERE —HRRHE
AAMERAEBEFQITE HEBE
157,036,0007T #) & E {E K 1) ©

AREl—EPEERABIEE L #FHE - A
AEAMERRARZMBARREARAEA
& R 47 89 B 75 1K R DA B 77 7 % 280,000,000
THRERETHREEEREBNER -

7 #280,000,0007T & /4 #8,000,0007T ) B 3
LA B SHE 5 BIIE F F29.0% &£ 9.5% 5T 8. °

20184F £ 3R
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Notes: (Continued)

The Company issued 5-year 6% convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$600 million at the face
value on 27 December 2018 and convertible notes were listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 28
December 2018.

The convertible notes are denominated in HK$. Each bond will
at the option of the holder be convertible (unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) into fully
paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each in the
issued and paid up capital of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.71 per share subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments on the issued share capital of the Company.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the convertible notes will be redeemed on the
maturity date at 100% of the principle amount. The Company
has an early redemption option on 27 December 2021 to
redeem in whole, but not in part, the convertible notes for the
time being outstanding at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the convertible notes together with
interest accrued to (but excluding) the date fixed for
redemption. The holders also have an early redemption option
to require the Company to redeem all or some only of
convertible notes on 27 December 2021 at 100% of the
principle amount in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement.

Therefore, in determining the fair value of the liability host of
the debt at initial recognition of the convertible notes, the
maturity date is considered to be 27 December 2021 since
contractual cash flow for the principal is unavoidable if the
note holders choose to exercise the option to require the
Company to redeem the convertible notes. The interest is
payable semi-annually on 27 June and 27 December.

The convertible notes are separated into two components,
equity conversion component and liability component. The
liability component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until distinguished on conversion.
The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 8.2% per annum.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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s : ()

20185 12H27H - AR RIEHEEEITA S
8% 600,000,000 H54F B16% A] 2 AR 52 4% ©
AR ZIER2018F12 A28 B EF M FEH R
SHABARAR LM -

HRBERBENEBRTE - RERSEAGREEE
RO AR ESRRNDELILTITHEE - NHERE
B(FAEED HRABEILTHERIN) E
BREARRBETRARBRRERATERE
EEBOITHERRBAERBE AR
BRI ARAMEHTRAEL REFRE -

BRIFFEMEED - Einsi BRI T - TAIT
BERZEEEREHARASFEN100%E [ -
AR E A A2021F12 827 B IR S R Al AR =
BASFENI100% CEREE (BT TEE
EHHEAHAE)NEREREED2HM
D ERHMABROATRRER - FAAN
BHEBERARATRN2021F12 427 A R B RE
FHEIER R IR A S ER100%2 2 E B 2
Bk Ep o Al AR R 9 o

At RETVRERTRREENALEE
REGAEXBOABER SHBARRA
2021512A27H ' REAMEEFZE ANEEIT
M ERARRERABRBER  AAE
MEHNRE R ER RS - 7 B ESEFN6
H27A %12A27B X+ »

AR ERS AMEMAKE S - BERERA
KREH RBEAKSD  BEEAKBIRBE
BRFI SR IR B AT - EEREIREER
Bk - BEEKED D ) 2 TR B R F F
& 58.2% °
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 BE(4E)

Notes: (Continued) HEE ()
d. (Continued) d. €))
20185 12A31H - — BB LA ERXEEMH®
AR IR A S IR R DT E o R
HERAEK I D DAA B REETHE -

A valuation on the equity conversion component of the
convertible notes has been performed by an independent
qualified valuer on 31 December 2018, the binomial model is
used in the valuation of the equity conversion component.

M20186F12A31H - Al ERER BB KA
BEHEKBAIRMBRARFIRAT

As at 31 December 2018, the equity conversion and liability
components of the convertible notes are presented in the
statement of financial position as follows:

Equity

Liability conversion
component component Total

EnER
EEARS S AR 2 st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2018 7201841 A1H — — —
Convertible notes issued at 27 December M12A27H #E1TH AR R & 576,387 23,613 600,000
Less: transaction costs B R B (12,008) (492) (12,500)
At 31 December 2018 K2018%12H31H 564,379 23,121 587,500

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings were 20184 K%2017412A318 -

repayable as follows: EEAT -
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank loans — within one year RITER — —FR 3,025,647 3,981,357
Other loans from a fellow RE—EREZRNERBEAMER
subsidiary — within one year —— %R 288,000 280,000
Other loan from a third party — RE—BE=ZFHEMER —
within one year —FR 1,200,246 —
Other loan from a third party — RE—BE=ZFHEMER —
between 2 and 5 years —EhHE 1,069,191 1,067,007
Convertible notes — MRER — —F0F
between 2 and 5 years 564,379 —
Total Bt 6,147,463 5,328,364

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had undrawn facilities
amounting to HK$4,635,517,000 (2017: HK$6,413,767,000)
(including undrawn facilities from an intermediate holding

company).

M2018F12H31H - X & B # & K & W
B & & %4,635517,0007T (20174 : & #
6,413,767,0007T) (B &R 8 — R EIZER A A
MARRBRRAE)
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e BB R MY R

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 ZERERERMEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a. Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to cash a. &E(EE) /FBEKRTREK
used in operating activities before finance costs, K -BENREBEREEEREHNL
tax paid and changes in working capital: EEBIANESHIE:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Operating (loss)/profit before & FT15 %% % i Al 48 &
income tax expense (B518) /7 H (53,679) 86,556
Adjustments for: o

Interest income B U = (30,785) (44,024)
Dividend income i B E= (11,734) (4,374)
Depreciation of properties, M HBERREED

plant and equipment e 3,027 3,438
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ #0 & + b K + b i /3 4

and land use rights B 5 79 51
Loss on disposal of HEWE - WBEREHE

properties, plant and o) k!

equipment 13 3
Fair value losses/(gains) on BEHRBRANEBEEA

revaluation of financial Bam i BEEN

assets at fair value through AREEEBRS

profit or loss (F)4%) 630 (2,499)
Net realised gains on disposal ~ H%& M &K EHA

of listed debt securities FEIR RS (6,281) (19,669)
Net realised gains on disposal & EMREFHFH

of listed equity securities FEBE G — (27,928)
Impairment loss on properties 2% & FR ) ¥ 8RB B 18

under development 77,582 —
Expected credit losses on FEWE R & F) B A 78 HA

loan and interest EREX

receivables 1,219 —

(19,929) (8,446)
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mEMBHRRME
31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 ZEHERERME(B)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
b. Changes in working capital: b. ZEELMEEF:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
(Increase)/decrease in trade and J& U8R 30 A K2 = b JiE d 3%
other receivables, deposits IH e REMNRIE
and prepayments () D (1,082) 17,575
Increase in properties under %% & th ¥ 2 3% 40
development (2,145,112) (1,900,010)
Increase in deposits received, © UWixd - H b E A
other payables and accruals R FEETTE B 0 3,303 143,847
(2,142,891) (1,738,588)
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

31 ZEREREBRME(E)

c.  Net debt reconciliation: c. MBERFEHIE:
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
the movements in net debt for each of the
periods presented.

7 B 6 8,51 5 2 51) 2 P 0 (5 75 0% 7
SR REHFEED -

Liabilities from financing activities

272

BEXBHELNER
Amount due

to an Other Other

intermediate  Loans from borrowings borrowings

holding fellow repayable repayable
company  subsidiaries within 1 year  after 1 year Total

—HRZKE

EM-HB4E ARRMH -FAEENH -FREEN
ZRARME e Hitfz & Hitf & gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Net debt as at 1 January 2018  #2018F1A1AMERZE (3,120,506) (280,000)  (3,981,357)  (1,067,007)  (8,448,870)
Cash inflows RBERA (5,572,439) (8,000)  (3,500,060) (587,500)  (9,667,999)
Cash outflows Benit 3,663,744 - 3,353,169 - 7,016,913
Foreign exchange adjustments INEE R R (7,635) - (7,544) (2,184) (17,363)
Other non-cash movements HihFRe#E (157,937) — (90,101) 23,121 (224,917)
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 2018512318 K &% T4 (5,194,773) (288,000)  (4,225893)  (1,633,570)  (11,342,236)
Net debt as at 1 January 2017  #A2017F1B1ANEKFE (1,694,489) - (2,359,875) (756,122) (4,810,486)
Cash inflows BERA (2,331,268) (340,000)  (1,733,347) (304,859)  (4,709,474)
Cash outflows Remib 919,974 60,000 177,314 — 1,157,288
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEETE SRR (14,723) — (26,119) (6,026) (46,868)
Other non-cash movements HthFRe 2 — - (39,330) - (39,330)
Net debt as at 31 December 2017 7420175128318 K&K F & (3,120,506) (280,000) (3,981,357) (1,067,007) (8,448,870)
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mEMBHRRME
32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32 BEXKIE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, capital MR20184F &2017F12A31H * EFI LB XK
commitments contracted but not provided for were as BENEREENT :
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Properties, plant and equipment W2 - S KR 490,103 1,263,960
Properties under development and B ¥ NIZEYE
investment properties 4,367,420 3,339,639
Total @it 4,857,523 4,603,599

33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33 HEHE®RIE

a. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s a. 20184 K2017412A31H * KN &
investment properties are leased to a number of B EMEDZRTIRABEAET
tenants for varying terms. The Group’s future ZEMP - AEBERKEDERE
aggregate minimum lease receivables under non- A FHELEHERRRERSN &
cancellable operating leases in respect of EHsBREOT :

investment properties are as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Not later than one year —F AR 72,279 96,553
Later than one year and not —FZ#&FAFUR

later than five years 155,408 181,989

Later than five years hE 2% 109,538 146,634

337,225 425,176
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33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s
future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

EEHEREE)

R20184F 2017128318 » N &£
Bt WERBEAITTHSLEHER
AREMNHZERSE@BOT :

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Not later than one year —F AR 28,745 20,313
Later than one year and not —F 2% FAFEUR

later than five years 37,795 38,290

Later than five years hFE 2% 19,398 13,996

85,938 72,599

Operating lease payments represent rental
payables payable by the Group for certain of its
office premises. Leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 year to 11 years. There is no
contingent rental arrangement.
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mEMBHRRME
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain assets of 720184 &2017F12A318 - A&EEHE T
the Group were pledged to secure borrowings of the BECBERERBETASENEBENER
Group as follows: M
2017
20174
HK$’000
ok
Pledged bank deposits B & R 1717 3% (Kt 5E26¢ )
(Note 26¢) 228,482
Financial assets at fair value through 2R R BETAEZH
profit or loss MBEE 80,670
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFAHEMEE
other comprehensive income WEHTBEEE =
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMBEE 400,721
Properties under development BRPYE 4,024,411
Properties, plant and equipment VI - S REE 6,178
Leasehold land and land use rights 786 & ith }7 £ b {5 A 4 1,359
Investment properties REME 3,400,474
8,142,295
Save as the pledged assets disclosed above, the Br EXFTIE BB EREEIN - 720185
issued shares of 14 subsidiaries of the Company 128318 » A2 4B K8 2 7 (B £39)
(Note 39) were also pledged to secure borrowings of WEBITROTEEREAR TASER
the Group as at 31 December 2018 (31 December BEEMER(2017F128318 : &) °
2017: Nil).
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35 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 30 July 2018, the Group disposed of its subsidiary
China Oceanwide International Limited (“COIL”) which
owned equity interests in an unlisted company at a
consideration of US$12,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$100,453,000). The net assets of COIL at the date

35 HE—REIMEAS

M20184%7A30H - & £ 7 R &
12,800,000 7T (#8 % 7 % 100,453,000
TMIEEEMBARPZEEERAQ A
(ThZEE] - #E—BIFELTRAANK
i) HZBEBEREEEANFEE

of disposal were as follows: N
30 July 2018
2018%7H30H
HK$’000
BT
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ERAREBEFTAEBZED
MIBEEE 100,453
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary included in loss AAGREEZARERAR
for the year from discontinued operations in the RIEEE B FEANEE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income HHEE—FHHEBEAQ A
5 —
Total consideration BHRE 100,453
Satisfied by: XA
Cash Be 100,453
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEERFRSRA
Cash consideration BeRE 100,453
Cash and bank balances disposed of Frih &R & KIRTT 4 & —
Total consideration BRE 100,453
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On 31 January 2019, a sub-contractor (the “Sub-
contractor”) of the Group’s real estate project in Los
Angeles, the U.S. (the “LA Project”), sued Oceanwide
Plaza LLC (“Oceanwide Plaza”), the project subsidiary
of the Company, the general contractor of the LA
Project and a lender of Oceanwide Plaza in Los
Angeles County Superior Court to foreclose on a
mechanic’s lien (the “First Lien”) for approximately
US$52.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$414.4 million) recorded on the LA Project’s title.

On 19 February 2019, the Sub-contractor recorded an
amended lien for approximately US$49.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$386.9 million),
released the First Lien and was amending its lawsuit
to reflect the lower lien amount, but has not yet filed
its amended complaint.

Oceanwide Plaza is in the process of recording a lien-
release bond, which will remove the lien from the LA
Project’s title and prevent the foreclosure of the LA
Project while the lawsuit continues.

Oceanwide Plaza is preparing a vigorous defense and
reserving all rights under the law. Meanwhile, the
parties are preparing to negotiate a settlement to
resolve the dispute.

The Directors consider the ultimate holding company
of the Company to be Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd*, a
company incorporated in the PRC, which is ultimately
controlled by Mr. Lu Zhigiang.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20191 H318 REEEB R ZHKEH
EBRE(BE®RERE D — 2o ([%
SEED RBTEESEERBHFAA A
MIEEMBARIZEESERAFT([Z
BES]) BEBIEBEENEREERZE
BISH—2BERA  WHESTEHIEE $E
H"E XN ARS20EEZT(HERN B
AMEBET)NEIBER([E—BE#])
R 1FFE o

2019%2A198 - Z o EHRERERL ' 1§
BEENTREBN49408xT(HE
RA A KIBEIE L) WHEHRE—BE
AR BEENSERDETEEZ
FR - BERREIEIEETHRTF -

EARSEREEBENIEREERR
BITERE  RERTGEEELRLRE
B e 3o IR - LY 1L K EAE R 2 3R
AT IR B AR TR B W BB -

wBESRIEEERBNR  YREMA
SRR o B R B - & 7 IE 2 8 15 7 A
fig ARRR A 4

EFZRE ARFNREERARREE
ERBERAGF > ZABRPBEEMAL
WHESTREERKES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant
transactions were carried out with related parties during
the year in the normal course of business at terms
determined and agreed by both parties:

EXHABEX S (&)

RAGEMBHMAEMEMAEEEIN -
FALEBBHDETATERRS  %ZF
RHENREREXBRETEIZETEE
Ko 19 TE B IR SRR TT

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(i) Rental income from a (i) A — MR 2 E A A
fellow subsidiary W ER 8 30 & W
— Tohigh Construction — BEE®
Company Limited* BRAF 122 283
— Oceanwide Energy — BB IRIE R
Holdings Co., Ltd.* SRR /NC] 20 —
(ii) Management fee income (i) [ A £ Ff /& A B Ug EX A9
from fellow subsidiaries EEER KR
— Oceanwide Property — REBMEER
Management Co., BRAE(Z
Ltd* (“Oceanwide BYEER])
Property
Management”) 203 196
— PT China Oceanwide — PT China
Indonesia (“PTCOI”) Oceanwide
Indonesia
(TPTCOI J) — 5
(iii) Referral fee income from a (i) A — & A Z M B A & UK
fellow subsidiary Ay 8 & A &
— China Tonghai — PEBEES
Securities Limited BRAA
(formerly known as (RT3 : R EZ
Oceanwide BEHBRA
Securities Company ) ([ @ e
Limited) (“China EEE2 D)
Tonghai Securities”) — 469
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e M RRMEE

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant
transactions were carried out with related parties
during the year in the normal course of business at
terms determined and agreed by both parties:

EXHABELX S (&)

RAGEMBEHMAEMEMAEEEI -
FALEBBHDETATERRS  %F
RETREREXBRTREIZETET
Ko 185 TE B9 R SR AETT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BETT
(i) Rental expense charged by (i) — R X & 2 & 4t
a fellow subsidiary MmESMAY
(1) PTCOI (1) PTCOI 6,751 7,202
(2) China Oceanwide USA (2) FEIZ 8B AR
Holdings Co. Ltd BERAF* 1,958 —
(i) Purchase of building (ii) =) — & A K B /&8 A 7]
management service HBEMEERRY
from a fellow subsidiary
— Oceanwide Property — RBMEERE
Management 1,481 1,219
(iii) Purchase of insurance (i) 2 — & A R BT 8 A &
services from a fellow BERRR®
subsidiary
— Asia-Pacific Property & — EAMERBRER
Casualty Insurance NG|
Co., Ltd. 735 612
(iv) Purchase of loan arrangement (iv) [A]— & [ Z Fff &8 2 &1
service, corporate finance BEERLHR
advisory service and ETBERERE &
sub-underwriting service o B8 R
from a fellow subsidiary
— China Tonghai — PEBEES
Securities 300 100
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37 EXEBtARXS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(i) Interest income from (i) MIGSG U ER &) F) B U z5
GSG (Note 23) (P 5£23) 14,535 13,337
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(i) Borrowing costs charged (i) & 28 % 2 7] Yg BX &9
by an intermediate EER A
holding company
— China Oceanwide — RREE
Group Limited BRAA]
(“COG”) (ThZz&E=]1)
(Note 11) (P 5E11) 157,936 6,309
(i) Borrowing costs charged (i) — @[ XM B A & WER
by a fellow subsidiary CORTER- 17N
— China Tonghai Finance — BRGNS
Limited (formerly BRAA
known as Oceanwide (AU : R EZ
Finance Limited) BHEBRA
(“China Tonghai ([ EEEE
Finance”) (Note 11) B 1)
(B=E11) 20,584 460
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(i)

SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC are
engaged on a fixed lump sum contract of
US$431,930,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,383,264,000) for the design,
engineering, procurement, construction,
commissioning, testing and completion of,
and making good of defects in relation to
two coal fuel steam power plant facilities
with net capacity of 150 megawatt each in
Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra,
Indonesia.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
construction costs of HK$118,224,000
(2017: HK$650,485,000) were paid and
recognised as properties, plant and
equipment and prepayments for the
construction of the power plant facilities.

SEPC is engaged to procure the main
equipment for the construction of the
Group’s power plant facilities in Banyuasin,
South Sumatera Province, Indonesia, for a
total cash consideration of US$39,550,000
(equivalent to HK$309,791,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, nil construction costs were paid
and recognised as prepayments for
construction of power plants.

(ii)

SEPC} E [t & A s]PT.SEPC
12431,930,000% Jt (FHE KB
#%3,383,264,0007T) B & 7F 42
BE2EANEERETER:
ITRHAE HE R
AR ERERMCRENEILE
PEBEEREIERENFES
% B150K FL 89 7 B #R I 2505
B E AR M W0 IR B A R
fa o

lE
of]

T >t

» B £2018F 128318 1 F
118,224,0007T (20174 : & ¥
650,485,0007T) B 3 i I 7% 73
RYME EBRRIBEURER
B T R AR M HY TR S RO o

SEPCHEZREH IE A& B RN E)
JE 8 %k P9 & JE & Banyuasini2
REEHEEAITNEER
1 #IR & (B /39,550,000
3 7t (M8 & 72 7% #309,791,000
TT) °

7 B 22018 2017124
MBLIEFE - W& EFRK
RIVERRERN AN RERE
B R R TE AT 5RIA o

20184F £ 3R
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company disposed of its entire equity interest in
China Oceanwide International Limited, the former
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to
Oceanwide Sigma Limited, a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, at a consideration of
US$12,800,000 (equivalent to HK$100,453,000).

No transaction were made with the directors and
senior management of the Company during the
year other than the emoluments paid to them
(being the key management personnel
compensation) as disclosed in Note 16.
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R #E £2018F12A31H L F & © &
A A [Al0ceanwide Sigma Limited
(—HRZNMERR) L EFRZBERE
ERAR(AABMAZENE R
A2 RAES RER
12,800,000% 7T(# & ® B ¥
100,453,0007T) °

FA BENERAEZFRSRE
BAEBENMES(BIETEZEERAEH
B (R M 164 58) SN - BB ERE
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 37 EXEAB AR (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Amount due to an intermediate holding JE 1 — R R PR AR AR 2 A SRIA ()
company (i)
— COG —hZEE 5,194,773 3,120,506
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary BN —HERZNEARRE
— China Tonghai Finance — REREN S
+ Loans from China Tonghai Finance cREFEREHBHER
(Note 30c) (Wt &E30c) 288,000 280,000
+ Interest payables to China Tonghai cBAREREHBEHFE
Finance (Note 27) (WtzE27) 734 460
288,734 280,460
Amounts due from/(to) related parties B/ (FER) BB 3
(Notes 23 and 27) <MT?23&27>
— Oceanwide Property Management, - i%%%ﬂi
a fellow subsidiary (ii) (—HRZMBERR) (i) (838) 169
— China Tonghai Securities, a fellow — TEEE ua%
subsidiary (ii) (R ?MT% al) (ii) (150) 469
— SEPC, a non-controlling shareholder of ~ — SEPC (% & i /& 2 & ) 342
subsidiaries (i) R ) (ii) 4,023 4,293
— PT. Satya Abadi Semesta, — PT. Satya Abadi Semesta
a non-controlling shareholder of (—EN B AR FEERRR) (i)
a subsidiary (i) 8,047 8,587
— PTCOI, a fellow subsidiary (ii) — PTCOI(—F R R &2 7)) (ii) (6,750) (2,512)
— Oceanwide Holdings, an intermediate — AR (— R R AR 2 A (ii)
holding company (ii) (1,347) (1,343)
— Oceanwide Center LLC, a fellow — Oceanwide Center LLC
subsidiary (ii) (—FIR R B2 7)) (17,749) =
(14,764) 9,663
Construction payable to a non-controlling ERMEAR—ZHFERRROER
shareholder of subsidiaries (iii) FUIA (i)
— SEPC — SEPC 155,169 110,018
Interest receivable from a non-controlling EUMBAR—BEERRROFS
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note 23) (Ft5E23)
— SEPC — SEPC 4139 4147
Loan and interest receivables from a Elh—FEMBAR-ZFERREMN
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary & & 7 & (f{ 5:23)
(Note 23)
— GSG — GSG 261,598 253,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

The loans are unsecured and bears interest at 5% per
annum. As at 31 December 2017, the maturity date is
31 December 2019 and repayable on demand. In
November 2018, three supplemental agreements were
entered into between the Company and two
subsidiaries of the Company (as borrowers) and COG
(as lender) to extend the respective loan facility of
US$250,000,000, US$300,000,000 and US$650,000,000
to 31 December 2020 with demand clause removed
and to amend the repayment terms such that each of
the borrowers has the discretion to opt for early
repayment, while COG undertakes not to request any
early repayment from the borrowers. Accordingly, the
loans were reclassified from current liabilities to non-
current liabilities since then. As at 31 December 2018,
HK$5,194,773,000 (2017: HK$3,120,506,000) was
drawn.

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within the next 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values.

Balance are unsecured and settled based on agreed
credit terms. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values.

37

EXRABERRXS (&)

(if)

(iii)
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ZEER A ERR RIEFF B5%5
B o M20174F12A318 - B ¥ A A
2019F12A318 + WARERKEE -
20185117 - A A R HE T M i Bt 8
RAI(EARBRA) BT ZEE(EARE
RANTL=MHEEHHE K55
250,000,000 JT * 300,000,000 7t K&
650,000,000 7T i) & 3K B & H IR & &
F20206F12R318 kBB iz ZkE &
B WEFTERIER S EBRAB
RIS IR 1BIR T B AN - AR 5 M Al
HAGERTMERARTER
It ZEERREEARDABRETS
BAIFRBEE - H2018F12A318 -
7 ¥5,194,773,0007T (20174 : 7 *
3,120,506,0007T) £ $2HX °

BRRERR  2RRARBEHRE
AR1REAREE - REHSHEEEAR
EEMRE -

AR BRI Y RERENEEHIE
N-RmeBREAREERAS
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company procured
a standby letter of credit in favour the
licensed bank to secure for a bank loan of
the Company with a carrying amount of
HK$975,076,000 (2017: HK$2,165,262,000)
(Note 30a).

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company secured a
bank deposit for guarantees in favour of the
licensed bank for a bank loan of the
Company with a carrying amount of
HK$781,000,000 (2017: Nil) (Note 30a).

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company acted as
guarantor and provided a guarantee on a
loan of the Company with a carrying
amount of HK$1,069,191,000 (2017:
HK$1,067,007,000) (Note 30b).

As at 31 December 2018, a keepwell
agreement was executed by an intermediate
holding company of the Company to provide
comfort to the lending fellow subsidiary in
respect of a loan from the fellow subsidiary
with carrying amount of HK$280,000,000
(2017: HK$280,000,000) that the Company
shall be in sound financial condition to meet
all liabilities and perform all obligations
under the loan agreement (Note 30c).

(iii)

(iv)

MR2018F 128318 * " QA —
MR EERAREEIT—HI
—ERFBRERTAXEANER
ERE EAXRREESRE
B B ¥975,076,0007T (2017
&F 8 ¥2,165,262,0000T) K
R1TE KA HE A (Ft 5230a) o

MR2018F12831H » A Q A —
A R IR B A — R SR
TAXmABBE—28R1TT
K ERBARFI—ERESE
& 7 ¥781,000,0007T (2017
FEm)MIRITE RO ER (M
$¥30a) ©

M20184128318 » " AR —
MR EERARIEAERA
BARAE —ERMESEABE
1,069,191,0007T (20174 : &
#1,067,007,0007T) B & 3K 2
H R (M 5E30b) ©

MR2018F 128318 * " QA —
M EEEAFTE R — KM
& % & B ¥280,000,0007T
(20174 : 7% %280,000,0007T)
VEREVHTHE NBE
BARAERERWE A RREAR
RNRIZBEER 8B B AR A
BITIRERBZETHNRERT
K % 75 Hy 45 &L (B 5£30c) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

v)

(vi)

(vii)

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company secured a
bank deposit of US$8,474,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$66,376,000) on behalf of
PT Mabar for a bank guarantee in favour of
PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero)
(“PLN”), an Indonesia state owned limited
liability company. The guarantee is required
under a power purchase agreement entered
into between PLN and PT Mabar.

As at 31 December 2018, a keepwell deed
was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company with certain
undertakings in favour of the lender for the
loan borrowed by a subsidiary with a
carrying amount of HK$1,200,246,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 30b).

As at 31 December 2017, an intermediate
holding company of the Company and a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries
acted as guarantors and provided a
guarantee on a loan of a subsidiary of the
Company with a carrying amount of
HK$617,535,000. As at 31 December 2018,
the loan was fully repaid.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

v)

(vi)

(vii)

M2018F12A31H XA Al —
M EER AR E R KRPT
Mabarft LAPT Perusahaan
Listrik Negara (Persero)
([PLN |- —fAEIEEIE AR
NA) AR mANRITERE
#18,474,000%% T (IHE R K&
%66,376,0007T) H) R 1T 17
Ko ZBERDBE —1HH
PLNEEPT Mabars] 32 M & 7
BEWAEZRERM-

M2018F 128318 + " QA —
M EEEAR G —ERE A
AFfEA - RESEABY
1,200,246,0007T (20174 : £%)
MEREYHETRE REA
7 A B 30 A 1 B T AR (Bt
#30b) °

MR2017F128318 * " Q7] —
MR REERATRZENNBA
A — AR TR ER
A BEARR—BHBAR—
E K E & 8B R BK
617,535,0007T B B 3K 32 fi #2
1# - 7201812 A31H * % £
EREEEHEE -
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e BB AR M R

(viii) In June 2017, the Company borrowed a

(ix)

loan of HK$60,000,000 from China

Oceanwide International Investment
Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary. As
at 31 December 2017, the loan was fully

repaid.

In April 2017, the Group acquired from the
non-controlling shareholders of Shanghai
Gang Lu Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.* (currently known as Oceanwide Shen
Gang Asset Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*)
(“SGL”) and Shanghai Pu Gang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (currently known as
Oceanwide Gang Hu Asset Operation
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*) (“SPG”) the respective
12% and 20% equity interests in SGL and
SPG at the consideration of
HK$147,250,000 and HK$86,071,000
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by
the board of directors of the Company on 27 March

2019.

= A
Ii\‘/j—\lzl

(viii) 7201746 + AN 2 & [ — A

(ix)

B R 8B A & B2 & B BRI
BEBRRAAIBA—FEBE
60,000,0007T #) & 3K ° 72017
F12R318 ZZEEHREEE
HEE-

MR201754H - R&EE [ L8
BEEMERZERRARGR
BZzEREBEELE (LB A
RARD(EEBRE]) R LS
HEEBMERZEBRARGR
BRAZEBBEEEKE(LE)
BRARD( EEBEE]RIE
TR AR R o Rl Uk s BB E
SO M912% K2 20% % #E
K& 5 5l & % %147,250,000
7T & 75 #86,071,0007T °

B 75 3 % © A2019F3 A27H B A A

AEESHE-
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Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2018 are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Lop PN E=E

China Oceanwide Capital
Management Limited

PREARNEEBRAQA

China Oceanwide International
Asset Management Limited
FrZREBREEEESRAA

China Oceanwide International
Capital Hong Kong Limited
FZHEBREREEGRA A

China Oceanwide International
Capital Investments
Management Limited

FRBEREAREEERRAQA

China Oceanwide International
Properties (US) Corp.
FREZEBRBEEX (R AR

AR

China Oceanwide Power Co.,
Limltgd
FREZSENBRER A

China Oceanwide Power
Investment Holdings Limited
FZENEREERERAA

China Oceanwide Power
Investment | Limited

PRENREF—BRAT

China Oceanwide Power
In/vestmen\t IV Limited
FZENEREFNERA A

Place of operations/

incorporation

BT AR L it B

British Virg_in Islands
RBHERRES

British Virgin Islands

REBEBARES

Hong Kong
Ea

British Virg_in Islands
RBHERRES

United States
x

Hong Kong
HB

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

British Virg_in Islands
REBHERRES

British Virg_in Islands
REBHERRES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R MY R

MR2018F12A31BENEEM B A RIFIBN

T

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTRRRN

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

Us$100
1003 7T

HK$10,000
7 #10,0007T

Us$100
1003 7T

US$309,875
309,875% 7T

US$36,555,000
36,555,000 7T

US$50,000*
50,0003 jt*

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

US$50,000
50,000 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Group’s
effective
interest
(%)

R E
BERER
(%)

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activity

ERER

Holding of fund
investments
BEESRE

Holding of debt
and equity
securities

HEEBMKRE

Provision of
management
services

RRHEEERY

Holding of debt
securities

RABERE S

Provision of
management
and
administrative
services

RHEEERITH
Bl 7%

Investment
holding
KEEK

Investment
holding
BREER

Investment
holding
KA K

Investment
holding
KEEK



Name of subsidiaries

MEAR RS

China Oceanwide Property
Holdings Limited
hREFXERBERRQA

China Oceanwide Property
International Development
Limited

PREXBEREREBERAA

China Oceanwide Property Sino

Limited
FeEXTREGRAR

China Oceanwide Real Estate

Development Holdings Limited

PREMERZEZERERQA

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development | Limited

hWREHEREE-FRQA

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development Il Limited
FrEMEREE _BRAF

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development Il Limited

PREHMERZEE=BRIA

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development IV Limited

hREHMEREEMNER QA

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development V Limited
FrEMEREERAERAF

China Oceanwide Real Estate
Development VI Limited

TREMERELNERAF

Grand Hover International
Development Limited

BEERZERER QA

Place of operations/

incorporation

B3R AR L it B

British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

!/

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

British Virg_in Islands
REBHERRES

British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

British Virg_in Islands
REBERRES

Hong Kong

!/

Particulars of
issued capital

ERITELRFR

Uss$1#
1=

HK$5,000,000#

7 #5,000,0007T*

HK$1,000,000*

7 %#1,000,0007T*

US$50,000%
50,0003 7T

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

US$50,000%
50,0003 7T *

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

US$50,000*
50,000 st*

US$50,000%
50,0003 7T *

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

HK$2
27T

Group’s
effective
interest
(%)
AEE
BERER
(%)

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

Principal
activity

TEER

Investment
holding
WEER

Investment
holding
®EER

Investment
holding
WEER

Investment
holding
®EER

Investment
holding
wEER

Investment
holding
®EER

Investment
holding
wEERKR

Investment
holding
wEER

Investment
holding
®EER

Investment
holding
wEERK

Property
investment

MERE
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Name of subsidiaries

MEAR RS

Jeanwell Development Limited

EBERERAF

Oceanwide Real Estate
Development HI Corp.
ERRZEBETHEREZE QR

Oceanwide Real Estate Group
_(USA) Corp.
wBEREE (R RN AR

AR

Oceanwide Real Estate
International Investment
Company Limited

I BEREEIREBR A A

Oceanwide Real Estate
In\vestm\ent HI Corp.
ERRZEBTHERE QR

Oceanwide Real Estate
Investment NY Corp.

MUZBTIBHEREDF

Oceanwide Real Estate
Management HI Corp.

BERRZBIHEEE QA

Oceanwide Center NY LLC
A2 FHRLER AR

Qqeanwide Plaza LLC
w B ESBRA A

Oceanwide Resort Community
AU \
REBERRERLEAFR A A

Place of operations/
incorporation

B3R AR L it B

Hong Kong

Vo3

w

u.
%£E

]

M <
=@

British Virg_in Islands
REBHERRES

At < Atk < itk < At < Atk <
&P 5 P B g 5 P

M S
=

Particulars of
issued capital

ERITELRFE

HK$2
27T

Paid-in capital of

US$119,838,014%
MR ER

119,838,014 7T*

Paid-in capital of
US$791,926,442

BMREXR
791,926,4423 7T

US$50,000
50,0003 7T

Paid-in capital of
US$208,558,679*

BRENR
208,558,679% JT*

Paid-in capital of
US$66,587,480
BMRER
66,587,480 T

Paid-in capital of
US$293,524,779*

BREEXR
293,524,779% jt*

Paid-in capital of
US$66,587,480
MR ER
66,587,480 7T

Paid-in capital of
US$791,935,942

BMREXR
791,935,942% 7T

Paid-in capital of

US$119,788,014*
BREEXR

119,788,014 7T*

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Group’s
effective
interest
(%)
AEH
BRER
(%)

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Principal
activity

TEER

Property
investment

MERE

Investment
holding
A ZER

Investment
holding
"EERK

Investment
holding
wEERK

Investment
holding
A ZER

Investment
holding
"E K

Investment
holding
wEERK

Real estate
development
EihEERE

Real estate
development

BiEZER

Real estate
development

B EER
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e BB AR M R

Place of operations/

Name of subsidiaries incorporation

MEAR RS B 3T AR L B

i3

Oceanwide Resort HI LLC
wBEBREEBNER AR

M <
=@

Oceanwide Resort Paradise U.
_HILLC x
wBEBREREBRKEBRA A

=9

PT. Banyuasin Power Energy Indonesia
Efe
PT. Mabar Elektrindo Indonesia
Efe
Oceanwide Shen Gang Asset PRC~
Operation (Shanghai) MR A
Co., Ltd.” )
RERBEERE(LB)AR
NGT
Oceanwide Gang Hu Asset PRC”
Operation (Shanghai) MR A
Co., Ltd.” )
REBEREBERE (LB AR
NGT
# The issued shares of the subsidiary of the Company were

pledged to secured borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018.

A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

>

Particulars of
issued capital

ERITELRFR

Paid-in capital of

US$208,558,679*
BMREXR

208,558,679 jT*

Paid-in capital of

US$293,474,779*
BREEXR

293,474,779% t*

IDR
150,000,000,000
150,000,000,000

EIE

IDR
210,000,000,000
210,000,000,000

EIE

Paid-in capital of
US$16,000,000
BMRER
16,000,000 7T

Paid-in capital of
US$7,000,000
BMRER
7,000,000 7T

Group’s
effective
interest
(%)

A&
BERER
(%)

100

100

85

60

100

100

Principal
activity

TEER

Real estate
development

BiEER

Real estate
development

Bl EER

Operation of
power plant

Operation of
power plant

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MERE

& MR2018F 128318 * AR RIZM B A AN E %
TROBER EABRTASENEENE

O

—RIEBELE

20184F £ 3R
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40 ARXASMHBIRAEZRZEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE )
COMPANY
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Bt 5 AE T BT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RRMIRE 661,035 661,425
Amounts due from JE U BB R B FRIB
subsidiaries 10,810,781 10,450,339
Deposits, prepayments and Ee ENREREM
other receivables fE UL 3R 18 2,522 —
S 11,474,338 11,111,764
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from NG S
subsidiaries 1,885,511 1,510,127
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BAIREREM
other receivables & W F A 1,462 3,719
Restricted cash %R IE € 15,668 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 604,060 201,949
2,506,701 1,715,795
Total assets EEH#E 13,981,039 12,827,559
EQUITY s
Equity k=
Share capital % 7R 29 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves & 8,317,265 8,465,853
Total equity W% A EE 9,931,530 10,080,118
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40 AATIHMBRRARREE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE EEh(E)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to an FEAS — R EZER A A
intermediate holding KIE
company 895,778 —
Borrowings EE 564,379 =
1,460,157 =
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals  E th & {5 R 08 K & &t
15 H 31,588 13,108
Borrowings BE 2,557,764 792,068
Amount due to an FES — R EZERA A
intermediate holding I
company — 1,942,265
2,589,352 2,747,441
Total liabilities EEHE 4,049,509 2,747,441
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEERESE 13,981,039 12,827,559
The statement of financial position of the A BB S AR LR T5 782019463 A
Company was approved by the Board of QTR EEGHAETHIUATARERSE
Directors on 27 March 2019 and was signed on E-o
its behalf.
HAN Xiaosheng LIU Guosheng
BE4L 213 H
Chairman Director
*E EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB R MY R

40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

A 4 5110 RS IR R I 4
B ()

Capital Convertible
Share redemption Contributed note equity Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
N THRRRE
B4 &8 e BABH% RERE RENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BT BETn BT BETn
At 1 January 2018 #2018F1 818 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 — 279,298 8,465,853
Loss for the year FNEE — — — — (171,716) (171,716)
Written back of BERBIMBRE
unclaimed dividends — — — — 7 7
Issue of convertible notes %77 A # i = & — — — 23,121 - 23,121
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23121 107,589 8,317,265
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1 /18 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 — 316,244 8,502,799
Loss for the year FNEE — — — — (36,970) (36,970)
Written back of BEREIMRE
unclaimed dividends — — — — 24 24
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 — 279,298 8,465,853

The application of share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of subsidiaries
when they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the Company’s share
capital issued for the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M R

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as BEBEE(—AN—FREENE
amended), contributed surplus is available for 1BE])  MABBKRABESIRTRE -
distribution to shareholders. However, a MM ARIETIERTNFE
company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or ABBREIRIORNRESIEE DK :

make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i)  the company is, or would after the payment (i) fW2A7F]B B SkAS AT R1& | &
be, unable to pay its liabilites as they ISR EE 2K
become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the company’s assets (i) RAEBEMIUSHREEZALM
would thereby be less than the aggregate of EREBEAREBEITRARR
its liabilities and its issued share capital and s ERN B -

share premium accounts.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount MR2018F 128318 » ATt 5 kK F &
of reserves available for distribution to AEARENRELERABEK
shareholders of the Company was 109,045,0007T (20174 : & o3
HK$109,045,000 (2017: HK$280,754,000). 280,754,0007T) °
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The remuneration of each of the directors and
chief executive of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out in
Note 16a.

None of the directors of the Company received or
will receive any retirement benefits or termination
benefits for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company does not pay consideration to third
parties for making available directors’ service
(2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors (2017:
Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 or at any time during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20164 20154 20144
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT ABTT ABTT AETT AET
Results ES
Revenue WA 138,637 142,174 153,390 189,208 171,008
Operating (loss)/profit #& % (&) /FIH  (53,679) 86,556 257,436 152,888 117,411
Finance costs B & R AN — — — — —
(Loss)/profit before tax & &8l (E5#8)
IS (53,679) 86,556 257,436 152,888 117,411
Income tax expense  FTE M % (26,243) (17,411) (87,188) (22,212) (22,966)
(Loss)/profit for the ~ F R (EE)
year IS (79,922) 69,145 170,248 130,676 94,445
Attributable to: AT FEMG
Shareholders of the AR ALK
Company (48,840) 70,422 136,214 122,510 85,808
Non-controlling FEPE AR fE 5
interests (31,082) (1,277) 34,034 8,166 8,637
(79,922) 69,145 170,248 130,676 94,445
Assets and liabilities EER & &
Total assets BEBE 24,245,635 21,458,109 16,967,177 8,734,914 6,757,587
Total liabilities BERE (13,433,195) (10,282,309) (5,684,470) (2,343,710)  (528,911)
Net assets BEEFE 10,812,440 11,175,800 11,282,707 6,391,204 6,228,676

hiZiERERAE 2018F F 3R
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties held by the Group which #2018%12A31H ' AEEH BN EKE R
have been completed for existing use or under HEFEBEFZTZYEZERWT :
development at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Gross floor Attributable

Name/Location Land lease term Type area interest
28t T EEFH H 5l EEEE LS
(sgq.m.)
(FF 77 2K)
Completed
2% K
Various units on levels 2, 5-7, The land use term of Commercial 10,718 100%
11 & 16 and the whole of the property is 50 years &5 M (excluding car
levels 1, 3—-4, 14-15 & 18-23, from 19 November 1992 park)
and 50 car parking spaces in  to 18 November 2042 (B HBRIN)
the basement, Harbour Ring #ZWELHFEREFHA
Huang Pu Centre, No. 98 504 + ;1992411 A

Luhe Road, Huangpu District, 19H £2042F11H18H
Shanghai, China.
oh B 5 T EOH S A A 25985
BREERP L2 5-7
MR16IEZ EER - 13-4
14-15%18-2312 2 [ - A it
T{EEIF50@EAL °

Various units on levels 9-12 & The land use term of the Commercial 29,127 100%
18 and the whole of levels property is 50 years 2 A (excluding car
2-6, 13-14, 17, 23-24, 28-29 from 1 August 1993 to park)
& 31-32 and 152 car parking 31 July 2043 (1= BI5BR 5N
spaces in the basement, ZMEIHERETEHA

Harbour Ring Plaza, No. 18 50%F ' FR1993F8H1H =
Xizang Zhong Road, Huangpu 204347 H31H
District, Shanghai, China.
H B T =R & 78 R K 185R
75 B E159-12 1818 % ([ &8
i * 2-6 ~ 13-14 ~ 17 ~ 23-24 -
28-2931-32E & [€ -
VA b R {2 B 35 1521{E S i o

Under development

B &

1101 South Flower Street, Los Freehold land with no Commercial 41,800 100%
Angeles, the U.S. expiry date = A (exclude car

2B E11015% KA FERE LM park)

EI A (FEIZERSM)

298 ANNUAL REPORT 2018



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Gross floor
Name/Location Land lease term Type area
BB B T AEFH 5l BEEE
(sq.m.)
(FF 75 2K)
Completed
=534
Unit 1006 and 1007 on level 10 The land use term of the = Commercial 378
in Harbour Ring Plaza, No. 18 property is 50 years =
Xizang Zhong Road, Huangpu from 1 August 1993 to
District, Shanghai, China 31 July 2043
PR EETEHRAR T KI8T ZWEITMEAESTHA
7B BE 510121006 210078 7 504F - F11993F8H1H &
2043F7H318
Expected
completion Gross floor
Name/Location Land lease term Type date area
=R -8 T HEEFH Wl AATHEE BEEEDE
(sq.m.)
(F77 %)
1101 South Flower Street, Los Freehold land with Commercial/ 2020 96,449
Angeles, the U.S. no expiry date Residential 20204 (exclude car
E BRI M B IEA11015% KAEELH - BAME park)
®mEEHE G
B 5N
80 South Street, New York, Freehold land with Commercial/ Not yet 75,975
the U.S. no expiry date Residential determined
% B 41 49 7 18055 KAKEELH - BAME RTE
EEEH

Attributable
interest

FE 1 fE 2

100%

Attributable
interest

FE 15 #E 55

100%

100%
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Name/Location

%1

Land lease term Type

T EEFH &5l

Ko Olina Parcels 54B, 54C Freehold land with Commercial/

and 55, Honouliuli, District of no expiry date Residential
Ewa, City and County of KAERELH - BREE
Honolulu, State of Hawaii, m R H A
the U.S.

ERE R EINEE LT E
Bk R N B BRI

7 3#854B - 54C 255

Ko Olina Parcels 20/21 (lot Freehold land with Commercial/

4608), 25/26 (lot 4609) and no expiry date Residential
19B (lot 5346-B), Honouliuli, X A¥#E L - EA (E=E
District of Ewa, City and MmEIE A

County of Honolulu, State of

Hawaii, the U.S.
EBRERERIMNER LTS

B A B BRI R 3R

20/21 (55460857 th 378 )

25/26 (55460957 i 38 ) &

19B (55346-B5f i 1)

Parcel Lots 18734, 18733, Freehold land with Commercial/

18252 and 18250, Kapolei no expiry date Residential
Area, Honouliuli, District of kA ZE#E L+ - TR (E=E
Ewa, City and County of R H A

Honolulu, State of Hawaii,
the U.S.

EEERRIMNEE LT &
FERBARBERHNER
5818734 - 18733 - 18252
1218250

Expected
completion Gross floor Attributable

date area interest
R EREE REER PE A5 R 2
(sg.m.)
(F 73 K)
Not yet 92,292 100%
determined
RTE
Not yet 149,412 100%
determined
RTE
Not yet Not yet 100%
determined determined
RIE (Land area:
2,066,286)
ARTE (L
[E
2,066,286)
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